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Court of Exchequer, in the Cafe of one Foun-
taine, where an Appeal was brought from a De-
cree in the Excheguer, and Recognizance entred
into by the faid Fountaine, to abide the Order of
the Houfe of Lords: and after the Parliament
was diffolved, the Counfel of the faid Fountaine,
did infift on the faid Order before the Barons,
That the Houfe being poffeflt of Mr. Fountaine’s
Caufe and Security having been given by him to
abide the Order of the Houfe, that no Proceed-
ings ought to be had in the £xcheguer upon the
faid Decree, until the Matter on the Appeal was
determined before the Lords. Notwithftanding
which, and that Mr. founteine produced the
Lords Order in Court, and produced the Sccu-
rity allow’d; yet the now Barons declared and
ordered, That the Decree by them made fhould
be proceeded on, againit the faid Fouutaine, in the
Court of Excbeguei: Anda Proceeding hath been
had accordingly.

By all which he obferved, That the Inferior
Courts did proceed upon Maticrs, forbid as much
by tbe Houfe of Lords, in the Matters of Appeals
and Writs of Error, as it was upon Impeach-
ments; and yet that the Reafon was plain why
they did fo, for that the Parliament might pro-
ceed again upon the fame Appeals, and Writs of’
Errors, notwithftanding thole Proceedings in
the Inferior Courts, in the Interval of Farlia-
ments s for that none of thofe Ads of the Infe-
rior Courts do fo hinder the Proceedings of the
Superior, but that the Plamntiff in Parliament
may revive the fame Matter there again, by Seire
Facias, or by Refummons, &e. But he faid, it
was never heard of, that the Lords themfelves
did proceed again Ex Officio, without the Peti-
tion of the Party to revive the Caufe, And fo
he faid in the Cafe of Impeachments, that the
Lords would no more proceed Ex Qfficio upon
that neither, unlefs they were called upon by
the Profecutors; and then theirr Lordfbips Pro-
ceedings upon e Dispeachment, would be no moie
binder’d by the Basling of him in the Inferior Court,
than they were in the other Cafes by the Executions
and Sequefirations, which are grauted in the Inter-
vals of Parliament, which were for the Preven-
tion both of DeLay and of FartLureg of
JusTICE.

Befides, he faid, If this thould not be done,
how could it be known whether the Profecu-
tors of an Impeachment from the Houfe of Com-
mons {who are never the fame Men in a new
Parliament) will proceed any more upon a For-
mer Impeachment { For, he faid, it had many
times fallen out otherwife ;5 and he cited a late
Cafe of the Lord Aderdant, who was Impeach’d
upon Articles in one Seffion: and having taken
out a Pardon during the Prorogation, was never
more called upon, nor never queftion’d upon the
former Impeachment ; altho® the very fame Par-
liament fat agamn, which had Impeach’d him :
And therefore, he faid, that the Cafe might
more probably happen to fall out fo, when a new
Parliament fhould meet again, which would con-
fift of new Men,

He faid, It was likewife to be obferved, that
altho’ the Tranfcript of the Record in a Writ of
Error might have days of Continuance, yet no
Superfedeas 1s grantable ; and he faid, that if the
Jords Order be no Ground for a Superfedeas on
a Writ of Error, why the lying of an Impeach-
ment fhould be a Ground for confining a Man

within the Tower Walls all his Life, he was fipa
muit be both lefs reafonable and lefs juft, as Li.
berty was more valuable than Property, and
without which, Property could be of no Com.
fort.

In the next Place he obferved, That if ¢
Order thould be continued lierally to mean, tha
the Impeachments, as well as the Appeals ang
Writs of Error, (and the Incidents relating o
all of them) fhould remain in the fame Sz
they were at the Diffolution of THAT Paryy.
AMENT mentioned in the faid Order, his Cife
thereupon, he faid, would be quite differone
from any others 5 for that he was nof wider iy
Commnitinent at the Diffelution of Tuat Pan-
LIAMENT, nor at the time when TaaT Oge
DER wwas siade, but was fhen az Lidarty to be o
Sieting Member of that Houle, and by a Vore of
the Houfe had Leave fo con'inze fo; for that (as
he had already obferved) the Daie of the Ordes
was the 19th of March 1678, and the Warrang
of his Commitment did appear by the Return
before the Court, to be the 16:h of A/ follow-
ing : Inlomuch, that he defired the Court to take
notice, that the {trict Lewer of the Words S:arz
Qus in the Order {compar’d with the time when
the fard Order was miade) would hs an Ap-
gument to fet him iz 2 flate of Liberry, a5 [e
then <as.

He then told the Court, That by what hea
had {ud, he hoped he had made appear, that the
Order did not afford the leaft fhadow for the
hindering of his betng Baled 5 but that on the
contrary, the Realons were much fironger for
the doing of that, (asit related not only to him,
but fo the Liderty of the Subjelt in generel) than
for the Proceedings which the Inferior Courts
do daily prattifc upon Appeals and Writs of
Lirror (wwhich are bnt for Properiy) and are com-
prized i the fome Order 3 and thercfore he faid,
that he hoped he fhould at leaft find the fame
Favour 1n a Cale of Lsberty, which 1s allow’d
every Day in Cafes of Iefler Moment.

He then faid, That altho® 1t did not concern
his particular Cafe, yet for the fake of Englifs
Liberty it felff, he could not but fay fomething
farther upon this Point: Ior he could not but
pe of Opinion, That if the Order had direétly
forbid Buil 3 which it was far from doing ; and
hefides, the Lords own Practice had fhew’d their
Meaning to the contrary, by the Bailing of a
Commoner, whofe Crimes were declared to be
greater than his ; and in which Cafe they made
no Nenw Obftante to therr Order, but take that
to be ftill in the fame Force towards him, as
towards any others, who are in Cuftody : Yet
he faid, 1n that Cafe, if fuch an Order thould be
found to be againft Magna Charta, and the Fun-
damental Right of the Liberty of the Subjef,
(as ary thing mult be, which does fubjelt any
Mantoan INDEFINITEIMPRISONMENT 3}
he conceived, that of Right that Court oughs
to frec any Man from fuch a Slavery; for he
faid, he could give it no better a Name. And
he then cited an Argument of the Earl of Shafts-
bury’s upon that Point, which that Lord argued
in that Court upon an Habeas Corpus s when the
Court agreed they would have Batled him, had
1t not been in a time of Adjeurmmzut only of the
Parliament., His Words, he faid, were, Tha
this Court will and ought 1o judge Aw AcT oF
Parvrament Voin, § it be avart
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MacnaCuARTA; and more might it judpe
of An ORDER OF THE Housg oF
Lorps, that is put in Execution fo deprive any
Subjeit of bis LiserTY. And, as_he faid,  this
could not be denied to be Law; fo he was con-
fidenc the Earl of Shaftsbury was {till of the fame
Mind, and fo muft every Lord in England be,
or (when they confider their own Cafes) they
would make their Liberties to be very precart-
OUS.

He procecded to fay, That thc‘ Earl of Shafts-
bury being allow’d to be a knowing Man, both
in the Laws, Orders, and Conititutions of Par-
liaments, he would beg leave to quote another
Part of the fame Speech, viz, Taat My, Atror-
ney (which was then Sir William _'}‘a:r{e.f) was
pleafed to anfwer toe _I;gﬂaﬂfe of one faf bis Lord-
fhip’s Cottisfel, That if a great Minifter fbould be
cominitted, be bath the Cure of a Pardon, a Proro-
gation, or a Diffolution : Bat (fays the Earl) if the
Cafe fhould be put, why Forty Members, or a greater
Number, way not as well be talen without any
Remedy of any of the King’s Ceurts ¢ His Lord-
fhip faid, That M. Atsoriey could ot very eafily
anfwer. And if in ihis Cafe (fays he) there cain be
wo Relief, no NMan can ferefee ?U;Jfff may be bere-
after. And mn another place of the fame Speech
he fays, bz does wot think i a Kinuels to ibe
Lords o make them dbfeiate, aid above the Leow,
for fo ic wnft ey if it be adinige. s fhad Ldey ey
Commt ¢ Man toan INDEFINITE I s P -
SONMENT.

He faid, he took thefe Men whom he had na-
med, for no fmall Authorities in this Age : And
the Earl of Shaftsbury, he faid, was 2 Man (il
as much for the maintaining of this Order as
ever; but that his Lordfhip did fhew himfelf,
at the fame time, to be for Euglifh Liberty. And
he plainly thew’d his own Senfe, both of this
and of all Orders whatever, which concern’d the
Liberty of the Subjects and declared, That he
took that Court to be the proper Judge of all
fuch Orders.

Fle fad, It thereby appear’d how fenfible that
Lord was, that fuch Cafes might concern Forty,
as well as One, and Members of either Houfe, as
well as other Men ; and wichout Relief, if it
fhould be admittec, that ORpinArRYCourTs
conld not Relieve,  And the Earl of Danby faid,
That there was no anfwering of thefe Argu-
ments of the Earl of Shaftsbury 5 -unlefs it could
be dented, That the King can Impeach as well as
the Gommons 5 or that the King cannot Call and
Diffolve  Parliameits at his own Will and Plea-
Jure: For if he may (as was not to be doubted)
he faid, he was fure every Mun i England was
i the fame Danger when the King pleafed 3 and
then he faw nothing whereby he had any Secu-
rity; but that we lived under a King who
would not exercife this Power over us, which
we will needs put into his Hands, altho® he does
not defire it himfelf. As if we were fo weary
of cur Liberties, that we would be Induftrious
i contriving how we might infen{ibly flide into
thole Slaveries, which our Anceftors have been
fome Ages taking pains to fecure us from ; and
our Kings have been fo Gracious as to grant
and confirm to us, fo many times over as they
have dore; and which other Kings may be as
ready to reaffume hereafter, as we are to give
them away,
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He concluded his Obfervations upon that
Speech of the Earl of Shaftsbury’s, with taking
notice, that his Lordthip had fhewed he was
one of thofe Peers who would rake it for ro
Kindnefs to be made Abfolute, and above the
Law, by fuch Orders of theirs being conttrued
to extend 0 INDEFINITE IMPRISO X-
MENT.

He then repeated Sir 23/lian: Fones's Decla-
ration 1n that Court; That cither a Pardon, a
Prorogation, or @ Diffolution, was a Cure a 20217jE
Juch Lmprifonsncints, And he obferved thereupon,
That if that Doftrine were true, Thai eny one
of thofe was a Cure againft fuch Lmprifuincar,
(and he could not doubt of its being good Law)
then certainly he ought to find Relief from his
Imprifonment, who bad every oue of thefz Cures
on his Side,

He then defired to put the Court in mind,
How in the worft of Times, Juftice had taken
place fo far, as 40 ley afide 1he Force of Orders
mace i Parligicits, after the Diffilutions of thef?
Parliaments wbich made iherm 5 altho? it was to the
Prejudice of the Interdtt of thote Ufarpers them-
felves,

He cited an Inftance of onc Sir Fobn Stazwel,
who, by the Articles of Exeter, was to kave been
admutted te Compofition for his Eftate 5 but yet,
conirary to thofe Articles, the Parliament did aj-
terwards order his Eftate to be fold. After the
Diffolution of which Parliament Sir Fobn Stowe!
pleaded by his Counfel (which were Serjeant
Maynard and Mr, Lateh,) That that Order was
Difjotved by the Diffolution of that Parliament 3 and
that therefore the Articles were again in Force ;
And that the Plea was admitted to be good, and
Sir fobn reftored to the Benefit of the Articles
upon that Plea, even by Bradfhaw bimfelf. Buc
he fuid, he was forry, that he could neither have
Sir Williem Fones, to argue thofe Points for him
which he had uied againft my Lord Shafisbury 5
nor Serjeant Adaynard, to make good the fiva-
lidity of Parliamentary Qiders after Dillalutions :
But he faid, That it was not his Fau'r, and he
doubted not but that he was before moze juft
Judges than there were in thoefe ill Times; and
that he hoped, That the Liberty of the Subjeft was
10k 11070 1ore precarions than it was in thefe Days.

He added, That if upon fuch Orders Men could
not be Bailed in the Interval of Parliaments, they
would become Grievances equal to the Multipli-
cations of Tieafons in former Days 3 which have
fometimes been greedily made heretofore by Par-
llaments 1 diltemper’d Times; but the Com-
mons had never been quiet, till they could ser
therr Bear chain’d up, and their Laws reduced
to the old Standard of Treafon again: Bur yer
thofe things had been done by Ads, and nor by
Orders of {arliament,

He defired them likewife to remember, That
1t had been one of the chief Grounds of the late
War betwixt the King and his Parllament, (in
which fo much Blood had been thed) That an
Ordinance of Parliament fhould not be held
equal to an Act of Parllament; and yet thole
were Orders of both Houfes. And now, faid
he, fhall we be Defending, that an Order of
One Houfe only ihall be Equivalent to a Law ?
and fball be m Force againft our greateft and
moft Sacred Laws of Liberty, which have been
fo confirmed to us? This, faid he, I am notable
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to underftand the Reafon of ; nor will any Man
who fhall give himfelf the leaft lcifure to think
upon It.

He then faid, he defired to ask any Man that
then heard him, or any Commoner of Enzland,
who would but take Time to confider this Cale,
(zhich may be any Mew’s in England,) Whether
they would be contented to invelt the Lords
with fuch an fuberent Power over their Liber-
ties, which they can no more be exempted from
than the Pecrs themiclves?

And he faid, That the Lords had already made
It appear, that they would not have any fuch
Arbutreiy Power placed 1n them, for that they
had refufed to palsa Favourite #7F (which was for
their own Trials) only by reafon of a Claule winch
was inferted therein, e bave Enalled the Subfiance
of this prefent Oideirinto @ Lat,

And he fad, That the HHoule of Commons
deliring that fuch a Power might have been Enact-
ed into a Law, (tho’ theinfoives wworld bave been
the firft wha sworld bave repented fuch a [aw,) did
fufficiently denote, Thai th: Cosmingiss did nat thiuk
the Ordey <eondd be binding in Law aficy their Dif-
Jolution 5 tor otherwile what need was there of «
Lo, 1f the Order was 1n force atter Difiolution,
without ¢ Law,

Upon the whole he faid, he thought the DI
temper of that time had given more weight to
the Order, than any thing elit; and fome of
their Lordfhips on that Bench did know, both
in what an FHeat 1t had been made, and how 1t
had been fince blown upen by the Lords them-
felves 3 whio he was confident would no more
endure to have it conftrued 1n that Sente which
now fecms to be put upon 1t, (of fubyeciing Men io
be ey INDEFINITEIMPRISONMENT)
than they will endure themlelves to be every Day
put in the Stocks.

As he had faid thus much to the Order it {clf,
fo he faid, he hoped to make appear, That (be
Cour?s Bailinz of binn would wot at all intreich
upoin the Oider, icir meddle <with the  Juri
diction of the Lords ucy their Procceaings in any
kind.

For that he took it for granted, That what
1s cone by that Court, and the Courts of Chair-
cery and Lxcheqreer, on Appeals and Writs of
Error, was underftood not to meddle ar all wich
the Juridiction nor Proccedings of the lords
in thofe Cales s and that this was jufp the fawe,
all being alike fuljel? to the final Detcrinination of
the Lovds, whencver they pleafed 1o call the Appecl,
Writ of Erior, or Impeachment, befere thein, aid
without any Prejudice to theiy Lovdfbips Proceediiigs
by aity of thofe Aits done by that cr the other Coutits
in the Interval of Parliainents.

Befides, he faid, it had been ufual to Bail in
that Court to the Juftice Seat in Eyre, and yet
that that Court could not proceed turther.

He inftanced alfo, That Court’s allowing of
the Pardons of Peers, (when pleaded there) and
yet that they had no Power to proceed to the Trial
of a Peer.

And fo he fud, There were divers other In-
ftances of that Court’s pracccding to fuch and fuch
Degrees of exerciling their Power to avoid De-
Jays, &9¢. where the Court had no Jurifdiion to
determine the Matter.

Precedents, he faid, were not to be expeéted,
which were exaltly fitted to his Cafe, becaufe
he durtt be bold to fay, there never was fuch a

Cafe before, (when well confidered in al] g
Circiimftances,) nor he heped never would pe
again: but he fauid, that therefore both e
King's Power and the People’s Libertics would
be tie more concern’d 10 what Refolution fhould
be given by the Court m this Cale of his,

He fud, there were Precedents of Difcharaine
of Men Impeach’d in Parliament upon the Ki]gl;;
Writ to that Court, commanding the Proceed.
ings to ceafe, and they have been difcharged e
cordingly by that Court, without any other Rea-
fon given in the Writ, but becaufe the King held
the Parties to be Innocent and Free from the
Crimes charg’d agamft them.  As in the Cafes
of Meltor Archb.dhop of 2urd, and Giawefind
Bilhop of Lanisi, 7 L. 3.

He mendoned alio Ziugh Spencer, and Sir 7h-
mas Derliy's being Mamprited to Parlizment,
and yer that toe latter was upon Suipicion for
the wiurder of a Kine (v2)) Ediwerd the Sea
conl.

Fle fud, Inferior Courts had Bailed to Par-
liament about the Pope’s Bully G, Ree. Write,
274,
He fud, a fingle Judee, (wiz. Sir Robers
Ay had lately Buleld one for Treaton, and
ancther for Plurder; and that he did himelt
hear his Juftihcation of both allow’d (as 1o the
legal part) before the King and Council,

He faid, that Kings had forinerly abolifh’d
Acculations of Treafon, and mflanced a Cue of
Taitot againtt Orimond i the timeof 1/, 6,

And to fhew how powertul the bare Inten-
tion of Kings to Purdon hath been hercrofore,
he mnftanced the Cale of a Man fndiGted of Fe.
tony, who (without any Counlei) fhew’d forih
1 Charter of Pardon to the Court, which was
Gicordant to the Indi@iment, and alio to his
Name; and yet becaule the Court perceived that
it was the King’s Intention he fhould be par-
doncd, he was remanded to get a better Pardon,
20 :’J_W. P- -r6

Ard he did thereupon fay, That he hoped
the King’s Intention of Pardon as to him, had
been faficiently declared to the whole King-
dom. ‘

And 1n fhorty he fud, That if the Matter
vas proper for the Junldiction of that Court,
before 1t was i Parllament s its haviag been
there, did not ke away the JurifdiCtion from a
Comp.tent Coprt, when the Exeraordinary Ju-
ridiction fals; which was not to be juppolud
coud ly ail other JuridiCtions aflecp, when it
felf was not in being ; and efpecially when thae
Competent Court fhould do nothing in Con-
tradiction to the Procecdings of the Extraordi-
mary Courr, a5 he hoped he had made appear,
that that Court would not do by the Bailing of
him,

Whereas on the contrary, he fid it was moft

evident, that Fuflice did fail fu the bighsft Con-

cerity (which 15 that of News Liberties) unlefs he
cotld be nformed when and where he mighe
ceriainly be cither Tried or Difcharged 5 for thae
(as,he had faid before) 1t was agreed both by the
Counfel for the King, and the Counfel for the
Prifoners, 1n the Argenients on the Grand Fe-
beas Corpus, that INDEFINITE IntpPRISON-
MenNT washeld to be Perretuvar 1ag-
RISONMENT, which the Law did adiit in
w Cafe where the  Tuprifomen: <es o'y A b
Cusropiraa,  And altho® his bad been in-
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tended but Ap CustopraM, yet it could not
be denied, but # had already been ad Gravem
Peenam, and without any pariicular Caufe yet
fhew’d for which be ought il be Bailed by Law.
He then faid, That Littleten had declared 1n
his Arguments, 5 Car. That 1f Treafon in genc-
ral thould be held to be a fufhicient Return, yet
that the Kine’s-Beach might Bail : And the faid
Littleton, and the King's Attorney 1n their Argu-
ments (one for the King, and the other for
Mr. Selden) did agree, That wherve the Party could
sot avord the Judgment of the Latw, nor that there
was uo Danger by bis being at Liberty, He ought
10 be Bailed after loug Imprifomincat 5 and at that
¢ime, Six Months was taken to be long Impri-

fonment, o
He faid he had read a Paflage in the Lord

Coke’s Inftitutes, where he fpoke of fuch Im-
prifonments as he compared to the Imprifon-
ment of St. Paw/, by the Centurion, who firft put
him in Chains, and then enquired who he was,
and what he had done.

He faid he would not compare his Cafe to
that 5 but that there was fo much of refemblance
in it, that he had been in Chains, or what was
¢here meant by Chains (which was a Prifon) for
above Three Years, on a pretence of Treafon,
withour being told to that day what kind of
Treafon he had committed 5 which had been done
in no-body’s Cafe but his, and by fo much the
oreater was his Hardfhip.

” e had alfo both been Accufed and Commit-
ed without any Oath made againft him,

When a Day had been appointed for his Hear-
ing, his Counfel had been forbid to plead Mat-
ter of Law for him,

It had been acknowledged, that there was no
Treafon contained in any of the Articles againft
him, if they wereall true.

And if they had been true, and had amounted
to Treafon, he had there thewed the King’s Par-
don, which did releafe both the Crimes and the
Imprifonment.

That befides that Pardon, he had had his Maje-
fty’s Declaration 1n full Parhiament, both of his
Innocence, and that he would grant him his Par-
don ten times over, 1f this were detetive,

That he had now had his Majelty’s Confent
to his Bail, a fecond time, declared to that Court
by the Attorney-General by the King’s Direc-
tion.

"That in all thefe foregoing Particulars, his Cafe
was fingular, and different from all others, who
are or have been made Prifoners fince the begin-
ing of the late Plot, or (as he believed) at any
other time,

Befides thefe Things, which are peculiar to his
own Cafe, he faid that there was alfo what was
common to other Cafes as well as his.

The Length of his Imprifonmert, which had
been above 40 Months,

The being confin’d fo long under pretence (as
he conceived) of an Order of the Houfe of
Lords, swhich neither dirells nor implies any fl:ff{g
to forbid Beil.  But in that alfo he had what was
particular to himfelf (which he had already faid,
and defired Jeave to repeat, becaufe it would
deferve their Conlideration,) wiz. That be was
at Liberty, and had leave to be a fitting Member in
the Houfe of Lords, at the time when that Op-
der did declave that the Impeachinents, Appeals,
&cc, and the Incidents belonging to them fhontd jftand
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in STATU QUOB; fa that (s is ‘alrdaily db-
ferved) the STATUS QUO (us to him) be agaln
futdy wwas to put bim intoa State of Liberty.

Lattly, he faid, That he had ‘no Profpeét now
when any Parliament would fir, and by the Ex-
amples of paft Parliaments, he might reafonably
fear, whether, when they did meet, they might
fit fo long as to give him Relief; for that his
Peution had been read the firft Day that the
halt Parlament entered upon ardy publick Bg-
finefs ; or whether greater Bufinefs of the King-
dom might not (as it had done already) fo
take up their Time, as not to give them leifure
to confider the Cafe of a fingle Perfon: And -
fince this had already fallen out to be his Mis-
fortune 1n three Parliaments fucceflively, he took
it to be but too plain @ Demonfiration of bis ing
under an indefnite Imprifonment, unlefs he fhould
find Relief in that Court, for that theve dvas i
other to appeal unto,

He faid, That in thofe great and eminént
Cafes which fell out 3 & 5 Car. about the bailing
of Perfons committed to indefinite Imptifonment,
the Judges were then very pofitive againft their
Bail, and yet changed thofe Opinions aftefwards ;
and {fo he hoped that Court might do upon
due Confideration of his Cafe and Circurnftances
or ¢lfe he hoped that his Lordfhip would con.
vince him, zhat his Imprifsument was wot indefi-
nite, by letting him koow at what prefixed Time
and where he might refort for Remedy, which
the Law does, without Queftion, allow to all Men,
and at all Times,

He faud he wasa vety reafonable Man, and
when he was convinced by Reafon (upon which
he was fure all Laws were founded) he could be
content to fuffer ftill, tho® his Imprifonment had
been fo long already ; for that however he may
have been mulreprefented, for dn arditrary Man,
he would rather perifh in his Prifon, than have any
thing done for him which the Law ould not
warrant ; But, on the other fide, he fhould be
forry, that his Cafe fhould be made a Preceden?
againft Law and againf Englith  Liberty, which
he was fure 1t would be, it he fhould be con-
tinaed to lie wuder an indefinite Imprifomment with-
cut being bailed 5 and he faid he was not afhamed
to fay, in the Behalf of all Eugliffmens Liber-
ties, as well as of his own Cafe; That it was a
Cafe which did concern every Man to take care
of in the Confequences of it, and which did cry
loudly for Relief,

He then told the Court, That he had troubled
them long, but that he hoped it would be ex-
cufed in a Cafe of that Moment: And in the
firft place, he faid, he hoped it was phin, thar
That Court had 1t 1n ther Power to grant him
Relief, if they pleafed.

That it was as plain, that there was nothing
in the Lords Crder againtt it, and thar the Prac-
tice of the Lords had been otherwife, even in
the Behalf of Commoners.

That it was apparent, that both that Court,
and the Courts of Chancery and Excheguer, do re-
lieve upon Appeals and Writs of Ervor, which are
in the feme Order with the Impeachments, and yet.
do in no forc meddle with the Judicature or Pro-
ceedings of the Houife of Lords,

That 1t was manifeft, that let the Order be
conftrued as any Man pleafes, yer that bailing
could be noforr of judging of any Proceedings
in the fuperior Conrt, dut wenld katve theé Fuds-.
HETi?
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ment entively to the Parliament, and wonld continue
bim a Prifonér .in Law, bound to appear before
that extracrdinary Court, whenever his Majefty
thall be pleafed to call 1t; and he faid it was
more evident, that otherwife he was an indefinite
Prifoner, and at the King’s Will only for bis Li-
berty, the Confequences of which every Man
ought to lay to his Heart, with a Dread of it,
whenever they thould live under a Prince that
might not be 1o merciful as our prefent King ; and
he hoped the Court weuld duly confider it.

Belides all this, he faid, he durft confidently
affirm, That there 1was not a Precedent fince the
Congueft, of any Dai’s being refufed Bail under
Juch Circumflances as bis were : Whereas, he faid,
the detaining of Mcn under long Imprifonment,
ought either to have exprefs Law for 1t, or a good
Number of Precedents, and 312 good Times to jufbify
it, and not any fingle Inftance or two (if they
could be produced) which he thought they could
not,

And he hoped that Precedent which he had
already menuoned on his Muelty’s Bzhalf, would
be very well confidered, which was, How the
King’s Court fhould keep the King’s Prifoner, and
at the Azig’s Sult, in tae Kizo’s Prifon, with the
Kosg’s Pardon, and agantt the Kig's Will, twice
declared in that Court by his Aitorney-General.

He faid, Le fhould conclude with letting his
Loidhip know, that as the King himfelf had
futhciently declared that there was no Danger in
the letung him  have his Liberty, fo he had fuch
Bail to oifer to his Lordthip, as would fufficient-
ly fausty the World, that he fhould be forth-
coming to aniwer when and where that Court
fhould appomnt; and then, he hoped, the two
chicf Grounds for Detenfion in a Prifon (viz.
The Danger of a Mai's baving his Liberty, and the
Dauger of bis not appearing to abide bis Trial)
would be fully anfivered,

And if it might rot feem too great a Vanity
to fay (altho’ the true Reafon does take away
the Vanity of 1t, becaufe it would not be for his
but for their own Sikes, as what may happen
to be their own Cufes) he faid, he doth believe,
he could have the mujor Part of the Houfe of
Lords to be his Bauil 1n this Cafe, and fome of
thole very Lords who were for the making of
this Ordier, altho® not in that Senfe which would
feem to be put upon 1t. Infomuch, that there
would be no more to fear in the granting him
Bail, than, he hoped there was either Reafon
or Juftice to deny it, And he doubted not, but
he was there before very juft Judges, who would
duly conlider what he had faid.

The Lord Chief Juftice then fpeaking, did
fay, That the Earl of Dawby had ieemed 1o re-
flect upon the Court, as if they had denied him
{uftice in not hearing his Counlel.

Ttren the karl of Dandy defired Leave to in-
terrupt his Lordihip, faying, That his Lordfhip
had muitaken himy, for that he had fud no fuch
Thing of that Court, nor did he mean of that
Court; but faid, 1t was very well known, that
his Countel had been forbid to plead for him in
another Place; which was then acknowledged
by Juthice Joucs to be very true,

The Lord Chuef Juftice then proceeded, and
faid, That for his Lordfhip’s faying they needed
not to fear, becaufe he did believe the areatelt
Part of the lords would be his Baul: That
it was not the fear of another Court that ha

any kind of Influence upon them, or that they
fhould do fuch Things as they teaved to be called
to an Account for; but thar they were to govern
them{elves by the doing of Juilice.

That they had heard his Lordihip with
great deal of Patience; and that he had fijd
many materia] Things, and with much Acutenef; ;
and that they were not {enfelefs of the Hardthip
of his Lordihip’s Cule, and of the Greatnefs of
his Sufferingsg,

That they were likewife {enfible of the King’s
Delires, that his Lordihip thould have no longer
Imprifonment than the Law requires, And he
confeffed, That the King bad done as much as lay iy
bis Power. '

That 1t was not dented, becaufe that Courr
could not bail for T'realon ;5 for that they bad o
Poseer to bail in all Cafes wwhatfoever, if the Court
faw Caufe. Netther would the Indiftment which

-was found againtt him about Sir Edwitinébury God-

fiey, have hindred; nor was it the Orler of ibe
Hoife of Lords which kFudred them : Bur thae
they were to act there according to Law 3 and he
pray’d his Lordfhip to contider, that they could
not relieve him according to Law.

‘That he did agree to fome Things mentioned
by luis Lordthip s and that it was a very hard
Cafe he thould lie fo long in Prifon : Bar here
was the Mifery ; they could orly compafiionate
him; for that his Lordfhip was imprifoned by
an lugher H:nd, and where they had ro Power
to 1niermeadlic,

He mftanced in Inditments for Treafons, and
feveral other grear Crimes, in which dhey could
bail Mens but in this Cale, tbe fupreme Fupif-
aiction of the Nation bad laid therr Hands wpon 1,
which was altended by the Houfe of Commons <vith
an Impeachment.

Whether their Lordfhips had Caufe, or not
Caule, to commit his Lordihup, they could not
nipect 5 but thar they ought to believe that his
Lordfhip was jullly committed ; and that their
Lordihips, 1n their mature Deliberation, would
do nothing unjuftly.

He faid, That they had a JurifdiGion over all
the Courts 1n the Kingdom, (that only excepted. )

And as it wonld be very incongruons for an in-

ferigi Court to bail whoin they bad committed, or

to call their Proceffes in queftion 5 [o would it be
in like mainei for them to do i this Cafe, becaufe
the Lords exceed therr JurildiCtion, and were
above them. He ind alfo, That the Opinion
of all the Judges m Eugland had been taken
therein, and had delivered their Opinions, that
he could not be balled: and that the Truth
wis, his Lordfhip was imprifored by too high a
Court for them to bail him : For that his Lord-
thip ccas wot indefuitely imprifoned, as he had al-
ledged 3 fFor whenevar bis Magefly is pleafed to call

a Pailiameit, bis Lordfpip wonld have Remedy.
That the King bas Power 10 do it when be pleafes;
and for his People’s Geod, no doubt he will,
when he {ees fic: But that at fometime the Cireum-
ftances of State difier from other times, and thar
it may not for fome Space of Time be thoughe
convenient: And though this may  prove mil-
chievous to a fingle terton, or to two or three
Perlons, yet fuch Things muft be endured for
the Good of the Publick, He fud alo, Thar if
that Coii? fooald conisit @ Man for High-Tieofon,
aind the Kimy fooxtd odjevin thean from Time 1o
Laveey dizat Mlan codd ot be boifed witil they [at
LGN 3
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agaii: So that he muft confefs, (as his Lordfhip
had fud) thatas his Cafe did happen, he was under
a femporary indefinite Linpiifonncr?. |

He concluded, with telling his Lordfhip, That
e mnft be contented to wait the King's Pleafuie wobcir
he wonld call @ Parliament. _

That, for his Part, he was before of Opinion,
that they could not bail his Lordlhip, and he was
o fhil.

The Earl of Daidy to 2l thisanfwered, thathe
muft confefs, his Ears did tingle to hear his Lord-
thip fay, That the King bad done as innch as oy is
bis Poweirs when his Majefty is bound both by his
Coronation Qath, and by the Laws, to fee Right
done at all Times to hisSubjeéts ; and he defired to
know, Whether this was not the King's Court, aud
cwhether be had not deputed o Power to them to fec
Right done to all accordingly ?

He faid alfo, That he was now under greater
Amazement than before; fince his Lordfhip had
both granted, That this Court could bail any Trea-
fon, and that the Order of the Honfe of Lowds did
got binder ity which, till now, he confeft, he
had taken to be the only Obftruction to his Li-
berty.

That hc had hoped, he had fatisfied his Lord-
thip, tharaltho® he was imprifon’d by an higher
Hand, yet that the bailing of bim did not interined-
die with the Furifdiction of that bigher Fudicature,
and he had yet heard nothing to thew him that it
did.

That for what his Lordthip had faid of the
Opinion of all the Judges of Eugland, being taken
in his Cafe, he muft needs inform his Lordfhip,
That that was 2 Miltake ; for that the Opinion
of the judges had never been asked in this par-
ticular Chle, faving once, upon petitioning the
King for Liberty to go to Ins Country-Houfe at
Wimbleton, with a Guard, or otherwife, as his
Majefty thould think fit; which Petition was
referred by his Majefty to the Judges: And they
(according to their wonted Prudence and Cau-
tion) did only report, That they thought his
Maujefty could not legally grant the Petitioner’s
Requedt,

That whereas his Lordfhip faid, That he was
0t inaefiustely imprtfoned, for that whenever bis
Majefly is pleafed to call o Parliament, be will bave
Rewedy 5 and that be muft be content to await ithe
King’s Pleafure when be will call a Parliament; He
took thofe to be fuller Arguments than any him-
{clf had made, to prove, That bis Imprifoument
was indefinite, and at the King’s Pleafutre s fo that ke
was u6w wore fully confirid’d than ever 10 be of that
Opinion, andwifl’d that every Man, that beard that
Datirine given for Law, might fully confider-the Con-
Jequences of it

He faid further, That his Lordfhip had miftaken
him, 1n thinking that he had faid he was under a
teinporary idefinite Imprifeninent s for that he had
faid he was under an abfolite indefinite Impiiforiment :
And that his Lordfhip had rather proved him to
be fo, than fhewed any thing to the contrary ;
nor did he know what seimporary dndefinite did
mean,

‘The Lord Chief Juftice then faid, That he was
not a Judge at that ‘I"ime when the Judges Opinj-
ons were asked, but defired his Brother Founes to
relate how it was.

Mr. Juftice Foues then faid, That he remem-
bred the Cafe had been put to the Judges, Whe-
ther the Lords in the Tower might be bailed, and
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that it was then the Opiniori of the Judges that
they mught not: But he faid, he did think the
Earl of Danby was not particularly concerned in
the Queltion at that Time, but that it related to
the Popifh Lords only, and that there was much
Diticrence berwixt his Lordthip’s Cafe and theirs; -
befides, he did think, that was at aTime when there

was a Day appointed for the Meeting of a Parlia-
Ment,

The Larl of Danby then faid, that the Queftion
whicih was put at that Time to the Judges, about
the Popith Lords, did not concern his Cafe at all .
for that 1t differed from theirs in very many Parti-
culars, which he had already mentioned, vz, Of
no Qath againit kim 3 No {pecial Treafon alledg-
ed, e, which he was loth to trouble them with
repeating again; but he fuppofed, that the then
Opinton of the Judges ought not to be made any
Argument againft him.

He faid alfo that the Lord Chief Juftice had
argued very ftrongly for him: TFor that it was
true, That the King might call a Porlicment wwhen
he pleafed 5 but if therefore o Mai it flay in. Pri-
foiz 4ill the King did pleafe 1o do fo, he may (by that
very Argument) lie there all bis Life-time, if the
King pleafes y which confirms what he had been
a great Part of his Time labouring to prove:
And, he faid, he muft confefs, he did expett to
have heard ftronger and more powerful Arguments
to have convinc®d him, that he was in the Wrong:
in what he had faxd ; but that now he was more
encourag’d than before, not to give over a
Caufe which did o much concern every Man in
England,

"The Lord Chief Juftice then faid, That his Lord-
thip was miftaken in believing that that Court did
keep him 1n Prifon; for that he was not kept in
Prifon by them, but by a fuperior Court, which
was too big for them to meddle with, or to examine
what they did.

To this his Lordthip anfivered, That he had
Wrong done him, which muft be done by fome-
body, and that it wasa Maxim of the Law, 754z
the King could do uo Man IWrong, (being advifed by
his Courts) belides, that his Majefty had twice
{hew’d his Confent in that Court to have him bail’d.
Neither could he fay, that the Lords did him
Wrong, becaufe there was nothing in their Order
to hinder his being bailed, (befides their own Prac-
tice to the contrary ) and it feemed now to be
faid, that it was by the Law, and not by the Or-
der, that he was kept a Prifoner. He faid, he
would not fay, that That Court did keep him a
Prifoner, but by fomebody he was fure he was kept
Prifoner; but perbaps it might be by the Stars,
fince he could not find who it was upon Earth thag
did it

He concluded, That if he were legally impri-
fon’d, yet by Magna Charte and the Petition of
Right, &c, it was impoflible for an Euglifbson
to be without fome certain Profpect of Relief in
a reatomable Time, they being to have Juftice
done them by the Law at all Times, and with-
out Delay ; and that he was now in the King’s
proper Court for Juftice ; wherefore, as his Lord-
fhip had given his own Opinion, fo he did defire
that every Judge would be pleated to deliver theirs
feverally,

Then Mr, Juftice Zenes faid, That he was not
reacly to give any prefent Opinion, there having
been fo much, and fome Things fo materially
fard by his Lordthip :  But that for his better Sa-

5 D tisfaction,
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tisfation, he did defire to ask his Lordfhip a
Queftion, ina Point which did much ftick with
him, and would go a great way in guiding his
Judgment; and he was confident, that his Lord-
thip was as able to give him an Anfwer to 1t, as
any Man; which was this: His Lordfhip (he
fard) had been charged with Treafon by an Im-
peachment, and had pleaded a Pardon to the Im-
peachment before the Lords; He faid be took
that Plec to be a tacit Confeffion of Guilt in Law,
(tho’ the Party were never fo innocent) and then
it had been a tacit Pleading of Guilty 5 infornuch,
that he did believe, there could be no Admit-
tance of any fecond Plea; and if fo; hedid con-
fefs, he did not fee how that Court could then
have any thing to do with his Lordfhip in that
Cafe; but it was what he had not well con-
fidered (tho’ at prefent he took the Law to be fo)
and he did defire to hear what his Lordihip did fay
to that?

His Lordfhip anfiered, That he gave him
great Thanks for letting him clear any Objecti-
ons, and giving him Liberty to anfier them as
well as he could. That this indeed was a Que-
ftion of Law, which he was but little vers’d 1n,
but that he was at prefent able to fay, That he
had read the Opinions of fome great Men of the
Law, to be otherwife ; and initanced what the
Lord Cske had faid upon the Cale of Gravefeid,
Bithop of Londein, 7 E. 3. who did get a Writ
of Difcharge to the King’s-Bench, and did not
take a Pardon ; upon which he obferved the faid
Lord Coke to have faid, That it may be he thought
that the taking of a Pardon wonld have implied a
Confeflion of the Fault, and therefore went a new
Ways but that was a Miftake, for that no Man that
25 wife and well advifed, will refufe God and the
King’s Pardon, how often focver be may have it 5 for
there is no Man but offendeth God and the King al-
?;@/i every Day, aind the Paidon is the fafeft and [uref?
Vay,

And tho’ at prefent, he fud, he was not pro-
vided of Precedents in the Cale, yet he remembred
there was a Cafe of a Coiner tried at Durbam upon
a Pardon, where the Pardon proved defeétive, and
yet he was allowed to plead over,

And he told him, That the fame Queftion had
"been moved in the Houfe of Lords upon his own
Cafe, where divers Lords had declared themfelves,
That they boped it fhorld never pafs for Law among/?
hem, that @ Man fhould not bave one Plea for bis
Life s and gave for Reafon, that if a Pardon was
pleaded, and not admitted to be good, then the Pri-
Sfoner bad depended upon what be thousht bad been a
good Plea, but was adjudged by the Court not to
be fo, and then, if be fhould not be admitted to pizad
over, it would e to enfiare a Man's Life, without
giving bim any Pl at all for 7+, And he con-
cluded, faying, He thought that this Queftion
was rather going into the Merits of his Caufe,
tBha'? to what he only demanded, which was but

ail,

Mr. Juftice Dolben then faid, He muft acknow-
ledge there was a vaft Difference betwixt his
Lordlhip’s Cafe, and the Cafe of the Popifh
Lords in the Tower, in many material Particulars,
- which his Lordfhip had mentioned ; and he muff
confefs be thought it one of the hardeft Cafes in Eng-
land, He faid alfo, that he could not but differ
from what his Brother Foses had faid, asto the not
having Liberty to plead over ; for that he was of

from having 2 fecond Plea, if the Pardon thould be
over-ruled ; and (if I did not miftake him) he cited
the Inftance of one Herley’s Cafe, (or fucha Name)
and he faid, that his Lordfhip had faid o many
Things of great Confequence, that he thoughe je
did very well deferve further Confideration 5 but if
he fhould be put to give any prefent Anfwer, he
muit then fay (as my Lord Chief Juftice had done)
that he thought they could not bail his Lordthip;
but he thought 1t might well deferve further Con-
fideration,

Mr. Juftice Raymond then faid, That his Lord-
fhip’s Cafe had fo many weighty Circumftances
in 1t, as ought to make it to be very well confi-
dered, before any Opinion could be delivered in
it.  That for what had been fuid by his Brother
Fones, about the Pleading over or not, he thought
that cid not properly lie before them in that Place:
That his Lordthip had faid fome Things, to which
be thought full Anfiers might be given y but that
he had alfo faid foie things, to which be thought it
would ot be fo eafy to anfwer. That for his Part,
he thought it was a Cafe which might well de-
ferve the Confideration of more of the Judges, be-
twixt this and the next Termy and that he muft
acknowledge he muft further confider it, be.
tore he would prefume to give any Opinion at all
upon it.

A Counfel at the Bar then moved, That a
Rule of Court might be made to bring his
Lordfhip thuther again, the firlt Day of the next
Term.

The Lord Chief Juftice feemed difpleafed with
the Forwardnefs of that Counfel; and the {Earl
of Danby excufed 1t, faying, It was not moved
by his Delire or Direttionsy but faid, That was
all alike to him, whether there were any Rule of
Court or no; for that they were like to be troubled
with him again, and that he fhould not eafily give
over a Caufe, wherein he took the Liberty of
the Subjet in general to be as deeply concern’d
as himlelf, and wherein he had found fo little
to be faid againft him, that he did believe he
fhould be as troublefome to them as ever Judge
Fenkins had been herctofore n the Defence of” Eizg-
Jifh Liberty.

The Lord Chief Juitice then ftanding up, faid,
My Leid, your Lordihip muft for rhe prefent be
content. to be remanded ; and fpeaking to i Licu-
tenant of the Tewer’s Officer, told him, he muft
take back his Prifoner.

And then the Zord Chief Juftice immediately
left the Court,

Fune 29, 1682, Trin. 34 Car. 1L
"HE Earl moved the Courtagain to be bail-
ed; when he {pakeas follows:

My Lord,
%ﬁ / HEN T laft attended your Lordthips, and
this Court, the Judoes (or moft of them)
were of Opimon, That what I then faid to your
Lordfhip might deferve further Confideration ;
and therefore, my Lord, I doubt not, but that
your Lordfhip has been pleafed to confider further

thereof.
At that Time, my Lord, none of the Judges

but your Lordfhip, I think, madc any very par-
ticular Objetions againft my being bailed ; and
if I am able to offer any thing to your Lordfhip
that may give a fufficient Anfwer to thofe Ob-

OPinign, his Lgrdjhip gught not to be debarr’d jE&iDHS, I do not doubt but that your L{erﬂ‘liP
15
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is fo juft, that you will not adhere to any Opi-
nion, only becaufe you have been once of that
Opinion, 1f any thing can be thewed to con-
vince you to change it. In ‘Cﬂnﬁ_denge there-
fore, that I am before a Court, which 1s not to
be influenced by any Body (bow great foeuer,)
nor by any Thing but by the Laws of .E:Hg[ﬂffd,
and by your Qaths to do Juftice according to
thofe Laws; and being well aflured of the Care
which your Lordfhip will always have to main-
rain the Eauglifp Liberties, with which your Lord-
fhip is intrufted by the King, and by the Laws,
and invefied with Power enough by both to de-
fend them at all Times, and again{t all Opinions
whatfoever : My Lord, I fay, preluming, and
not doubting of all this, I fhall take upon me
to add fomething to what I have faid already to
the Objections which were then made by your
Lordfhup, and I hope I fhall have Liberty to
anfiver any new Objeftions that may be now
made.

My Lord, I take it for granted in the firfk
Place, that the Order of the IHoule of Lords is
no Objection again{t my Ball, becaufe your Lord-
thip was pleated to tell me fo the laft Time I
was here; and then I do reckon that thofe Ob-
eCtions which have been made again{t my being
bailed, may be fummed up under thefe three
Heads,

The firft, my Lord, as well as my Memory
will ferve me, was, That as it was incongruous
for a Court which was inferior to this, to bail
apy Man that was committed by this Court, or
to call in queftion the Procefs of this Court; fo
it would likewife be for this Court to do in my
Caic; for that if a Man were committed by this
Court, no inferior Court could bail that Man,
(in cafe his Majefty fhould think fit to adjourn this
Court {rom Time to Time)until this Court thould
it again,

The {econd Objection was, ThatI am not in-
definitely mmprifoned, for that when his Majefty
thall pleafe to call a Parliament, I would have Re-
medy 3 and therefore I muft wait all his Maelty
(hould pleafe to calla Parlament.

The third was, That this Caufe of mine was
depending mn a fuperior Court, which was too big
for this Court, dnd that the fupreme Court having
latd 1ts Hands upon me, theretore thus Court could
not germeddle in that Matter ; my Lord, thele,
to the beft of my Remembrance, are the Sub-
flance of the Objections then made,

The firlt of thefe, I have been told without
Doors, 1s taken to be one of the weightieft Objec-
tions aganit me, and troly 1 fhould be very glad
it {houid prove fo, becaufe { think it may be fo ea-
fhly anfwered.

For inthe firft Place, As to the calling 1n que-
flion the Procefs, I conceive that Bail 1s no calling
in queition any Procefs, and this Court did truly
think ro, when in the Cafe of che Earl of Shaftsbury
they did declare, that had he not come to them
in the Time of an Adjournment of Parliament,
they would have batled im; and, my Lord, as
nothing is more evident, than that this Court
and other Courts do meddle with the Proceed-
ings of that fuperior Court, fo I do not doubt
butro make appear, that they domeddle in a much
aoreater degree than what I delire of Bail 5 and
that the Confequences of what they do every
Day practife, may be far more dangerous to the
Subject, than the bailing ol me can be,
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For that Part of the Objettion that compares a
Commitment of this Court, to 2 Commitment of
the Houfe of Lords, and doth from thence con-
clude, that becaufe an inferior Court to this cannot
bail a Man who is committed by this Court, there-
fore this Court cannot bai} 2 Man who is commit-
ted by a fuperior Court:

This {feems fo very unequal a Comparifon, and
the Inequality of 1t fo obvious, that truly I
thought 1t had not needed any Anfwer ; for [
would defire no other Aniwer from your Lord-
fhip, (if you can give it me,) than what an -
ferior Court may give to any Perfon that {hall
come before them with the like Requeft: For
they may give him good and {ufficient Realons
why they do not bail him; they may not only
tell the Party that he 15 committed by the fuperi-
or Court of the Kiyr’s-Beweh, and that he muft
oo thither for his Relief's but they can give him
good Reafons why he mutt do fo; fer they can
tell him that the Court of King’s-Bench will fit
next Zerw, they can tell him when that Terin
will begin, and they can tell him how long that
Term will 1aft, and they can well him that the
Court of King’s-Bench cannot be diffolved as the
Parllament may be: And, my Lord, this takes
away all that Prifoner’s Pretences, to fay that he
is an indefinice Prifoner; and if your Lordthip
can give me any fuch Anfwers as thele, I fhall
be as well fatished as that Man ought to be,
but if no fuch certain Anfivers as thefe can be
given, then I muft beg Pardon, to tell your Lord-
fhips, that it cannot be dented, but that my Im-
prifonment 1s indefinite, and 1f it be fo, I do as an
Englifman affirm, that no Law in Lzgland can
fupport 1t.

For the faying that 1f the King fhould adjourn
this Court from Time to Time, the Party could
not be batled ull fuch Time as tis Court fhould
fit acain; my Lord, If this fhould be admited
as a reafonable Suppoflition (which under Fa-
vour, I do not think your Lordthip your felf
does take it tobe) yet it is but an Adjournment
that is objefted, and if the Parliament were but
under an Adjournment, I would not have trou-
bled your Lordfhip: But this 1s not the Cafe;
for though fometimes the King- may adjourn this
or any other Court of Wefiminfer, by realon of
fome extraordinary Occafion, as mn Cafe of a Pe-
ftilence or fomething of thar Nature, (and I
know there have been Precedents of 1t} yer, my
Lord, thefe are upon extraordinary Occafions,
and it is not to be thought, nay 1 am very cer-
tain, that his Majefty will never do any thing
that fhall deprive his Subjeéts of any of thofe
Rights the Law allows them; fo that in one
Cafe the Law obliges that the Teras fhould be
kept four Timesa Year, and that then the Court
fhall fit if there be not extraordinary Occaftons
to hinder it; but in the other Cafe of a Par-
liament, the King lies under no Obligation, nor
Reftraint, whether he fhall call, or whether he
will call it; and therefore the Inequality of the
Comparifon is fufficiently apparent: And, belides
this, it is as unknown how long a Patlament
thall fir, as when it 1s to fit; Infomuch chat I
take all this but to have offered additional Ar-
guments on my Side, and fhews how little the
Arguments are that can be brought againit me ;
and I think it makes out to me and to all Englfb-
men, that no Man ought to lie under fuch an in-
definite Reftraint as Ido:  And truly, my Lord,

5D 2 I thought




756 78. Proceedings againft Tho.E. of Danby Trin. g1 CarIL

I thought I fhewed more RefpeCt to the Court,
in giving a more general Anfiver to this Objection
(as I did before) than I can do now by being fo
particular.

For the {econd Objection, @iz, That I am not
indefinitely imprifoned, for that when the King
will pleafe to call a Parliament, I would have a Re-
medy there, and therefore I muft wait till the King

will call a Parliament.
Truly, my Lord, perhaps your Lordihip may

know the Mind of the King or his Minifters
better than I do; but if you do not, I am fure
no Man but the King can tell whether I fhall
have Remedy then or noj for by the Experience
of three Parhaments that have been called {ince
I was a Priforer, it hath appeared that I have
had no Remedy: Therefore I fhould be very
olad to fee this Matter any better proved, than it
hath been, that I am not indefinitely mmprifoned ;
but if this cannot be proved neither, but that I
muft wait till the King fhall pleafe to call a Par-
liament; and when he fhall call a Parliament, I
fhall be no more certain of my Remedy than hi-
therto I have been, truly then I fhall need no
other Council but your Lordfhip to prove I am
under an indefinite Imprifonment; and that any
Man i Lugland may be fo, when the King pleafes ;
and how any Doctrine can be more arbitrary than
that, or lefs to be defended by Law, when ever
that Matter fhall be brought into queftion, others
than either your Lordfhip or I muft be Judges,
and thofe who will be Parties fo much concern-
ed 1n this Quellion for their own Sakes, as well as
the Publick, that I believe there 15 fmall Doubt
to be made how they will then decide this Que-
ftion.

My Lord, If it fhould then be found that this
would hold Water, and fliould be maintained
for goed Doctrine s truly, 1 think, there would
need no other arbitrary Power to be fet up to
make Men quit this Country: Foras to any Man’s
Liberty, it might be equal to him whether he
lived under the 7icich Government, or under the
Grand Signior’s Government, as under a Govern-
ment fo arbitrary as this Doétrine alone would
make ours; and therefore I make no doubt, my
Lord, but that you will be very careful how you
aive it us for Law,

As I fhould be very forry that there fhould be
any fuch arbitrary Doctrine taught to fet the King’s
Prerogative higher or greater than it ought to be
by Law, or than this King defires, {o I thould be
as forry that the King fhould not have that Right
which duly belongs to him, which is a Right and
Power at all Times to adminitter Juftice to his
Subjects, and which I rever heard denied to the
Kings of Eiglard, nor I hope I never fhall;
And, my Lord, I muft fay, that the Preferva-
tion of that Right ro the King, would take away
all Pretences for any of thefe dangerous and
new Doctrines, for if the King may adminifter
Juftice at all Times to his Subjeés, (as it hath
been the Care of Parliaments, and by Magna
Charta 1t felf that he fhould) there is no Reafon
lett for any of thole Things to be ftarted or put
upon us,

"Tis true, indeed, that the King cannot make
Laws without a Parliament; but I did never hear
i my whole Life, but that he could adminifter
Juftice without his Parliament 3 and if he could
not, his Subjects would be in a miferable Con-
dition 3 for furely it would be a very hard Cafe,

if his Subjects could have no Hopes of being
righted by their Sovereign’s Authority, cither by
himfelf, or in his Courts, in all Cafes, and at all
Times,

The Houfe of Peers in Parhament (us true) is
his greateft Court, but they [it only by Virmue
of the King"s Writ, and if the King fhould die
(which I hope I fhall never live to fee) they
would not then be a Court of Juftice, nor any
Court at all; and therefore, my Lord, in this
Queftion, the Royal Authority and the Subjects
Liberties are fo involved, that what Judgment fo-
ever fhall be given, muft pafs upon the one, as
well as upon the other, and cannot poflibly be
divided.

The third Objection that was made, is, That this
Caufe of mine is depending in Parliament, which
1s a fuperior Court to this ; and that the fupreme
Court having lud its Hands upon me, therefore
this Court cannot intermeddle.

My Lord, There 1s no Man living that hath
a greater Reverence for that fupreme Court, than
I have, or that will go further than T will, to
defend 1t, in all the Rights and Privileges that
belong to it by Law: Nay, my Lord, 1T have
fo much a greater efteem for that Court, be-
caufe I am fure it will never fuffer me, nor any
Man living to go unpunifl’d, that fhall trani-
grels the Law, or that thall go about any way
to make them Tranfgreffors of the Law, or to
make them fuch as would be Reftrainers of the
Englifh Liberties, beyond what the Law permits,
They have fhewed the contrary, when it was
offered to them by a Bill from the Houfe of
Comimons, that they would have no fuch abfo-
Jute Authority put into their Hands over the
Liberties of the Subjeét, but did then refufe ir;
{o that to fay, that fupreme Court hath Iaid irs
Hands upon any Man’s Liberty in England, fur-
ther than the Law permits, would be to put an
unjuft Odium upon the Houfe of Lords to the
Nation, Inftead of doing them Right 5 and there-
fore I muft needs fay, that in this particular Cafe
of my own, I find only the Word and Name of
fupertor Court to be made ufe of againft me, but
nothing in Reality 5 jult as they were pleafed in
the Houfe of Commons to ufe the Word traiter-
oufly, in the Articles againft me, when there was
not a Tittle of Trealon m them, only that by
calling 1t Treafon, 1t might ferve to lay me where
I am.

But, my Lord, I know no Court that is fu-
pertor at this Time to this Court where I am
now, and how any thing can be faid to be de-
pending in a Court that hath no Being, I think
will not very ealily be defended trom Nonfenfe,
without having the Matter extremely well ex-
plamed ; and whenever that fuperior Court fhall
have a Being, my Caufe will then be before it,
by my being baled to appear there,  And for
faying, 1t nas laid 1ts Hand upon this Cafe of
mine, it ought to be fhewn In what the fuperior
Court hath laid 1ts Hand upon me, fo as to keep
me from Bail, when neither that fuperior Court
it felf (though 1t were willing fo to do) is able
to give me any Relief, nor that I can get to
be Tried or Difcharged elfewhere, nor have any
Time prefixed when that fuperior Court fhall

Sit; as if there were no Juftice left in ng-

land,
But if it be fo, that I fhall neither be Bailed,
nor have it fhewed, what Hand the fuperior
Court
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Court has laid upon me to hinder it, then truly
any Man may be (0 concluded, and the Argu-
ment may be decided, by the Will and Pleafure
of thofe who have Men in their Power; but the
Shadows of Things, when thf:re 15 no Subftance
n the Argument, will not fatisfy reafonable Men
for an Anfwer, why fo publick a Grievance fhall
qot be remedied; and I am confident, that the
Superior Court it felf will never fulfer its Name
0 be made ufe of, nor themfelves to be made
Propertics, to fupport fuch a Grievance as may
concern not only themfelves, but the whole Na-
tion, both in this Age, and to all Pofteritics;
and by which, not only Magna Ciarta, and the
Perition of Right, would be evaded, burt the late
A& of Habeas Corpus may alfo be eluded by this
Device; and the Parliament (when 1t Thall mect
again} will find, that inftead of fﬁcu_ring_ their
Liberties, they have only been hedging 1n the
LCuckow: for that there 1s now a new way
found out, by which all Ads for our Liberties
may be made of no Effect : And this cannot be
contradicted, unlefs (as fome would fancy) the
King could not Impeach as well as the Com-
mons; but there are fo many Evidences to the
contrary of that, as there is no room left for the
Difpute : And amonglt the Precedents of that
kind, there is one (becaufe it hath a double Con-
fequence) that I do defire to put your Lordihip
in mind of,

It is in the 5° H. 4th, in the Records of the
Tower. There you will find, that the Commons
came to petition the King, that his Majefty would
be pleated, not to Impeach the Archbifthop of
Cantcrbury, the Earl of Noithwnberland, and fome
others that were at that time accufed for being in
the Confederacy of Sir Henry Picicy, and the King
arants their Requeft, and does agree he would not
Impeach them.

I have quoted this the rather, becaufe of the
double Precedent that 1s 1 this Cafe; for again
the fame Day the Commons came (after his Ma-
jelty had granted their former Requelt) and did
turther Petitton his Majelty, that he would be
pleafed to aflirm thofc Lords (whom he had pro-
mifed he would not Impeach) to be his true
Liege-men; and the King did grant that alfo;
by which it was then talen for granted, thar he
had fet them Refi 1 Curia, (even though they
were In that Confpiracy with Sir Hewry Pierey)
and, my Lord, 1 give you this Inftance, that
vou may obferve two things by 1t: Firft, That
rhe Commons did Petition the King not to Im-
peach 3 and when he had granted that, 1t appears
aifo, that by the King's declaring them to be
his erue Licge-men, it was by the Commons con-
ceivedy that the King did fet them Redis in Curia;
by which tc dces appear, what great Regard the
loute of Commons had to the King’s bare Af-
srmation, of their being his true Liege-men ;
amd I hope, that neither this King’s Power nor
Credit fhall be lefs with his own Court, than that
Airg's was with his Houfe of Commons; and I
. fure, no King's Affirmation can be greater,
or more publick, both to his Parliament and
ningdom, of anv Man’s being a true Liege-man,

‘0 it thar old Word) than the King’s hath been
‘oncerning me. -

My Lord, there are fome Men, very unable to
dtitnguiih (tho’ they would) between Sound and
00 Senfe, und there are a great many, that are as
willing ro ler Men remain under thelr Miftakes ;

for High-Trealon.

757

but fince it weighs a great deal with fome who do
not very rightly diftinguith, it will be of abfolute
Neceflity for me to explain what it is, that is meant
by a Cafe depending in Parliament, when there is
no Parliament: This will be beft thewn by an In-
ftance in a Writ of Error depending in Parlia-
ment, in which Cafe, when the Parliament is fit-
ting, and {o the Writ is really and truly depend-
ing in the Court that is in Being, there can (du-
ring fuch Sitting) be no Execution fued upon the
Judgment, But, my Lord, no fooneris the Par-
llament diffolved, but Experience fhews, that Exc-
cution may be fued, and Goods levied;, and the
Properties of Mens Lftates changed ; and there-
fore it 1s by this fufficiently plain, that Depending
is not then meant in the fime Senfe, or in the
fame Manner, as 1t was meant when the Parliament
was actually ficting ; for then there could have been
no Execution fued,

Now, my Lord, when a Parliament fhal] meet
again, what does it meet with? Ir mects, it is
true, with the fune Caufe agamn, (as to the Merits)
but 1t mects 1t quite altered as to other Circum-
ftances, wiz. as to the Execution that hath been
oranted by an inferior Court, in the Interval of
Parliament. And, as to the Change of Property,
for a Man’s Eftate (and perhaps of great Value)
may happen to be in another Man’s IHands at the
fame Time by the Executton ; fo that when a Par-
lrament doth meet again, it doth meet, it Is true,
with the fame Caufe (as to the Merits) but indeed
as to nothing elfe,

And thercfore, by this, 1t 1s clear, that a Par-
llament does only expelt, when ir meets agatn,
to meet with the Caufe in the fame State (a3 to
the Merits of the Caufe) and doth not at all
meddle or concern 1t felf to find Fault with thole
fuppletory Adls that have been done by an 1n-
ferior Court in the Interval, which was only to
prevent Failure of Juftice, but it commends them
for not having delayed Juftice, and thar Men
thould not be kept too long out of ther Rights,
(even tho’ there may have been prodigious Wrong
done to the Parties, if the Judgment have been
erroncous) for that the fuperior Court will ar Jaft
fee to the Error, if any have been committed by
the Judement of the infertor Court, and will
cnter upon all as entire again, (as to its Merits)
as if nothing had been done by the Inferior
Court; fo that in Reality, that which can only
reconcile the Senfe of being Depending in Par-
liament, when the Parliament is diffolved, 15 this
lalt Order of the Houfe of Lords, which de-
clares Impeachments, &¢. to be continued, not-
withftanding Diffolution. For by Virtue of this
laft Order, the Lords do proceed upon the Caufe,
without beginning De ngve, or having any new
Writ or new Impeachment brought up to them:
But this is new Dotrine, and never practifed
till of late; however, fince they have done fo,
in this Senfe, and in this only, a Caufe may oe
faid to be depending; and fo it was adjudged,
in that {ingle Inftance of the Trwl and Con-
demnation of my Lord Stafford ; but there they
procceded to the Merits of the Caufe, and the
eried and condemned my Lord Stafford; and there
is no manner of Doubt, but by Virtue of their
late Order, they may proceed upon me when
they fhall meet, as they ihall think fit, notwith-
ftanding my having been bailed ; for'l defire not
to have the Merits of my Caufe removed from

before the Lords, if I might, but that they [ng}r
0
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do with me as they pleafe, even to Condemnation,
if they fhall have Caufe, which I hope in God
they never fhall.

Therefore, I fay, my Lord, in this Senfe only
which T have explained, a Caufe may be fud to
be depending, though a Parliament is not In be-
ing; but I will challenge the ableft Lawyer, with
all the Sophiftry he can ufe, together with his
T.aw, to fhew me how he can poffibly diftinguilh
the Cafe of Writs of Error, from the Cale of
Impeachment, or wherein they differ, as to their
depending, in the Intervals of Parliament; and I
fikewife challence him to make appear, how
Bail is any other than fuch a fuppletory Act, to
relieve a Man from being kept too long from his
Liberty, as the granting of Execution in the In-
terval, 1s to relieve 2 Man from being too long
kept out of his Money or Liftate; for that the Me-
ris of the Caufe, both in the one Cafe and the
other, remains entire for the Parliament to recom-
mit upon (if they fee Caufe) as well as to reverfe the
Tudgment, and all the Proceedings, upon the
Writ of Error.

Where is then the Difference, my Lord? if
there be any Difference, 1 think it lies only in
this, that in one Cafe there may be an erroneous
Judgment, and a Man may be aimoft undone and
tuined, by being wrongfully difpoflels’d of his
Fftare (be it never o great;) but i this Cafe, the
fuppletory Act which is dore to admit to Bail; can
only be to cafe a Man from his too long or per-
haps perpetual Imprifonment, and can hurt no Bo-
dy, nor take no Man’s Liberty from him, to grant
Liim his; but yet this muft be thought an hard Cale,
and the other a very eafy one, and fit to be practi-
fed every Day.

My Lord, if the Law has taken care, and
made fuch Provifion, that a Man fhall not be
kept too long out of 1ol in NMoney, or out of
40/, a Year 1n Land, then it would be ftrange,
that the Law fhould not have made Provilion,
that 2 Man fheuld nor be kept too long out of
his Liberty, and when there is no Profpect of his
having it.

Befides, ina Wit of Error the Judgment given
is controverted, and the Power of awarding Exe-
cution is fufpended upon that very account, becaufe
the Judgment of the Court is in queftion, and the
Juttice of it is brought in difpute, whether they
have judged right or wrong.

Now, my Lord, if the Diffolution of a Parlia-
ment can reftore the Judges Power in the Interval
of Parliament, fo as to award an Execution upon
a Man’s Fflate, where the Property {hall be chang-
ed and aleercd, and norwithitanding their Jultice
was bronght in queftion, and that they may have
done great Wrong to the Party by their Judgraent,
and yer we are to believe, that the fame Diffoluzion
cannot reflore the Power of the Judges fo as to
give a Man 2 litle Eale from a Confinement with-
in four Walls, where the Juftice of no Court 1s
queftion’d nor arraigned, nor no Wrong can have
been done to any body; But on the contrary, does
Righe to the King, who by his Confent fhews his
\Will to have a Man Bailed ; and great Right to the
Subject, who ought to be delivered from the Dan-
aer of an indefinitc Imprifonment which is fo con-
trary to Law: Then indeed there muft be fome

Infallibilicy fuppoftd in that Chair, which fhall -

maintain fuch Doctrine, and muft be fubmitted to,
with the fame Implicite Faith, which they do who
can belicve Infallibility.

- -

But for my Part (who can believe Infallibilivy
in no kind upon Earth) I confefs I muft have my
Reafon better fatisfied, before I can any more
believe this Expofition of the Law, than I can
believe thofe infallible Mens Expolitions of the
Gofpel.

My Lord, I hope I have made plain to your
Lordfhip, what it s that 1s meant, or can be
underftood, by a Caule depending in Parliament
when there 1s none, and how and 1n what Senfe
only it can be underflood to be fo depending;
and it is as plain, that the Buling of me is no in-
termeddling with the Merits of the Caufe in Par-
liament, but on the contrary, an evident Affirma.
tion of the Jurildiction of that Supreme Court;
and if I cannot be admitted to Bail in fome other
Court than the FHoule of Lords, 1t is contrary to
what my Warrant of Commitment nmnplies, by
which I am committed only till I am diicharged by
due Courfe of Law, for which I am properly in
this Place,

My Lord, it cannot be meant that Bal can
be any more than a fuppletory ACt (7ropter ref u-
ciffitatein) and for the Lalc of the Subjedt; and it
is impoflible for that old Rule, of Sefus Populs
Supreina Lex ¢ffo, to be more aptly applied in any
Cafe in the World than in this, that concerns every
Man in Easland in his Liberty : For fhould 1t be
otherwife, pray fee what the Confequence of this
Doétrine would be; that becaufe a Superior Court
which is not now 1n being (nor hath it in 115 own
Power to be fo) hath committed a Man, therefore
he cannot be admitted to Baily; what fhould be-
come of Men, if after the Diffolation of a Par-
liament, there can be no Poffibility of having Ju-
ftice done them ?

Nay farther, if it fhould be granted that this
Court cannot intermeddle, becaufe the Superior
Court has committed, by that Doctrine it would
not matter whether the Commitment were for
Treafon, or for the fmalleft Quarrel or Mifde-
meanor, for which a Man might happen to be
in Prifon ar the time of a Diffolution of a Parlia-
ment; nor would it be any matter, whether the
Order of the Heufe of Lords were revoked or
not,

For it is an Order of a Superior Court, which
will thll be a Superior Court though the Order
were burnt, and yet that muft be enough to keep
one in Prifon by this Rule, for that there would
{till be no other Remedy, though the Order were
repealed.

Bur, my Lord, the Warrant of Commitment
fhews the Lords Direttions to be contrary to
this Opinion, for I can fhew feveral Inftances of
Warrants which run, fome to be kept *#// fur-
ther Order of that Houfe, others to be kept 4l
they fhall be difcharged by the Honfe, and others
to be kep: 4ill the Pleafure of the Houfe be fuither

fonified, and others during the Pleafure of that

Houfes But my Warrant s, *4ll I am difcharged
by due Conrfe of Law: Now I doubt not, but if
the Lords had thought thofe Words had not
given a Latitude for Relief elfewhere, they would

have worded the Warrant otherwife, and inftead
of faying by due Conrfe of Laow, would have fud,

“ill 1 were difcharged by that Houfe, 11 the Lords
had thought there had been no other Remedy by
Law, but by that Houfe. But, my Lord, the
Lords will not aét any thing above the Law,
they will keep every thing within the compais

of the Law; and 1 am fure that there cannot be
L
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2 better Example to follow, than the Example
of thofe wife and great Men of that great Court,
and I defire it may be followed, and not contra-
difted. _ _

For by this Doclrine, truly, my Lord, Li-

berty it felf would not only be uterly loft; but
ro make the Riddle the greater, and the Manner
more ridiculous, it would . be loft; and yet no
Body invade it: For the King he confents to my
Bail (if he hath any Power) fo he does not in-
tend to deprive me of my Liberty ; The Lords
would for their own Sakes and Jullice Sake (if 1t
were in their Power to meet, and have Time to
fit fo long as to take the Cafe of a fingle Perfon
into Coniideration) do me Juﬂice,_either in dif
charging or trying me; So that i my Cafe,
here Is a Subjett of Eugland imprifoned by no
Body, and yet no Power upon Earth can relieve
me. Shew me an Example of this inany Nation
under the Sun, but this, that there wants 2 Power
in the Government to relieve a Prifoner at all
times (if it would) and I will be fati'sﬁcd; Nay
my Lord, the very Spanifb lnquifition is more rea-
{fonable than this, for though the Caufe may be
unjuft that they commit a Man for, and their
Ulage of him may be very fevere while he 1s there,
yet the Juguifitors (if they pleafe) can deliver him;
there is no Prifoner in the World but can be deli-
vered by fome Power or other, but me; and my
T.ord, thisisa Rule that muft be for every Man
in England as well as me, and I am not {o inconfi-
derable but that my Fate may be made a Prece-
dent of Note.
- 'The Opinions, my Lord, that were gtven by the
Judges in the Cafe of Ship-money, appear far more
tolerable, in my Opinion, than this; for I know
there 1s no Man but had rather have a Sentence
pafe’d agninft his Eftate (which he may recover
again) than have it pafled againft his Liberty,
which he may never have, and which 1s more va-
luable than any Eftate.

Befides, where is the Juftice of the Nation ? and
what a Shame would it be to our Laws and to our
Government; that it could be faid of this Coun-
try, thata Man nught be punifhed by Imprifon-
ment in England (where the Government is not Ar-
bitrary) for feven Years or more, and at laft be
found Guilty of no Offence? and what Satisfaction
could be in Nature given to that Man? [fay, if
that Man could have a Crown given him, it conld
not make him Satisfaction for the Lofs of his Li-
berty all lus Life, which may be the Confequence
of this Doétrine; and, my Lord, there are Pre-
cedents good ftore where Men have foffered fuffi-
ciently for therr Judgments againft the Liderty and
Property of the Subjeli, but I never found one that
fuffered in the Defence either of the ane or the
other.

1 have thewn, Ithink, fufficiently what can be
meant either in my Cafe or any other, by a Caufe
depending in Parlicineirt, when there 1s no Parlia-
sieit 5 as alfo how much Inferior Courts do meddle
with things of much an higher Nature, than Bail

will De; infomuch that truly I fhould think it

might be fufficient to fay no more than I have faid :

But I do not know what may be fufficient in my
Cafe; and therefore, my Lord, you muft pardon

me, if I doputyou in mind of a Cafe wherein -

you have gone to the Merits of the Caufe it felf,
when Depending in Parliament.

It is Fitz-Hairis his Caie 5 and I know very well
what Anfwers will be given me; as that that was

for High-Treafon, 750

a Cafe rejected by the Lords, and that it was not
the fame Treafon for which -he was Impeached,
and other things that I could mention ; but I know
your Lordfhip will fpeak by the Record of the
Court (of which I have here a Copy) and the
Record 1s that which muft fatisfy the World an .
hundred Years hence, by which it will appear to
them, that he was Impeached, and Tried, and
Condemned, depending that Impeachment; for
he made that his Pla, and Mr. Attorney Ge-
neral demurring to it, the Court muft rake the
Matter pleaded, as confefied and allow’d ; and
this being {o, I thould think there thould be no
Scruple made in the Point of Bail; or if there
fhould, there muft certainly be very great Hard-
fhip in onc Cafe or the other, and muft be very dif-
ficule to be anfivered.

But to conclude, Befides all this, I am the
King’s Prifoner, and I have the Kiug’s Pardon
and 1if I cannot get to be Bailed, there is not on-
ly a Defett of Jurifdi€tion in this Court, but a
Detect of the Regal Authority and Power of the
Kings of Eugland to adminifter Juftice to their
Subjects; which was never heard of, I think, and
I hope I {hall never live to hear of it (efpecially
from the King’s Supreme Ordinary Court of Ju-
ftice.) And that, my Lord, that muft make this
Cafe the more unhappy at this time is, that we
live in Days wherein his Majefty’s Prerogatives
are fo much brought in queftion: For what Pre-
rogative hath He which is more undoubted than
his Power of Pardoning? and yet you fee thac
brought in Queftion to the utmoft, and thofe
that are the ableft Men that fpeak againft that
Power, do laugh at the little {mall Triflers who
object, that the Kizg may Pardon before Impeach-
ment, and after the Sentence be given, but not
betwixt thofe Times; They laugh at this, and
tell you that he cannot Pardon at ally and 1t is ea-
fily perceived that if they conld reach their De-
fign, they would have 1t underftood, That T#cafor
may be commutted againit the People, and by thac
Dorine another High Court of Juftice may be
fet up, and the King may be Tried by his People,
as well as he can Try them. My Lord, thereare
a great many Confequences attending upon that
Doérine, which I am fure will ne’er be counte-
nanced by the Azug’s Courts; but I fhall not won-
der that fuch Men as thefe be trying their Pro-

jeéts, and think themfelves in the Right to do {o,

if they find his Majefty canrot do fo much as a
lefler Aét of Grace for his Prifoner, which 1s but
to give lum Eafe from too long or perhaps a per-
petual Imprifonment ; forif he hath not Power fo
much as to Bail his own Prifoner, 1 {hall not won-
der if others queftion whether he hath Power to
Pardon him,

My Lord, I have feen fuch Keepers of our
Liberties, from whom I fhould expeét fuch Doc-
trines; but I thank God that by our Laws the
King is the Keeper of our Liberties, and there-
fore T hope I fhall not hear any fuch Dodlrine
by which he can only be the Keeper of us In
Prifons, but fhall have no more Power than
another Man, to fet his Prifoncr at Liberty, al-
though his Will be only to give his ifoner
Fafe (as the Law intends) aganft Indefinite Im-
prifonment.

Lafly, My Lord, If I fhould die in Prifon
with this Pardon by me, which I have fhew’d
your Lordihip; or fuppofe that the Houfe of
Commons (if it were but with a Delign to de-

{troy
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ftroy the Pardon) would give {fome other Reafon
than the Pardon (as being better fatished con-
cerning me, or any thing elfe) why they would
profecute me no more (of which there be divers
Precedents.) What 2 Wound would thereby be
oiven to the King’s Prerogative? and pray how
is it poffible almoft to give it a greater Blow than
this would be?

What a Precedent would 1t be to Pofterity to
fay, thata Man had lain three, four or five Years
or mere in Prifon notwithftanding a Pardon, that
fignified nothing all that time? for that the King
would have Eafed him if he could, and hath fhew-
ed his Court that he would do fo, but was not able
{o much as to have him Bailed ? would not this
put that Prerogative in great hazard ? I confefs I
do wonder that fome others befides your Lordthip
have not taken more care of the Prerogative of the
King, for their own Sakes as well as the King’s;
For it would be very convenient it Should be ufe-
ful, if ever it fhould become neceflary; And it 1s
not improbable, but if the King fhould hereafter
find fuch a Prerogative diminifh’d, he would not
only refleét upon his Lofs, but upon thole who
might have advifed better, or might have better
defended this Prerogative of the King; And for
the Subjets Libertics, there will never be Eyes
wanting to inquire after any Invafion which fhall
be made of that kind.

Upon the whole, I have troubled your Lord-
fhip too long, but it hath been upon a Subject
of the greateft Concern to Engliftinen: 1 have
fuch Bail to offer to your Lordthip, as I am {ure

cannot be denied, and I am in my own Con-
fcience fufficiently fatisfied, that I am detained a
Prifoner from Bail, neither by the King, by the

@@@%’ﬁ@@ﬁ@% $BE

Ne19)

Lords, nor by the Laws; and thercfore, my Lord
I do humbly pray your Lordfhip you would plcaﬁ;
to accept my Bail, and as I here offer your Lord-
fhip my Pardon again, fo I again pray the Bene-
fit of 1t, and [ defire your Lordfhip it may be
read n Court,

The Lord Chief Juftice then f] poke, and fo did
all the reft of the Judges, (upon the Earl’s defiring
that they would feverally deliver their Opinions)
And the Lord Chief Juftice, and Mr. Juftice Do/-
dein, did deliver their Opinions, that the Earl could
not be relieved by that Court.  Mr. Juftice Fores
concluded his Difcourfe with faying, that he could

not give his Judgment that the Earl fhould be
Bailed AT THAT TIME. Mr. Juftice Ray-
mond did fay, he could not fee but that there would
be a failure of fuftice if fo be his Lordfhip fhould
not have Liberty upon Bail; but that he had not
time to view Precedents, and therefore it would

be very unfit for him at prefent to be pofitive in
what he did fay.

And then the Lord Chief Juftice did tel} the
Earl, he muft be contented to be Remanded.

But afterwards, on the laft Day of Hilary Term,
1683, the Judges delivered their Opinions feveral-
ly, and were Unanimous, that the Earl - ought
to be Bail’d. And accordingly Bail was taken in
40000/, his Lordfhip in a Recognizance of
20000/, and the Dukes of Somerfet and Albemarle,
and the Earls of Oxferd and Cheflerficld in 50001
a piece upon condition, that the Earl of Dandy
do appear in the Houfe of Lords the next Seffion
of Parliament, and not depart without Jeave of
that Court. ‘
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LXXIX. TZhe Trial of RosERT GREEN, HENRY
BERRY, and LAWRENCE HirL, * ar the Kings-
Bench, for the Murder of Sir EpmunDBURY Gob-

FREY, Feb. 10, 1678. Hil. 31 Car. Il

aasoqy O Wednefday the sth of February, 1678,
VINNGD  Robert Green, Henry Berry, and Law-
- % rence Hill, were brought from His Ma-

-'2@ jefty’s Goal of Nesugate, to the Bar of
“ the Court of King’s-Bench, to be Ar-

raigned for the Murder of Siv Edmundbury Godfrey,
upon an Indiétment found by the Grand Jury for
the County of Middlzfex, on Monday the Morrow
of the Purification of the Blefled Virgin Mary;
and the Court proceeded thus:

2 i

Mr. Juftice #77/d Arraign’d the Prifoners.

Clerk of the Crown. Robert Green, hold up thy
Hand; Henry Berry, hold up thy Hand; Law-

rence Hill, hold up thy Hand. Which they feve-
rally did.

You fiand Indifled by the Names of Robert
Green, late of the Parifh of §t¢. Mary le Strand,
in the Counly of Whddlefex, ZLasbourer; Henry
Berry, lote of the fome Parifh aid County, La-
boureirs And Lawrence Hill, lote of the fame
Parifh and County, Labouiers for that you three,
together with Girald, Zate of the fame Pa-
rifb and Comnty, Clorky Dominick Kelly, /late of
the fame Parifh and County, Clerk; end Phillibert
Vernatt, late of the fame Parifh and County, La-
bourer, who are withdrawn: Not baving the Fear
of God before your Eyes, but being inoved and feduced

by the Inftigation of the Devil, the 12th Day of

Y This was nonv done or purpofe to &¢ a Precedent for the four PopifbLords, auhe avere Bail'd ont that fame Day.

® Burn, Hifl. own Times, Vol L. p. 445.
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O2ober, 71 the Thirtieth Xear of the Rign of our
ysvereizin Lord Charles the Second, by the Grace of
od, of England, Scotland, Ii'rance cnd Ireland,
Fing, Defender of the Feaith, 8c. at the Paiifh of
8¢, Mary le Strand afarq/&fd, i and sporr Sir Bd-
mundbary Gedtrey, Raght, in the Peace of Ged,
eind of vir faid Soverergis Lovd the Kizg, then end
theve being, felonionfly, woluntartly aid of your Ma-
lice aforcibeught, did mate oid offanly and that
then the ofoiefaid Robert Green, a corfair Linei
Heidlerchief of the Volue of Six-penee, about the
Neck of the faid Sir Ldmundbury Gedfrey, thex
gid there felonionfly, wilfully, and of thy Molice
a g;'ﬁ';’,{raf:“g;}f, (:J;i’f;(f fﬁ[;?! and _ﬁfﬁc‘ﬂ; a:xd thai thou
the feid Robert Green, with e Hendkerchicf
eforefeid, by 1hee the Jaid Robwert Green, i aid
about the Neck of the faid Sir Edmundbury God-
frey, in mawnz oid form aforclaid, folaed and faftzi-
ed, then aind there kirr the jaid Sir Edmundbury
Godfrey d'dft chege aid firangle, of which fuid
choking and flrangling of bim the jaid Sir Edmund-
bury Godirey, i wmaiitcr aind forin aforefaid, be
the faid Sir Edmundbury Godlrey then and there
iftanty died : Aud that you ibe feid Henry Berry
aind Lawrence Hill, together with th: faid ————
Girald, Dominick Keclly, and Philltbere Vernate,
then aud there felononfly, voluntarily, aid of your
Malice afcrethousht, were prefent, aiaiig, abetting,
coniforiing  and  mainteinng the afvicjaid Robert
Green, the aforcfaid St Edmurdbury Godfrey
i mamer aid forie oforefaidy  feleiionfl,  voluin-
tarily, and of bis Malice cforetbought, to Kill aind
Murders and fo you the faid Robert Green, Henry
Berry, and Luvrence Hl, togecler <with the faid
——— Girald, Dom.nick Kolly, aind Philliberc
Vernatt, i saer and forin afoicfaid, the afeie-
faid Sir Edmusabury Gudirey, felonionfly, wiifully,
aid of your Vizlice aferethonght, did Kl and M-
der, againf; the Peace of oui Severcigi Lovd ibe Kiug,
bis Crowir aind Digrity,

How Ly’ft uiow, Robert Greenr, art thou Guilty
of this Felony and siurder wacereot thou ftandett
Indicted, and hait been now Arraigned, or Not
Gutity?

Green. Not Guilty.

C! of #he Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be
Tried ?

Greer. By God and my Country.

Cl. of the L. God fend thee a good Delive-
rance, IHow ny’ft thou, Heny Beriy, art thou
Guilty of the Felony and Murder whereof thou
flandeft Indiéed, and haft been now Arraigned,
or Not Guiley ?

beriy. Not Gutlty.

Cl of the Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou bhe
Tried?

Beriy. By God and my Country,

ClL of the Cr. God fend thee a good Delive-
rance.  How fay’ft thou, Lawrenc? Hill, art thou
Gu:lty of tiie Felony and Murder whereof thou
ftandeft Indicted, and haft been Arrugn’d, or
Nor Gu:lty ?

Hill, Not Guilty.

Cl. of the Cr. Culprit, How wile thou be
Tried ?

Hill. By God and my Country.

Cl. of the Cr. God fend thee 2 good Delive-
rance,

Capt, Richardfon. 1 defire to know when they
muft be brought up to be Tried?

Mr. Juil, 2ili, Upon Friday next.

CL of the Cr. You fhall bave a Rule to bring
them up on Friday.

Vo, II.

Bt on Thurlday, 7be 615 of Febraary, Ay. A
toviey-Geneiral maw’d the Court ihat 1t might
be dufer’d till Monday, that the Kizg’s Evi-
acnce might be the more yeady; which was
granted accordingly,

On Meiday the 10th of Febiuary, 1678, the faid
Robert Gieen, Heiry Berry, and Lewrence i,
were brought again to the Bar for their Trial;
which procecded as followeth.

Cl. of the Cr. Make Proclamation,

Criecr. O Yes,

Clof the Cr. Again, Again.

Crier. O Yes, O Yes! Our Sovereign Lord the
King doth ftraightly Charge and Command all
manner of Perions to keep Sience upon pain of
Imprifonment. -

CL of the Cr. Make an O Yes!

Crier. O Yes! It any one can inform our So-
vereign Lord the King, the King’s Serjeant at
Law, the King’s Attorrey-Guneral, or chis In-
queft now to be taken of the Feiony ind Liur-
der whereof Robert Green, Henry Berry, and Lase-
rence Hilfy the Pri‘oners at the Bar, ftund lu-
dicted, let them come forth and they fhail be
heard, for now the Prifoners fland ai the Bar
upon thetrr Delivery.  And all others ihit are
bound by Recognizance to give Evidence againft
the Prifoners at the Bar, let them come fortn and
aive their Evidence, or clfe they forfeir their Re-
cognlzance.

Y of the Cr. Robert Gieen, hold up thy Hand ;
Henry Berry, hold up thy Hand y Law:wce 121,
hold up thy FHand. Which they feverally did.

Thote good Men that you ihall hear cali’d, and
perlonaily appear, are to puais between our Seve-
reign Lord the Kirg and You, upon Trial of your
feveral Lives and Deaths: If inerefore you, or any
of you, Wil challenge them, or any of them, your
Time is to fpeal unto them when they come to
the Book to be fworn, and before they are fivorn.
Crier, make an O Yes,

Crice. O-Yes! You good Men that are Impan-
net’d to enquire between our Sovercign Lord the
King, and Rebert Green, Feiry Beiry, and Law-
rence Hill, the Prifonersat the Bur, anfwer to your
Names, and fave your Iffues.

Cl. of the Cr. Sir IFillicm Reberts,

Ciicr. Vorz awvz, Str Willam Rob.vts.

CL. of the Cr. Str BV :ellicin Roberts, to the Book.

Crier. Sic W olliaim Reberts, look unonr the Pri-
foners: You Prifoners look upon the Jury.  You
foall well and troly Try, and true Dehiverance
make, between our Sovereign Lord the King and
the Prifoners at the Bar, whom you fhall have in
Charge, and a true Verdict give according to your
Evidence. 8o belp you God,

And the fame QOath was adminiftred co the reft,
and their Names were as follow

Sir Williain Roberts, Baronet.
Sir Richard Fifbziry, Baronet.
Sir Michal Heneage, Nnight,
Sir Thoinas Bridges, Knight.
Wiliiam Avery, Elqs

Clarles Humphievile, Elg;
Fobu Bathurft, Elo;

Richard Gewre, Kigs
Thowmas Henflowe, kig;

Fobn Sharpe, Lig;

Fohit Haynes, Efq; and
Walter Moyle, Llqs

5 E el
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Cl of the Cr. Crier, count thefe. Sir /illiam
Robeits.

Crier. One, (9.

Cl. of toe Cr. Walter Moylk.

Crier. Twelve, good Men and true, ftand toge-
ther, and hear your Evidence. Gentlemen, are
you all Sworn? And you that are not Sworn, pray

withdraw.

The Standing-place for the Fury being fo throug’d,
that thofe who were [worn had not room to
Stand together, the Clerk of the Crown was or-
der’d to make Proclamation thus:

Cl. of the Cr. Crier, make Proclamation.

Crice O Yes! My Lords the King?s Juftices do
ftraitly charge and command all Perfons that are
not of the Jury, to withdraw forchwith, upon Fain
of one hundred Pounds a Man.

CLof the Gy, Robeit Greziny hold up thy Hand s
Henmry Berry, hold up thy Hand 5 Lawrence Hil,
hold up thy Hand. W bich they feverally did

Gentlemen, You that are fivorn look upon the
Prifoners, and hearken to their Charge: You fhall
underftaad, that they frand indi&ed by the Names
of Rovert Green, late of the Parith of St. Maiy ke
Strand in the County of Afiddlcfex, Laboarer 3 Hen-
7y Beriy late of the fame Pandh and County, La-
bourer; and Lawrance il late of the fame Parith
and County, Labourer; for that they, together
with, &5, (5 ¢ofrre) againdt the Peace of our So-
verelgn Liord the King, his Crown and Dignity.
Uoon this Mdiétment they have been Arraigined,
they hav hereunto feverally pleaded Not Guiiliy,
and for .newr rals have feverally put themiclves
upon God and their Country, which Country you
ar2.  Your Charge Iz to enquire, whether the Pri-
foners at the Bar, Robeit Green, Henry Beriy, ond
Leawrence [, or any of them, are Guilty of the
Feiony and Murder, whereof they ftand Indicted,
or Not Guilty; and for them which you fhall
fid Guilty, you fhall enquire what Goods or
Chattels, lLands or Tenements, they had at the
ume of the Felony committed, or at auy tine
fince It you find them, or any of them, Not
Guilty, you fhall enquire, whether they, or any
of them, that you find fo Not Guilty, fled for the
fame; if you find that they or any of them fled for
the fame, you fhall enquire of their Goods and Chat-
tels, as 1f you had found them Guilty : But,
if you find them, nor any of them, Not Guilty,
nor that they did fly for it, fay {o and no more,
and hear your Ewvidence, Crier, make Procla-
mation.

Crier. O Yes! If any one will give Evidenceon
behalf of our Sovereign Lord the King, again{t
Robert Greciry, Henry Berry, and Laewrence Hill, the
Priioners at the Bar, let them come forth, and
they fhall be heard.

Nr. Sexjeant Slringer. May it pleafe your Lord-
fhip, and you Gentlemen of this Jury, The Pri-
foners at the Bary, Rovert Green, Hewry Berry,
and Lawrence Hifl, ftand Indifted, for that they,
with one Girald a Priclt, one Kelly, and one Ver-
aatl, did the twelfth of Ofvder 1aft, at the Pa-
rith of St. AMary Ic Strand in this County, felo-
nioufly, wilfully, and of their Malice afore-
thouglit, affault the Perfon of Sir Edmundbury
Godfrey, Kt, and that the Prifoner, Redert Green,
cdid put about the Neck of the faid Sir Edmnnd-
bury a twifted Handkerchief, and did with that
twifted Handkerchief {fo choke and flrangle the
faid Sir Edmundpuiy, that he immediately died,

and that the other Prifoners, Feiy Berry, and
Lawrence Hilf, with the other Perfons, Girald
Kelly, and Vernatt, were aiding and affifting the
faid Roders Green to Murder the fid Sir Edmund.
bury 5 and fo the Prifoners at the Bar, with the
faid other Perfons, the faid Sic Ednmudbury God-
JSrey did kill and murder, againft the Kie’s Peace,
his Crown and Dignity.  To this they nave plead-
ed not Guilty, and for their Trial have put them.
felves upon their Country, which Country you
are. It we prove them, or any of them Guiley,
you are to find it fo.

s My, xf:‘!mzqﬂ Gc’f:frﬁf. May 1t « o William
pleafe your Lordthip, and you Gen- Joues.
tlemen of this Jury, the Prifoners
who ftand now at the B, are Indied for Mur-
der. Murder, asitis the firft, o it is the oreat-
elt Crime, that is prohibited in the Sccond Table.
It 15 a Crime of fo deep 1 Swin, that nothing
can walh it away but the Biood of the Offender,
and uniefs that be done, e Land in which it is
fhed, will conrinue poiluted. My Lord, = iviur-
der 1s always a very great Crime, fo the Mur-
der which 1s now to be try’d before vour Lord-
fhip, is, it may be, the moft heinous and moft
barbarous that ever was committed. The Mur-
der was committed upon a Gentleman, and upon
a Magiftrate, ana I wifh he had not thercfore
been murdered, becavte he was a Proteftunt Ma-
glitrate,

My Lord, I will not fpend much of your
Time m making my Obiervations before-hand,
vecaufe T mult 1o this Cale crave leave to do it
1in tiie Concluiion of the Evidence,  For I, thar
have made a {trict Examination Into this matter,
do find, that 1 ihall better fpend mv Time in
mak:ng Oblervations, and thewing Low the Wit
nefles do agree, afrer the Evidence g.ven, than
betore.  Thercfore, my Lord, I fhalt at vrefent
only make a fhort Narrative ot the Fadt, to
fhew vou the Courle of our Evidence, rhat it may
be the Dbetter underiocd ana remensored by the
Jury.

My Lord, Upon the Difcovery of the late hor-
rid Plot—-—-

® Lerd Chicf Foftice. Andprefent  « §ir William
Pict tov, Mr. Attorncy @ But pray  Seroggs.

20 On.

M. Aitorney General. It your Lordfhip pleat,
you iy call it fo, for *us to be feared they have
not yet given it over: But upon the Difcovery of
that Plot (call 1t late or prefent) Sir Edingizibsry
Gedfrey (whom I fuppole the Jury all knew, and
every Man that lived thereabouts, muft needs
remember to have been a very ufeful and adtive
Juftice of the Peace) had taken feveral Examina-
tions about this Matter, and perhaps fome more
than now are extani: (but we have proof he had
fome) and ~was very induflrious in finding out the
princtpal Actors 1 this Plot, among whom, fome
Priefts and Jefuits foreleeing their own danger,
and likewife tie overtarow of a Defign which
they had been fo long in contriving, they had
feveral Confultations how to prevent the Difco-
very. And as they are Men who never flick
at Blood, but rather account 1t meritorious to
fhed i, though never {o unuftly, when their In-
tereft may be profited by 1t, they did refolve to
fccure themfelves and their Defign by taking a-
way the Life of this Gentleman.  In order there-
unto they had feveral Meetings, and the Place
of thar Mecting, you will find by the Lvidence,

13
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to be at the Plw-Alehoufe, and there they did
confult how to take away the Life of 'S £d-
anedbury Godfrey.  And they made feveral At-
tempts to doit: One while they dogg’d him 1nto
the Fields, another while they fent People to
{py when he came abroad, that they might fol-
low him into fome dark Alley, or other obfture
or unfrequented Place, and there difpatch him ;
and at laft, after many Attempts, they fucceeded
in that wicked one, when the Murder was com-
mitted.

My Lord, There are contained in this In-
dictment fix Oienders, all Principals; three of
them, I think, are Priefls, or at lealt two of
them are {o, that 1s, Father Gireld an Irifbian,
Father Kelly likewife of the fame Nation, and
one Vernatt, whether a Prieft or Layman I know
not, Thefe Priefls (as they are always the firft
that contrive Miichief, fo they are always the
firft that fly Puntthment) have tken care for
themfelves, and run away, and left their blind
Followers, the Irifoners at the Bir, whom they
had drawn into this bloody A<t, alone to anfwer
for it.

The Day, when this Murder was committed
was Saturday the 12th of OfZcher Iaft; and I muft
defire your Lordfhip to take notice of the Day,
for upon that much of the Evidence will depend.
And we fhal] prove, that as they did before fend
feveral umes to  Siv Edmundbury Gosfiey’s Houfe
to get Intelligence of his going abroad, Jo this
very Day in the Morning, M/, one of the Pri-
foners at the Bar, came to his Houle upon pre-
tence of Bufinefs with him; and, as we s,
and have reafon to believe, to lcarn whither he
went that Day : Green (another of the Prifoners)
had been there betore on the fame Errand.  Anrd
fo much we {hall prove to you by the People of
the Houle.  Sir Edmundonry Godfrey happened a-
bout Noon, or fome tiine in the Afternoon of the
fame Day (as we have 1t by the confeflion of one
of the Parties) to be ar an Houfe near St, Cl-
ment’s Church, where thefe Murderers had No-
tice he was, and had prepared a Trap for him as
he came back, They had appointed Men to
watch him, and give them Notice when he did
come back, and whatever his Bufinefs was at the
Foute that he was in (for it cannot yet be known)
he laid there ull about feven or eight o'clock
at Night: And your Lordfhip knows that at that
tme of the Year 1t is then dark., He coming
frorn about St. Clement®s Church towards his own
Houle near Charing-Crafs, Notice was given to
the Murderers of his approach near to Semerfet-
Houfe,  And thus they had Jaid their bloody Con-
trivance: Someof them were Appointed to meet
him at the Back-Gate of Somerfet-Houfe, and to
inform him that there was a Quarrel in the Yard,
and he being a Man always careful to keep the
Peace and  punifh them that broke ir, they
thought 1t a very apt mecans to train him into
the Yard, And when he came near the Back-
sate they did  accordingly acquaint him that
. Two of the Queen’s Servants were fighting in
the Yard, and that they needed his Prefence to
part and quiet them. He, at firft, thoughe 1c
might be but fome ordinary idle Scuffle, and was
not willing to go down, but being very much
importun’d by them, down he went, thro® the
Back-Gate into the Yard, where werc indeed
two Men . fcafling together, but counterfeitly ;
tie one was Bery, the Prifoner here; the other

VoL, 1l

was Kelly, the Pricft that isrun away. And when
St Edisndimiy Godfiey was come, and  within
their reach, then, as it was before contrived, the
Fray of it flf ended, and Barry poes to the Jower
vater-Gate, and Mr. Prauice (who was in that
fou! fact, but hath fince repented, and lath made
this diicovery) to the Upper-Gate, to keep back
any cafual Paffengers for a little while, nll fuch
time as the Murder was over.

My Lord, things being thus prepared, whilft
Sir Edinmndbury Godfray ftood fHll, or was return-
ing, having no more to do there, after the Scutfie
was thus appeafed, Green, one of .the Prifoners,
coming behind him, puts a Cravat, or a Twifted
L.inen Cloth, (which he had ready for the purpofe)
about fus Neck. And he, Hill, and thote Holy
Fathers Girald and Kelly (with great venerarion
be it fpoken, for Men of their Order to flain
thetr Hands with the Blood of an Innocent Gen-
tleman, and that in fo treachereus & manner) All
et upon him, and v-ry manfully, being four upon
one, amd ke altogeiher furprized, threw him
down and firangled him. And this was done
(s 1t 1s cay to imagine) withcut much Noife ;
fo that I doubt not but many that were near
the Place might be ignorant of it, and did not
hear 1t.

My Lord, Tho’ the thing was done witha great
Zeal, and a very good Wil to difpatch him, yet
it fo happened, that when Mr. Pramwee came back
from keeping Sentinel at the Gate, there was fome
Late lete in Siv Edvnndbury Gadfrey, he did ftir his
Eeet, and thereby they perceived that he was not
quite Dead.  Bur to make thorough Work with
him, Greer (who begun, and was to give an Ac-
complifhment to this bloody Fact) takes hold of
hts Flead and twifts his Neck round, and ftamps
upon his Breaft, the Marks of which outrageous
Cruelty did plunly appear in his Body after ir was

found.

My Lord, After they had thus kill’d him,
Girald the Prieft thought he was not yet Dead
enough, and was very willing to run him through
with Sir Edmendbury’s own Sword 3 but that was
not liked by the reft, left it might be difco-
ered by a great effufion of Blood in that Place;
and fo they forbore it for that Time. Having
thus difpatch’d him, they removed him to the
Chamber of Hill, where they kept him fome
rime, and after thar to another Chamber., T will
not be particular heretn, becaule the Witnefs will
give the beft account of it, But after {fome time,
(I defire it may be obferved, *twas on Monday
Night, twwo Nights after the Fa&t was commit-
ted) they brought him into another Room and
had him there, with a Cloke thrown over him.
And I mention this laft fo parucularly, becaufe
he then happened to be feen by another Witnefs
here prefent, who concurs as to his lying there
Dead, and that he faw him by the help of 2
Dark-Lanthron, of which, and other Circum-
ftances, T fhall have occafion to make ule here-
after, .

My Lord, After he had lain in Semerfet-Heufe
fome Days, they thought it was high tine to re-
move him, or rather to expofe him : for having
now kill’d him, they did endeavour to kill lus
Reputation, and lay the blame of this foul Mur-
der upon this Innocent Gentleman, as tf he had
killed himfells And on Weduefday Night, which
by computauon was the r6th of Offeler, they
carried hun out of Somerfes-fonfe 1n this manner :

5 k2 Hilf
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Hdl having late in the Night procured a Sedan,
they made a thift, by bending the Body to a fit
Pofture, to crowd him into ir; and Berry, oneof
the Murderers, and Porter of Somerfet-Houfe, was
of all Men moft proper to help them out with
Privacy ; and therefore it was agreed between
them, that whenever a Man fhould come before
and make an Hem, 1t fhould be a Sign to Berry
to open the Gate. And, my Lord, having put
him into the Sedan, Mr. Prezice, and Girald firft
carried him out in it to Cevent-Garden, and there
they refted, (being fomething wearied with their
Burden) and two more fuppled ther rooms,
and carried him to Long-Aere.  "Then Girald and
Praunce took him up again, and carrted him to
the Grecian Church near Sebo: And when they
had him there, they got an Horfe ready and
mounted him upon it, ard Hill was fet behind
him to hold him up; by which means they car-
ried him to the Place where he was found; and
there, to accomplith the lft Part of therr De-
fign, which was to murder his Reputatioa, after
they had killed his Body, they tiok his own
Sword and run him thro’, and left him 1n fuch a
manner, as that (according to the Weaknefs of
their Underftanding) the World fhould conclude
he had killed himielf. In that Condition wus
the Gentleman found. I have but hirtle more
at prefent to trouble you with, and thai fhall be
to fhew you what the Murderers did afeer they
had committed this Faét., They gave an Ac-
count of it the next Morning to Mr, Praunce,
who went no furcher than the Sedan went,
which was to the Grecien Church: and the
Pricfts were fo fur from any Remorfe, and had
fo little Humanity, (I believe there 1s none can
think they had much of Divinity) that they did,
in a Paper, fct down a Narrative of this heroick
A&: And I doubt not, but by this time it 1s
fent to Reie, where 1t finds as great Approbation,
and caufes as great Joy, as their other Adts of a
like Nature have heretofore done.  Some Days af-
ter the Fa@& was done, and, to their everlafting
Honour, thus by themfelves recorded, fome of
thefe Priefts had a meeting at the Queei’s Head at
Bow, and there was the Paper produced and read ;
at which they were very merry, and were fo loud,
that fome of the Houfe overheard them ; and do
yet remembocr, that they read, and were merry
at, a Paper which concern’d Sir Edmundbury God-
frey.
My Lord, This will be the Courle of our Evi-
dence, and tho' your Lordfhip and the Jury will
eafily believe that moft of thefe Particulars muft
arife from one who was Party to the Faét, yet, my
Lord, I will undertake, before I have done, {o to
fortify almoft every Particular he delivers, with a
concurrent Proof of other Teftimony, and the
Things will {o depend upon one another, and
have {uch a2 Connexion, that little doubt will re-
main in any Man’s Mind, that 1s come hither
without Prepoffeflion, but that Siv Edundbury
Godfrey was murdered, at Somerfes-Foufe, and that
the Perfons who ftand now Indicted for it were the
Murderers, .
S, * Mr. Recorder. My Lord, if your
?,r[;;;”g’ Lordfhip pleafes, according as Mr.

SIS dttorney hath opened i, we defire
we may call our Witnefles; and firlt we will call

Mr, Qutes.
Crier. Mr, Oates, lay your Hand on the Book,

The Evidence you hall give for our Sovercign

Lord the King, againlt Robert Greeir, Henry Berpy,
and Lawrence Hill, the Prifoners at the Bar Ii{}’
) » 1hall
be the Truth, the wholc Truthy and nothing by
the Truth,  So help you God. il
= M. Sol. Gen. Pray, Mr. Qates,
will you give my Lord and the Jury
an Account what Traniaétions there
were between you and Sir Edmunbury Godfyey ;
and that, my Lord, is all we call him for.

Mr. dit, Gen, My Lord, [ call this Gentleman
to prove, what Lxaminations Sir Edmundbury
Godfrey had taken, and what was his own Opinion
of hunlelf about them.

L. C. . Mr. diterney, 1 fuppofe the Ufe you
make of it is this, to fhew, that that might be
one of the Motives to thefe Perfons to do this
Act, becaufe he was forward in the Difcovery of
their Plot.

Mr. dtt, Gen, It is fo, my Lord; and that it
was his Opinion himfelf that he fhould have fome
Miichief trom them for it.

L.C. ¥ Come, Mr. Oates, pray tell your
Knowledge,

Oates. My Lord, upon the 6th of September
lalt I did go betore Sir Edumundbury Godfrey,
and there upon Qath gave in feveral Depofi-
tions, Zl{]d after that 1 had made Quth of thofe
Depofitions, we took the Record along with us
home again.  And on the 28th of September, af-
ter we had taken two or three Copies of this
Record, we went before Siv Edmundbury God-
Jrey agam, and fwore all the Copies we had raken,
and o made them Records. My Lord, after
that, the Bufinefs was made known to the Coun-
cl by my felf, and upon Monday Mr. Godfrey
came to me, which was, I think, the joth of
Septeinber, and did tell me, what Afronts he
had reccived from fome great Perfons, (whofe
Names I name not now) for being fo zealous in
this Bulinefs, And, my Lord, he told me, That
others, who were well inclin’d to have the Dif-
covery made, did think that he had not been
quick enough in the Profecution, but had been
too remifs, and did threaten bim, that they
would comphlin to the Parliament, which was
to [t the 21it of Offoher following, My Lord,
that Week betore Sir Edmundbury Godfrey was
milling, he came to me, and told me, that feve-
ral Popifh Lords, {fome of whom are now in the
Tower, had threatned him, and asked him what
he hzd to do with it. My Lord, I fhall name
their Names when time fhall come. My Lord,
this is all I can fay, He was in a great Fright,
and told me, he went in fear of his Life, by the
II;opiﬂl Party, and that he had been dogg’d feveral

2ys.

Mr, A, Gen. Did he tell you that he was
dogg’d ?

Ontes. Yes, hedid; and I did then ask him,
why he did not take his Man with him; he faid,
ne was a poor weak Iellow: I then ask’d him
why he did not eer a good brisk Fellow to at-
tend him? but he made no great Matter of ir,
he faid, he did not fear them, if they came
fairly to work; but yet he was often threatned,
and came fometimes to me to give him fome
Encouragement, and I did give him what Hn-
couragement I could, That he would {uffer in a
quft Caufe, and the like; but he would often
tell me, he was in continual Danger of b:ing
hurt by them, -

,!' a
Sit Frapc;
I ffﬂnf@m;:_
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Mr. Ait. Gen, We délire Mr, Robinfon inay be
fworn. Which was done accordingly:

M. Recorder. Pray, Sir, will you tell the Court
and the Jury, what Difcourle you had with Sir £4-
suundbiiy Goafrey; and what Apprehenfions he had
concerning this Bulinefs,

Tho. Rovinfon, LElgs (Chief Prothonotary of
the Cowrt of Common:Pless.) My Lord, Sir
Edinndbury Godfrey and I were of a wvery an-
cient Acqualatance for above torty Years; we
were bred up together at H'E’/?mﬁgﬂﬁ' - School,
and continued In thac Acquaintance all along,
except in -he Times of the \‘-V:’u'1 and were for
many Years t gether in Commiffion for the Peace,
hoth for tas County and this City.  We met
at tae Quarter-Scflions for Wefminfter, the 7th
of O:tobcr, which was Mowday, as 1 take it, und
meeting there, w¢ went, after rhc Court was
up; and Dined with the Head-Bailiff; as the Cu-
flom is; where Sir Edwundbury Godfrey and 1
did difcourfe feveral things about this Plot; I
faid to Sir Zdmundbry Gedirey, 1 underttand you
have taken feveral Examinations about this Plo,
that is now made publick : Truly, faid he, I
haves buc I hink I fhail have licle Thanks for
my i’ains, or fome tuch Words: Saith he, did it
very anwillingly, and would fain have had it done
by others.  'Why, faid I; you did but what was
your Duty to do, and 1t was a very good Act:
Pray, Sir, have you the Examinations about
you, will vou pleafe to let me fee them?  No, I
have them not, faid hey I delivered them to a
Perion of Qa'ity; but as foon as 1 have them,
you {hall fee them. Bu, faud 1, I thould be very
olad to underftand, Sir Edmuadbury, that the
Depth of the Matter were found out. I am afraid,
faid he, of that, that 1t s not; but difcourfing
further, he faid to me, Upon my Canfrience, 1 believe
I fball be the firft Martyr. Why fo, fad I, are you
afraid? No, faid he, I do not fear them, 1t they
come fairly, and [ fhall not part with my Life
tamely. Why do not you go with a Man, faid I,
if you have that Fear upon you? Why, faid he,
I do not love it, *tisa Clog toa Man. But, faid
I, you fhould do well to keep a Man; I obferve
vou never go with one.

Mr. Ait. Gen, But did he tell you, Str, that he
did believe he thould be the firft Marcyr 2

Mr. Robinfon. Yes, hedid fay, Upon his Con-
frience, he did believe, he fhould be the firft
Martyr: and this is all I can fay of this Bufi-
nels,

Ny, Ast. Gen, Then, if your Lordfhip pleafe,
we will, in the next place, call Mr, Praunce, who
was drawn in to be prefent at this Bulinefs, and
who knew of all the Faét, and will give you an
Account of the whole Matter,

Then Mr, Prawnce was Sworn,

Myr. A, Gen, Pray, Sir, begin at the very be-
sinning; the Meetings you had at the Plow-Ale-
boufe, and the fending to Sir Zdmunabury’s Houfe,
and all the Story.

L. C. 7. Mr., Praunce, Pray tell us the firft Mo-
tives that were ufed to you to do this Thing, and
the firft Time it was mentioned 3 who they were
that iirlt mentioned it, and where.

Praunce. My Lord, it wasabout a Fortnight or
three Weeks before e was murdered, we met fe-
veral times at the Plow-Alebonfe.

L. C.YF, With whom?

Praunce, With Mr. Girald, Mr. Green, and

Mr. Kelly. Girald and Kelly did intice mie in, and
told me it was no Sin. ,

Mr. Recorder. Girald and Kelly did ?

Praunce. Yes, Girald and Kelly.

Mr. Recorder. What are they ?

Praunce. Two Priefts? And they faid; it was
no 3w, it was a charitable Aét: They fiid he
was & bufy Man, and had done and would do
a great deal of Mifchief, and it was a Dzed of

Charity to do it; and fo they told the reft bes
fides.

M. Ait, Gen. Where was it they faid thus?

Praunce. They faid it at the Plow, and by the
Water-fide,

Mr. Recorder, Well fard;  How long was it be-
fore he died ?

Praunce. A Wecek or a Fortnight before he'was
murdered, and Green, Hill, and Girald met there
together,

Myr. Att. Gen. What Difcourfe had you then?

Prauice, There they refolved, that the firlt chat
could meet with him fhould give notice to the reft
to be ready, and {o in the Morning, when they
went out on Saturday

Mr. A1, Gen. But before you come to that,

do you know of any dogging of him into the
Fields? |

Praunce. Yes, 1t was before that, I heard them
fay, they would; and had dogged him into the
Fields.

L. C, 7. Who did you hear fay fo?

Prawnce. Girald, Kelly, and Green,

Mr. At Gen, That Greer is one of the Prifo-
ners.

Mr. Recordey. Which way did they dog him ?
what Fields?

Praugce. Red-Lion-Fields, and thofe by Hol-

boyn.

Mr. Att. Gen. 'Why did they not kill him
there?

Praupce. Becaufe they had not Opportunity.

My. Att, Gen, Do you know of any fending to
his Houfe, or going to it?

Praunce, One time I do knowof, and that was
Saturday Morning, Mr, Kefly came to give me no-
tice, that they were gone abroad to dog him; and
afterwards they told me, that Hz/ or Green did go
to his Houfe and ask for him, but the Maid told

him, he was not up, and then went away, and
faid he would call by and by.

Hifl, What time was that in the . Morning ?

Praunce, It was about nine or ten o clock in
the Morning,

Hill, And had we been there before or after ?

Praunce. You had been there before.

Mr. Recorder. Pray ftay tili fuch time as we have
done with our Evidence, you fhall have all free
Liberty to ask him any Queftion; but you muft
ftay tll we have done.

Praunce. As foon as they heard he was within,
they came out and ftaid for his coming out, and
dogg*d him.

L.C. 7. Did all three of them go to his
Houfe?

Praunce. No, my Lord,
L.C. 7. Whowasitdid go?

Praunce. Only one, ecither Hif or Green,
L. ¢. 7. How do you know that?

Praunce, They told me fo themfelves, for they
came to give me Notice.

L.C.7 Whotold youfo?

Praunce. It was Girald and Green both.

LC.5.
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L. C. ¥. Did Green tell you that he had been
there ?

Pramyce. He told me one of them, but I am
not certain which., And fo, my Lord, after that,
when he came out they dogg’d him that Day up
and down.

Mr. Juftice Foires. Who dogg’d him ?

Preuwnce. Girald, Grezn and Hill dogg’d him
into St, Clementsy and about {even o’ clock, Green
caime and gave me notice, that he was at St. Cle-
meits, and 1 came to Somcijet-Houfe as faft as I
could,

L. C. 7. Where were you?

Prauice. At my own Houle.

L. C. }. How far did you hive from Semer/fet-
Houfe ?

Praunce. 1 lived in Praices-fireet, not far from
Scinerfet-Houfe,

Mr., Recorder, Who was it gave you notice ?

Praupce. It was Green. He told me, that Girald
and Kelly were watching him, and that he was at
St, Clemcits,

L. C. 7. Where washe ¢

Pramnce. At St. Clesnents, my Lord,

L. C. ¥. \Where there ?

Praunce. 1 was not there, they told me fo,
and no more; and about eight or nine o clock,
Hill came before, up the Street, and gave us notice
that we muft be ready.  And fo, my Lord, as foon
as [77/] had given us notice, he went up to the Gate,
and ftaid there till Sir Edmundbuary Godfrey came
by, and then told him, there were two Men a quar-
relling, and defired him to come and try whether
he could pacify them; he was very unwilling., But
pray, Sir, faith A/, you being a Juftice of the
Peace, may qualify them ; and fo he went down till
he came to the bottom of the Rails; and when
he came to the bottom of the Rails, Green twift-
ed his Handkerchief, and threw it about his
Neck, and threw him behind the Rails, and
there throttled him, and punched him, and then
Girald would have thraft hisSword through him,
but the reft would nor permit him, for fear it
fhould difcover them by the Blood. And a-
bout a quarter of an Hour after, I came down,
and found he was not quite dead ; for I laid
my Hand upon him, and his Legs tottered and
fhook, and then Green wrung his Neck quite
round, -

Mr. Ait. Gen. Who was it that took him by
the Neck ?

Praunce, 1t was Green, my Lord,

L.C.%. Did you fee him?

Praunce, No, but he did tell me afterwards that
he did 1t ?

L. C. 7. Who, Green himflf?

Lraynce. Yes, my Lord, for he boafted of ir,

M. A, Gen, Pray what did he do to him be-
fides ?

Pramice. He punch’d him with his Knee,

L. C. ¥. Did you fee him do this? how do you
know he did it ?

Praynce. He and the reft told me fo it after-

wards.
L. C. ¥. Where were you, at that time that the

Handerchief was twifted about his Neck ?
Fraunce, As foon as I came down I went towards
Ihﬁ G*LEB.
L. C. Y. Who ordered you ta ftand at the
{5207
Praiecs, Ttwas Hill,
%59 Scr). Strivger. You watch'd the Water-
Crate,who waich’d the Stairs ?

Piaimce. That was Beiry.

My, Recorder, Pray give an Account what they
did afterwards,

Prasnce, Why afterwardse—

Nr. Ait.Ger, Who told you that Green twifted
his Neck ?

Praunce. All fpoke of 1it.

M, At Gen. Dand Hill 2

Praunce. Yes, he and the reft,

My. 4tt, Gen. How came you to underftand

that he punch’d his Breaft ¢
Praunce. Green {poke of it himfelf, and fo did

the others,
My, Ait. Gen, Who were about his Body when

you came down to the Gare ?

Praunce. All Four.

My, At Gen. Name them.

Praunce. Hill, Green, Girald and Kelly.

Mr. tt. Gen. \Was Besyy there?

Piramnce. He came to them a while after.

Mo A Gan. When ?

Praunce. Before they carried him into the
Houle.

Mr. Ait. Genr. How can you tell that?

Pramce. Becaule he help’d them to carry them
in.

M. Sol. Gen, Where was Beriy before they car-
ried him into the Foufe?

Pramnce. He was about the Stairs,

M. Recorder. Who was 1t that carried him up
into the Room ?

Pramce. We all did,

Myr. Recorder. Pray name all that were in the
Company.

Prommce. Theve was Girald, Green, Hill, Kelly,
Berry, and 1.

Mr. A:t. Gen Who fet their Hands to it ?

Prauace, Weall did help; Hill went before and
opened the Door, and we carried him into the
Room.

M. Att. Gen. Whole Room was that ?

Praunce. It was a Chamber of Hill'sy inDr.
Godwsin's Houle.

Mr. Recorder. \Nas Hill Godzein’s Man ?

Praunce. Yes, he had been.

Mr. Juftice Fores, Did Berry help to carry him
in?

Praunce, Yes, Berry dud.

Mr. Ser). Striiger. Was there any Difcourfe of
a Sword to be thruft thiough him at that time ?

Brownce, Yes, Girald faxd he would thruft a
Sword through him, but they would not let him,
for fear of Difcovery.

Mr. A, Gen. What became of the Body ?

Praunce, It lay there till Mondsy Night, and on
Mondey 1t was removed mto Semerfer-Houfe, and
upon Monday Night Hi/ did fhew me it with a
Dark-Lanthron,

Mr. A't, Gen. Whowere in the Room: then?

Prawnce. Givald, and Hill, and Kelly, and all
were there, And on Tuefday Night it was broughe
back again: Mr. &4/ would have carried him into
his own Lodging.

L. C. ¥. Whither did they carry him on Men-
day Night? .

Fraunce. Into Somerfet-Houfe,

Mr. Jult 77:d. 1s not Hif?s Chamber in Soimer-

ﬁ"f*-[ {G { t_'/ l: ?

Mr. Sery. Stinger. Defcribe the Room M,
Prawnce, as well as you can.
Praunce. 1 am rot certain of the Recm, and fo

cannot deferibe it.
My.
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Mr., Juft. #ild. But was not Hell's Chamber i
Serncrfer-Houfe ¢ .

Praunce. *Tis in the lower part of the Houfe, 1n
a Coutt. o

Ay, At Gen, When you faw him in this Room,
pray, what was thrown over him ¢

Proce. There was fomething, I cannot tell
what; for I durft not ftay long there.

My, Tuft. Dalber. What Light was there ?

Piazuce. Only a Dark-Lanthorn.

Adi A, Gen, Whocarrled 1t ¢

Praunce. il carred 1t

My, Juit, Delben. Are you fure you faw the body
there? * ‘

Prauizee. Yes, Tam certain of it.

e A, Gen, What became of it after that?

Prauirce. On Tugfdey Night it was carried to
Hils, the Chamber where he was firlt bronght
Srer he was murdered ;5 but there was fome body

" ]

there, and fo they could na¢carry it into tae Room,
but they carried him into 1 Room | juft over agatnlt,
I think they were Sir Jobn Arunsell's Lodgings, 1
car’t tell. There it lay tll Wednefday Night, and
ahout nine o° clock on Heanefdey Night they were
removing the Body into the Room where 1t firit
Ly 3 and I happen’d to come as they were re-
noving it, and they wereaflrighted, and run a-
way : But I ipoke, and Bery came back again,
ad got the Body up into the Room, and a-
boat Twelve o'clock they carried 1t away in the
Sedan,

M. At Gen. W ho brought the Sedan ?

Pirannce. Flill did. S

M. At Gen. Who put him into 1t 2

Praunce. We all {et our Flands to 1t

M. Ait. Gen. Who carried him out firft ?

At At Gen. Out of which Gate ?

Prauwace. The Upper-Gate of the Upper-
Court.

Mr. Ait. Gea. How came you to have the Gate
opcned ¢

Praunce. Berry opened 1t

Alr. ot Gen. How came he to open 1t ?

Praunce. Somebody hem’d, and that was the
Sign.

M. At Gen. Who was 1t that carried the Sedan
firft

Pravnce. 1 and Givald,

My, A, Gen. Who went before ?

Pirattnce. Green and Kelly,

Adr. Recorder. How far did you carry him 2

Proupce. Into Coveni-Garden, and there we
refted,

M. it Gea. And who took him up then?

Prauyce. Green and Kelly.,

My ztt. Gen. How far did they carry Lim,

Prauyce, ‘They carried him to Long-Aere. Then
we took him up, and carried him to S#hs Church,
andd there Hiff met us with an Horie, and we help'd
the Body up.

Mr. At Gen. Who was it that rid behind
him?

Fraunce. Tt was Hill.

Mr. Au, Gen. Wnat did you do with your
Sedan ¢

Pramnee, We fet 1t ina new Houle till we came
back again,

L.C. ¥ You fay you faw him on Horfe-
back ?

Fravnce. Yes, my Lord, I did.

L. C, f. How, 1n what Poftuge?

Prauwnce, Aftride; his Legs were forced open,
and A7/ held him up.

Hill, Did I hold him?

Praunce. Yes, you did.

L.C.}. Did the others go with him ?
Prannce, Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Who did go with him?
Praunce. Greea, Hill, Girald and Kelly.

Mr. dit. Gen. Pray, will you tell my Lord and
the Jury, what Account they gave you the nexe

Morning, concerning the Body, and how they had
difpofed of it

Preuice. They told mes———

L. C. ¥. Who told you?

Prawsce. Hill, Kelly, and Girald.

L. C.7. Waae did chey tell you?

Praunce. T.rft, that they had run him thro®
with his own Swerd; then thrown him into a
D.ich, and laid his Gioves and other things upon
the Bink.

Mr. Att. Gen, Pray tell now the Story of your
mer:ting; at Low. Ly lhat was the Houfe called you
met 2t 2

Praunce. 1t was the Sign of the Queen's-
Head,

My, At G,
there ?

Praunce. They were Prielts, 1 can’t fo well
remember their Names, they are written down in
this Paper.

Mr. Recorder. Look on the Paper your felf,
you can read, I fuppofe.

Fraunce. 'There was on Lufon a Prieft, I
think,

Myr. Att. Gen. Where did he live ?

Praunce. He was with Vernatt.

My. Ait. Gen. What was the Occafion of your
meeting there ?

Praunnce. Vernatt told me only it was to be mer-
1y there.

Myr. A, Gen. What was the Man of the Houfe
his Name?

Pranice, One Cafshes.

Mr. At Gen. Did you dine there ?

Praunce, Yes,

Mr. Ast. Gen. What had you for Dinner?

Prawnce, We had a Barrel of Opyflers, and 2
Difh of Fith: I bought the Filh my {lf.

L. C. #. What Day wasit?

Praunce, The Friday after the Proclamation,
That all the Papifts were to be gone out of
Town,

My, Recovder. Tell what Company you had
there, and what Difcourfe.

Praunce. There wags Mr. Pernats, and I, and
Mr. Girald, and that other Prieft, and one Mr. De~
hicke.

Mr. Ait. Gen, Who fent for hun?

Prauice. Mr. Fernatt fent a Note for him by &
Cobiler.

Mr. At. Gen, Did he come upon that Note

Prawice. He came prefently. And when he
was come, then they read all tne Writing of the

Murder; for Mr., Veraatt thould have been one

at the doing of ir, but fomething happen’d he
could not.

My, At Gen. M. Vernatt was very forrowful
at the reading of 1t, was he not?
Prawsce. It he was, *twas becaufe be was not

there.
M. At Gen. How did be behave himfelf 2
Did he read it with any Pleafure and Delight #
LPraince,

Who was it that did meet
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Praznce. We were all very merry,

M. A, Gen, What can you fay about any bo-
dy’s over-hearing you ?

Praunce. There was 2 Drawer came and liften-
ed at the Door, and I hearing the Door a little
ruftle, went to the Door, and catch®d him lilten-
ing, and faid I to him, Sirrah, I could find in my
Heart to kick you down Swirs; and away he
went,

Me, Juft. 27iid, Was Pernatt with you there
that Night he was murdered, the Safwiday

Night?
Praznce. No; there was only the Six I have

name.

Mr. Juft. Faes. You fay that you met at the
Plsw the firlt Night ?

Prauice. Yes.

Mr. Juft. Fzi0s. And there you were told, That
tt wasa very charitable Act to kill-Sir Edmuudbury
Godfrey ¢

Pramnce. Yes, T was o,

Wr. Juft. Fowes. Was it agreed there that he
fhould be kil’d?

Piazice. It was agreed theres and the firlt that
met him were to give notice to the reft,

Mr. Jult. Fenes. Who were there !

Provice. Girald, Keilv, Greenr, and 1.

L.C. 7. When came [/} and Beriy into this
Canie? How came they acquainted with 1c¢

Prampce. They were in it before I

L. C. ¥. Who told you they were in 1t?

Prasmee. Mr. Girald, my Lord, told me fo.

Mr. Juft. Fones. Il and Beriy were not at
the Ploce, where did you firft hear them fpeak
of 1t?

Prauice. Girald and I have been at Beivy’s Houlfe
1IVErs TINCS,

Mr. Jult. Do, But there were two Meetings
at the Ploto, were there note

Pranice. Y es, there were,

Mr. Juft. Doden. And Hill was at the laft Meet
ing, was he ner?

Piarice. Yes, he was, my Lord,

My, Ait. Geir. Now I would ask you this Que-
ftion, by the Favour of the Court; was there any
Reward propofed by thefe Priefts for the doing
of 1?

Pratiuce. Girald and Pernatt did fpeak of a great
Reward that was to be given for it.

Mr. Att. Gen, Pray, how much?

Praice. T do not remember what,

Ar. Ait. Gen, Cannot you tell how much ¢

Praunce. There was to be a good Reward from
my Lord Bellafis, as they {ad.

Mr. Jut. Doben. You had feveral Meetings,
you fay : Did you there refolve what fhould be
the way of doing it?

Prauice. Girald was refolv’d to kill hum that
Nighty and if he could not get him into a more
convenient Place, he would kill him wich lus
own Sword, in the Streer that leads to his own
Houfe,

My, Record, Who was that, that refolved fo?

Piaunce. 1t was Girald,

My, Record, The Prieft, rather than fail, was
refolved to do that A& of Charity himfelf.

-« Mr. s, Gen. Twould now ask you a Queftion,

which though it does not prove the Perfons guiity,
yet it gives a great Strength to the Evidence. Do
you know Mr. Bedlsie, Mr. Praunce ¢

Pragice, 1 do now know him.

Mr. du, Gen, Had you ever any Conference

with him before you was committed w0 Py
fon?

Praunce. Never, in all my Life,

My, Att. Gen, Were you ever in his Cc}mp:m}-
In your Life before, that you know of ?

Prarice. No, not that I remember.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Well, you fhall fee how far he
will agree with you.

My, Record. Now they may ask him any Que.
ftions, 1f they pleale, jor we have done with
him,

L. C. J. Let them if they will,

Hill. My Lord, in the firlt place T humbly pray
that Mr. Praunce’s Evidence may not ftand’ good
againit me, as being perjured by his own Confef-
fion.

L.C. 7. How?

Hill. 1 fuppofe, my Loid, it is not unknown to
you that he made fuch an open Confeffion before
the King,

L.C.}. Look you, Sir, I will tell you for
that, I do not know that ever he made a Con-
fellion to contradict what he had fad upon his
O.th,

Hill. He was upon his Outh before,

L. G J. Yes, he had acca”d you upon Quth,
but afterwards, you fav, he conwtid that it was
not true s but that Conitilion that it was nat true,
was not upon Quaeh:  How is he then guilty of
Perpury ¢

Hil. My Lord, if a Man can fwear a thing,
and aiter deny it, he is certainly perjured.

L. C. 7. 1f a Man hath great Horrors of Con-
fcience upon him, and is full of Fears, and the
sutle of fuch a thing diforders his Mind, fo as to
make him go back from what he had before dif-
covered upon Outh, you can’t fay that Man is per-
qjured, if he don’t forfwear it: But I believe no
Bady did believe his Denial, becaufe his firft DIl
covery was {o particular, that every Man did think
his general Denial did only proceed from the Dif-
rbance of his Mind, But have you any mind
to ask him 2ny Q 1eftions ?

M, Recsid. We can prove, that immediately
after he retradted his Recantation.

Mr. Jult. Défoca, Tryif you can trap him in
any Queition.

Hill, Pray, what Hour was 1t that I went to
Sit Edisundonry Godfrey’s?

Prance. About nine or ten o’ clock, I am not
certatn 1n the Hour,

L.C. 7. No, no, 2 Man cannot be precife to
an Four; but prove you what you can.

Hil. 1 have a great many Witneffes befides the
Juftice of my Caute, that I was not out of my
Houlfe that Day.

L.C.#. You lnll be heard for that, but the
prefent Matter 1s, Whether you will ask him any

uefiiors or no ?

Hill. My Lord, ’tis all falfe that he fays, and I
deny every Word of 1, and [ hope it thall not be
cood againft me,

L. C. F. Well, Mr, Beriy, will you ask him
any Queftions?

Beriy, Mr. Praunce, who was in my Houfe at
that Time you {peak of ?

Praunce, There was your Wife there, and feve-
ral other Perfons belides.

Berry. Who were they ?

Praunce, There were divers People; it is an

Alehoule,

Berry,
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Berry. Bat who? Can you name any of them?

Praunce. There was Girald, and Kelly, and I

L.C ¥. Why, did you not all know Mr.
Piaruce 2

Berry. My Lord, I knew nim as-he pafs’d up
and down 1n the Houle.

L. C. . Why, what an Anfwer 1s that? What
do you mean by his pafiing up and down in the
Houle? Did you never drink with him ?

Berry. Drink with him, my Lord ? Yes.

L. C. ¥. Yes; why People don’tufe to drink
as they go aiong.

Berry. It was in other Company that came to
mv Houfe, no Acquaintance of mine,

L. C. ¥. Was not Mr. Prasice known by you
all three ? Which of you can dany ic? What fay
you, ¢

Hill. My Lord, I did know him.

L. C. F. What fay you, Giver?

Green. Yes, I did know him.

Mr. A, Gea. Bat yet, my Lerd, we thall
prove in the Courfe of our Evidence, that upon
their Foxaminations, they did deny they ever
knew him; bat becaufe the Prifoners give us
this Occalion, I defire Mr. Prauwice may give an
Account of one thing. Ie was concerned in
this very Fact, and there wis no other way to
get any Proof of it, than by the Difcovery of
onc among themiclves. He was once of that Re-
ligion, or eife he had never been concerned in
this thing.  And your Lordhip will find, that
Mr. Pratzee, while he was of that Religion, and
not fure of his Pardon, was under fome Diflyr-
bances and Fears, which prevaded with him to
come before the King, and deny what he had
Sworn. But, my Lord, whichis very obferva-
ble, this Gentleman that had made that Denjal
before the King, was fo far coavinc®d that he
had done amifs 1o it, and {o troubled that he had
done it, that he defired Capt. Rickerdfon (as foon
as he returned back to Prifon) to carry him back
to the King again 3 for he muft go back, and
make good that Confeflion which he at firft had
made ; for it was every Word true. And being
for the King, we defire Capt. Richardfen may be
Sworn.

My, Fuft. Wild, Can you tell where Sir Ed-
munaary Godfiey was doge’d ?

Praunce. No, my Lord, I cannot.

Myr. Fuft. Wid, You fay they did tell you,
that they dogu’d him up and down; Did not
they tell you from whence they doge’d him,
when they kill’d him?

Praunce. No, they did not.

L. C. 7. Nr. Rickardfon, were you by, when
Mr. Praunce denmed all that he had confeffed ?

Capt. Richarafon. My Lord, upon the Sunday
Night before the Prorogation of the laft Parlia-
ment, | recetved a Letter from one of the Lords
of the Council, to bring up Mr. Pramnce betore
the Lords of the Commurtee for lus Exainination.
When I brought him thither, I tfound Mr, Praunce
was difturbed, and defired to fpeak with the
King; and I carsied him into the King’s Clofet,
where he fell down on his Knees, and fud, Az
was Tnmocent, and they were all Iniocent 5 and that
was the Subftance of all he faid. 1 then had
him up to the Council, where he faid the fame
thing, The Lords asked him, Whether any bo-
dy had been tampering with lum ; he anfwered,
No. My Lord, when I came home, I was no
fooner gor within the Doors, but he begg’d of

Yor, 1L

me (for God’s Sake) to go back to the King, and
to acquaint him, not only that what he had now
faid, was falfe; but that all which he had fivorn
before, was Truth. And if his Majefty would
fend him a Pardon, he would make a great Dif-
covery. And, my Lord, more than that, he -
faid, [t was Fear, that made him recant ; and he
gave a full Sawusfaction, that it was only out of
an Apprehenfion that his Life was not fecure,
that fus Trade would be loft among the Roman
Catkolicks 3 and in cafe he had his Pardon, and
were Saved, he fhould have been in danger of be-
ing murdered by them.

L. C. f. Now you have an Account, Mr, Hil,
how he came to deny, and how foon he recant-
ed his Denial.

Air. Jul. jones, You are upon your Oath, Mr.
Praunce 3 Is this all true that he hath faid ?

Praunce, Yes, my Lord, 1t is.

M. Recorder. How hath he behaved himlelf
fince that time? _

Capt, Richardfon. Asfoberly as can be, fince he
had his Pardon. |

M. At Gen. Pray, fince that time, have you
had any D.fcourfe with him? And how did he
carry himfelt?

Capt. Richardfon. Very foberly.

My, A, Gen, Did he exprefs any Abhorrence
of the Prattice of that Church?

Capt. Richardfou. Yes, my Lord, he did fo.

Mr. A, Gen. 1 hope it will make all People
abhor and forfake them in tume, if thefe be their
Practices. In the next Place, my Lord, we will
call Mr. Bedlsw, who, tho’ he was not prefent
at the Murder, yet he faw the Body after it was
dead in Semerfe-Houfe, which goes to the Mat-
ter as to the Place; and he will give you fome
Circumftances which will very much corroborate
the Teftimony of Mr, Praunce.

M. Fuft. IWild. What time was it before they
carried him in, after they had kill’d him ?

L. C. 7. Brother, 1 think they fay, between
cight and nine they decoy’d him down thro’ the
Water-Gate,  Was itnot fo?

Praunce. Yes, my Lord.

M. Fuft. Wild. How long had they kill'd him
before they carried him into the Rooin ¢

Praunce, About a Quarter of an Hour.

Mr. Fuft. Wild. Had he his Sword about him ?

Praunce. Yes, it was found run thro® him.

Mr., Fuft. Wild. Did Siv Edmundbuiy Godfrey
himfelf draw his Sword ?

Praunce. No, he was ftrangled by Surprife, by
getting a Thing about his Neck, and prevented
him of drawing his Sword,

L.C.F. They were Perfons that were ready
prepared for him, they would not permit him to
defend himfelf. |

Mr. Serj. Stringer. My Lord, Before Mr. Bed-
low be Sworn, 1 defire a little to open what we
call him to. My Lord, there were four Priefls
that did defign this Murder ; Le Faire and FVelfp,
and Girald, and Kelly, befides the other Pricfts ;
and they treated with Mr. Bedlew for Four Thou-
fand Pounds, to undertake to kill 2 Gentleman.
My Lord, he did promife to undertake it, buc
failing of his Promife, afterwards Le Faire met
him, and told him it was done; and told him he
(hould have half that Reward to help to carry
him off 5 and withal, carried him into the Room’
where the Body was. And he will tell you

that Praunce was v the Room when he faw
5 F him 3
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him ; and tho’ he never knew Prammce before,
yet when he met him i the Lobby of the
Lord’s Honfe, he knew him again, and charged

lim as the Man that committed this Faét.  And
he will acquaint your Lordfhip, that Le Faire
{iw the Body Lkewife, and gave Mr, Bediozv an
Account of the Murder, with the fame Circom-
ftances that Prausce now relates It

Then Mr. Bedlow was Swsri.
Mr. Recorder, Mr, Bedlswa, Pray do you direét

your Dicourfe to the Jury.

L. C.¥J. Mr. Atorney, Pray do you ask him
your Qucltions, that you may put him in that
Method you would have him ke, to give his
Evidence.

Mr. At Gen. My Lord, T would firft ask him
this Queftion: What Conference he had with
any Perlons, Priefts or others, about murdering
any Body?

Bealow. My Lord, and the Jury, I haveat o-
ther Times, and 1n other Places, proved what
Famibarity I have had with the Priefts and Je-
fuits; andf T have not faushed the Court, and
others, about 1t, yet I hiave done my Duty 1n
endeavouring fo to de. My Lord, I have been
feveral tumes treated with, not only abour the
Plot, but by feveral Perfons about murdering of
a Gentleinan.  They never told me who 1t was
that was to be murdered ; but if T would under-
take i, they, that is, Le Faire and Pritchard, and
NMr. Kaines, and leveral other Priefts, who dif-
courfed with me abour 1, would &nd our fome
to aflift me, and my Reward fhould be very con-
{iderable.

L.C. 7. When was this.?

Bedlow. Tt was in Odfgber Iaft, about the be-
ainning, or latter end of Sepiersver.

L. C.F. Well, Siry goon,

Bedlozo. 1 did adhere to them all along, for [
had a mind to difcover two Years ago, but was
prevented 3 and 1 only drill’d chem on, to know
the Party, that I might prevent them,  But they
would never difcover the Party.

Mr. 4it. Gen. Pr'ythee come. to this particular
part of the Story.

Bedloww, Afterwards they fet me.to infinuate
mylelf’ into. the Acquaintance of Sir Edumndbury
Godfrey, not telling me they had a Defign upon

him.
L.C.¥. Who did?

Bedlow. Le Faire, and Pritchard, and JVellb.

L. C. °f. Girald was not one, was he ?

Bedlow. No, my Lord: But they told me,
that afterwards they would have me introduce

them into his Acquaintance: And [ had been, I
think, ix or feven Days together with Sir Ad-

mundbury Godfrey, at his Houfe; and had got
much Into his Acquaintance,
" Mr. Fut. Wild. By what Means did you get
into his Acquaintance ¢

Bedlow. Why, 1 pretended to get Warrants
for the Good Behaviour apaint Perfops, that
there were none fuch,

L. C. F. Well, and what then?

Bedloww. This was the Week before the Sa-
turday that he was kill’d s and 1 was there every

DJYF but. Saturday: On the Friday 1 went_ to:
the Greybound Tavern, and 1 fent my Boy. to fee.

it Sir Edmundbury Godfrey were at home: Sir
Edmundpury Godfrey was not at home then,
L. C. . When was that?

Bedlsw. The very Day before he was kill’d -
If he had been at home, 1 would have gone over
to him, and would have defired him to go over
to them.

L. C. . Were the Priefts there ?

Bedlow. Yes, my Lord, there was Pritchard,
and Le Faire, and Welfb, and Kaines, and anq.
ther; five Jefuits: And, as I faid, I fent my
Boy to fee if he were at home, and he brought
me word he wasnot 3 and if he had, I was to
have gone to him, to have fetch’d him thither,
that they might infinuate themfelves into his Ac-
quaintance: And indeed, they had Tongue e
nough to wheedle themiclves into any one’s Ac-
guaintance : S0 he not being at home, we came
nto tae City, twoof the Jefuits and I,

M. A, Gen. Which two?

Bedlow. Le Faireand Welh. The next Morn-
ing Le Farre came to my Chamber, and T was
not then within; but by accident, I met him,
about Four of the Clock, in Lincoln’s-Inn-Fields -
We went to the Palfprave’s-Flzad Taverny where
faliing into Difcourfe, he told me there was a
Gentleman that was to be put out of the way;
that was the Phrafe he ufed, he did not really
fay Murder him ; for they don’t count it Mur-
der.

- L.C.7. No, no, they put it into fofter
Terms.

Bedlow. They told me it was to be done to-
night. I asked who 1t was, they faid it was a.
very material Man : For he had all the Informa-
tions that Mr. Oates and Dr. Tongue- had given
in ; that feveral had been employed in the doing
of it, that feveral Attempts had been made, and
that they had mifs’d feveral Opportunitics, and
had not done 1t till then s but if he fhould not
be taken out of the way, and the Papers taken
from him, the Bufines would be fo obitiucted,
and go near to be difcovered, to that Degree,
that they would not be able to bring this Defign,
to pals, but muft ftay tll another Age before,
they fhould efiect it. I asked him again, wha.
it was, he fuid he would not tell me, but it was:
a very material Man, I told him, that accord-.
ing to my Promife, I would affift; but in fuch
a Cale, I fhould need a great many Men to he
with me, he being fo confiderable a Perfon, I
asked him then, where the Money was, that
was formerly promifed ¢ he told me no worfea

Man was engaged for it, than my Lord Bellafs,
and Mr. Colemaiz had Order to pay it.

M. Juff. Fones. What was that Reward ?
Bedlsc. Four Thoufand Pounds.

L.C7. Who was it that firft named this-
Gentleman to you to be Sit Edmundbury. God-

Jrer?

Bedloze, They never named him to me at all.

L. C. '} Let us know when you firft knew it
to be Siv Edmundbury Godfrey ?

Bedlpwo, 1 parted with him then, but came:
not according to miy Promife. I was to meet him.
at the Cloilters at Somer/er-Honfe that Night ;. hue
I knew their Defign was to murder fome Body,,
and I would not come, I fiw him no more il
Mbonday Night, then I met him in Red-Lipn-
Court, where he put up_his Cane to his Nofe,. as: .
who fhould fay, I was to blame in not keeping,
my, Promife. And we went together to the.
Grevbound Tavern in Dleetflrect, where he char--
ged me with my Breach of Promife. T told:

him Twas takenup by other Company, and un-
lefs
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lefs they would tell me who it was I was to kill,

I would have no Hand in it: For I did not know

but that it might be my own particular Friend.
And I would not murder any private Perfon, un-
lefs I knew who it was, and for what Reafon.
Well, fays he, we will tell you more anon if you
meet me to-night at Somerfes-fonfe, at Nine o’
clock. I did meet him exactly at that time in
the Cloifters, where we walk’d, and !:alk’d a
great while, And then he took me into the
middle of the Court, and told me, You have
done 1ll, that you did not hclp_m this Bulinefs ;
but if you will help to carry him off, you fhall
have half the Reward. Why, fad [, Is be Mur-
deved? Yes, faid he. May [ not fee him, fad I?
Yes, you may, faid he; and fo took me by the

Hand, and led me into the Room through a dark -

Entry. In the Room were a great many, I can’t

tell who they all were.
My, Att, Gen. How many were there?
Bedlow. There might ftand a great many be-

hind one another. 1faw Four or Five.

Mr. Fuft. Fones. Whatkind of Light had they,
Mr. Praunce ?

Praunce It was a middle-fized Lanthorn.

Nir. Fuft. Fones. Was it a fmall Light, ora
areat Light? _

Bedlow. Tt was a fmall Light.

Mz, Tuff. Fones, Had they no Light but that
Lanthorn ¢

Bedlow, No: And they did not open it til] I
had had a turn about the Room.

L.C.# Did they difcourfe of carrying him
away then ¢ _

Bedlow. Yes, they did,

L.C.7. Did you know him, when he lay
dead there? |

Bedlow. Yes, your Lordthip fhall hear how I
came to know him: One flep’d to the Body,
and threw off the thing that lay upon him, and
I went and look’d upon him; and he had oot
aboutr his Neck fuch a kind of a fathion’d Cra-
vat as this about my Neck; and I went to
try, and could not get my Finger in betwixt :
So I faw him, his Bofom was all open, and I
knew him prefently; for thofe Jefuits that were
there, were not thofe who had employed me to
infinuate myfelf into his Acquaintance; and fo
they thought I had not known him, I asked
who it was, they faid it wasa Man that belong’d
to a Perfon of Quality. I was mightily ftruck
and daunted when I knew him: I would fain
have perfuaded them to have tied Weighes at
his Head and Feet, and thrown him into the
Rivers and afterwards 1 would have drage’d for
him, and took him up there. But they did not

think that {o fafe : No (faid they) we will pur it
upon bimfelf, there are none but Friends conceried,

[asked Le Faire how they fhould get him out?
They fud, I @ Chair. Then 1 asked them,
which way they would get him into the Chair,
and out of the Gate? They faid the Porter was
to {it up to let them out.

Mr. Recorder. What Porter?

Bedlsw. The Porter of the Houfe.

Mr. Recorder, Who, Berry 2

Bedlsw, Yes, As for that &7/, or the Qld
Man, I do not know that Iever had any parti-
cular Knowledge of them; but only I looked
upon them as ill-defigning Men, feeing them in
the Chapel.

L.C. ¥ Did you fee e’er a one of the three

Prifoners there at that Time?
Vor, I,

Bedlow, No, my Lord: But I have fuch a
Remembrance of Faces, that I could tell, if I faw
them again, any that I did fee there, tho’ the
Light was but fmall. They told me, They bad
Jrangled bim 5 but how, I did not know, When
they pref°d me to help to carry him out, T then -
excufed myfelf, and faid, It was too early to
carry him out yet; but about Eleven or Twelve
0 ’clock would be a better Time. And I affured

them I would come again, Said Ze Faire to me,
Upois the Sacrament you took on Thurfday, you will
be at the carrying off of this Man at Night? [
promifed him I would.  And he went away, and
left me there, T made what Speed away I could,
for I was very unfatisfied in myflf; having fo
great a Charge upon me, as the Sacrament of
the Alear, which, after the Difcovery of the
Piot, was adminiftred to me twice a2 Week to
conceal it. I could not tell how to difcover : I
went then to Briffel, but very reftlefs and dif-
turbed in my Mind; and being perfuaded by
what God was pleafed to put into my Mind,
calling to Remembrance that fome Murders
had been alrecady commitied, and greater ones
were daily intended, I was at laft convinc’d, and
could no longer forbear Dilcovery. 1 wrote to
the Secretary of it, and went to the Parliament
and gave in my Information. And one Day I
met with Mr, Praunce in the Lobby, and knew
him, and apprehended him,

Mr. Ait. Gen. 1 will ask you one Queftion.
Had you any Difcourle with Mr. Praunce be-
tween the Time you faw him with the Body, and
the Day he was apprehended ?

Bedlsw, Noy I nmever faw him to this Day,
to have any Converfe with him.

M. fuft. ild. Did not you fee Hil that
Night, when you were to have carried him a-
way !

Bealsw. No, my Lord.

Mr. jult. Wild. Nor Green, nor Berry ?

Bedlowo. Green I did fee about the Court, and
Berry, 1 was told, was to open the Gate that
Mondgy Night.  But, my Lord, when they
found I did not come again, they defifted that
Night, and kept it off longer, for fear I fhould
come again to {top them,

Mr. Att, Gen. He did not refufe to help them,
but promifed to do it, and failed : And they
finding that he had failed them, would not let
the Body lie where it was for fear of Difcovery,
but removed 1t back again.

- Mr. Fuft. Dolben. What did Praunce fay, when
you firft teok notice of him?

Bealsw. 1 underftood afterwards that he was
taken upon Sufpicion, becaule at that Time his
Maid had made a Difcovery, that he was about
that “Iime out of his Lodgings. And while he
was there in the Conftable’s Hands, Mr, O.tes
came by, and he defired to fee him; and pre-
fently after I came thither, and the Conftable
asked him, Mr. Praunce, will you fee Mr. Bed-
lrw? No, he faid, he would not: Then he

ut his Hat over his Eyes, that I mighe not fee
Eis Face, and kept it fo. The Prefs being grear,
and being defirous to be private myfelf, I fpoke
to the Guard to put out all that had no Bufinefs
there, and they cried out, that all fhould avoid
the Room, but Mr. Bedlow and his Friends, And
when he was going out with the reft, he Jift up
his Hat, to fec his way ; and tho’ before I did
not mind him, yet I happened at his paffing by
o) 2 me,
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me, to caft my Eyes upon his Face, and prefent-
Iy knew him, and cried, Oh! pray, Sir, ftay;
you are on¢ of my Friends that mult ftay here.
And I prefently charged my Guards to take
Charge of him. Suith the Conftable, He 15 my
Prifoner: Is he fo, faid I, then you have a ve-
fy good Prifonér, and pray look fafe to him.
Arid then when I went into the Houfe of Lords,
Y made out my Charge againft hun,
 Mr. Recorder. Now if the Prifoners have any
Queftions to ask Mr. Bedlow, they may have free
Liberty to do it.

Hill. 1 never faw him before in my Life.

L.C. . Do you know any of them ?

Bediow. 1 know Mr, Berry and Green very
well.

L.C.¥. Pray, Mr. Praunce, was the Dark-
Lanthorn at Hill's Lodgings, or at the other

Place ?
Praunce. At the other Place.

L. C. ¥. Look you here, Mr. Praunce, they
carried him to Hill’s on Saturday Night, and he
lay there till Monday Night: What time on Mor-
day Night was it that they removed him into
Somerfet-Houfe ?

Pramnee. 1 was not there when they did re-
move him,

L. C.¥. What Time did you fee him there?

Praunce. About Nine or Ten o’clock,

L.C.¥. What Time was it that you faw him
there, Mr. Bedlow ¢

Bedlswo. It was after Nine, my Lord.

Praunce. They had then removed him to So-
smerfer-Honfe, and Mr. Hill asked what they in-
tended to do with the Body? They faid, They

would carry it out that Night; but they did

not. But there the Dark-Lanthorn was, and on
Tuefday Night they removed him back again.

Mr. Art. Gen, Now, my Lord, if you pleafe,
we [hall go on to call fome Witnefles that were
not prefent at the Murder; for direct Evidence,
as to that, can come only out of the Mouth of
fome that were concerned in 1t ; but to corrobo-
rate, by concurrent Circumftances, the Tefti-
mony which hath been already given. And firlt
we fhall call the Conftable, to prove that he
found Sir Edmundbury Godfrey in the Fields, in
the fame manner which Mr. Praunce fays they
told him they lefr lum,

L.C. Y. Mr. Attorney, you promtfed you would
prove, that when thele Perfons were examined,
they did deny before the Houfe of Lords that they
knew Praunce.

My, Att, Gen. My Lord, in that we were mif-
taken, I underftand now, 1t wasonly Berry de-
nied that he did know Gira/d.

L.C.F. Why, did you never know Mr. Gi-
fl?!d ¢

Berry. Never in my Life.

L. C. ¥. Mr. Praunce, have not you feen Gi-
rald with Berry ¢

Prauice. Yes, 1 have, but they ufually went

by feveral Names.
L. €. . Did you ever fee Girald in Hill’s Com-

pany ?

Praunce, Yes, that I have,

L. C. ¥. Was there no Centinel fet that Mos-
day Night, that Saturdsy Night, and that //ed:
Hg:fﬂ:‘-' nght?

Praunce, My Lord, I am not certain, I took no-
tice of none; if there were any, they were at

Berry’s Houfe, and he opened the Gate, when we
came out with the Secan,

My, At Gen. Mr, Berry, 1 fuppole, could take
Order with the Centinel, and give them fome
Entertainment in his own Lodge.

Then Mr. Brown the Conflable was Swors.

Mr. Recorder, Pray, in what Pofture did you
find Sir Ednundbury Godfrey €

Brewn. 1 found him, my Lord, in a Ditch,
with his Sword through him, and the end of i
was two Handfulls out of his Back.

L. C. #. Was he bloody ?

Brown. There was no Blood at all, there was
no Blood 1n the Ditch.

L. C. ¥. Was the Sword fticking in his Body

Brown. Yes, my Lord, but there was no Blood

“at all when it was taken out; they had run it in-

to another Place, but that happened to be againft
a Rib, and fo 1t could not go thro’; but there
was no Blood there,

My, Jufp, Fones. Were there any Bruifes on his
Breaft?

Brown., He did look black about the Breaft.

My, Ait. Gen, My Lord, I would ask, whe-
ther his Neck were broken ?

Brown, Yes, I fuppole it was.

L.C. ¥ How do you know it?

Brown. It was very weak, and one might turn
his Head from one Shoulder to the other.

L. C. F. Where was his Stick and Gloves ?

Brown. They were on the Bank-fide,

L. C. 7. Whole Sword wasit?

Brown, His Servants faid it was his own.

Mr. Att, Gen, Pray, had he any Money in his
Pocket ?

Brown. Yes; a great deal of Gold and Sil-
ver.

L.C.F. Ay, ay, for they count Theft Sin,
but not Murder.

Mr. Fufp. Wild, They left that, to let Men
think he murdered himfelf,

L.C. 7. Well; will you ask this Witnefs any
Queftions before he goes?

Capt. Richardfon, They fay they will ask him
none.

My, Ait. Gen. Then we delire to call the Chi-
rurgeons that view’d and opened the Body, Mr.
Skillard, and Mr. Cambridge ; both whom were
fworn,

My, A, Gen. We begin with Mr. Skillard ;
Pray, Sir, inform my Lord and the Jury, Did
you fee the Body of Sir Edmundbury Goafrey 2

Skillard. Yes, 1 did view the Body.

Mr. Att, Gen, When? What Time did you
fee 1t?

Skillard. About Twelve of the Clock.

M. A, Gen, 'What Day of the Week was1t?

Skillard, On Friday, the next Day after he was
found.

Mr. it. Ges, Did you obferve his Breaft ?
how was it ¢

Skillard. His Breaft was all beaten with {fome
obtufe Weapon, either with the Feet, or Hands.
or fomething.

My, Ast, Ges, Did you obferve his Neck ?

Skillard. Yes; it was diftorted,

My, Att, Gen. How far 2 ~

Skillard. You might have taken the Chin and
have fet it upon either Shoulder.

Mr. Att. Gen, Did you obferve the Wound ?

Skillard, Yes, I did: it went in at one Place,
and ftopp’d at a Rib, the other Place it was quite
thro” the Body ¢

N,
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M. Ait. Gen. Do you think he was killed by
that Wound ?

Skillard. Nos fot then there would have been
fome Evacuation of Blood, which there was not,
And befides, his Bofom was open, and he had a
Flannel Waftecoat and a Shirt on; and neither

thofe, nor any of his Clothes were penetrated.
M. Att. Gen, But are you {ure his Neck had

been broken ?

Skillard, Yes, T am fure,

Mr. Ast. Gen. Becaufe fome have been of Opi-
nion, that he hanged himfelf; and his Relations,
to fave his Eftate, run him through; I would
defire to ask the Chirurgeon what he thinks of i,

Skillard, ‘There was more done to his Neck
than an ordinary Suffocation ; the Wound went
thro® his very Heart, and there would have ap-
peared fome Blood, if it had been done quickly
after his Death,

Myr. Ait. Gen. Did it appear by the View of
the Body that he was ftrangled or hanged?

Skillard, He was a lean Man, and his Muf
cles, if he had died of the Wound, would have
been turgid : And then again, all firangled Peo-
ple never fwell, becaufe there is a fudden Depri-
vation of all the Spirits, and a hindring of the
Circulation of the Blood.

Mr. At Gen. How long do you believe he
might be dead before you faw him?

Skillard. 1 believe four or five Days. And
they might have kept him a Week, and he ne-
ver {fwell'd at all, being a lean Man. And when
we ripp'd him up, he began for to putrify ; we
made two Incifions to give it vent, and the Li-
quor that was 1 his Body did a little fmell. The
very lean Flefh was fo near turned into Putre-
faction, that it ftuck to the Inftrument when we
Ctit 1L,

Mr. Recorder. My Lord, here is another Chi-
rurgeon, My, Cambridge. Pray, Sir, are you
{worn ?

Cambridge. Yes, [ am.

Mr. Recorder. When did you fee the Body of
Sir Edmundbury Godfrev ?

Cambridge. Upon Friday, the very fame Day
the Gentleman did. I found his Neck diflocated,
and his Breaft very much beaten and bruifed.
And I found two Punétures under his lefr Pap,
the one went againft the Rib, the other quite
through the Body, under the left Pap.

Mr. Att. Gen. Do you believe that Wound was
the Occalion of his Death ?

Cambridge. No, I believe it was given him af
ter his Death,

L. C. 7. And his Neck was broke ?

Cambridge. His Neck was diflocated, Sir.

My, Att, Gen. Why, that is broken. Now,
my Lord, we ihall call Sir Edmandbury Godfrey’s
E-Gaid, Elizabeth Curtis. Swear ker, Which was
lone.

Mr. Recorder, Your Lordfhip knows, that Mr,
Praunce did fay in the Beginning, that they had
been feveral Times at his Houle, enquiring for
him: Now we call this Perfon to tell you what
fhe knows about that.

Mr. A, Gen. Elizabeth Curtis, look upon the
Prifoners, and tell my Lord and the Jury whe-
ther you know any of them or no.

Elizabeth Curtis. This Man, that I now hear
called Green, my Lord, was at my Mafter’s about
a Fortnight before he died.

L. C.}. Whattodo?

Eliz. Curtis, 1 don’t know, but he asked for
Sir Edmundbury Godfrey. |

L. C. 7. What Time of the Day was it ?

Lliz. Cortis. It was i the Morning.

My. At Gen. What did he fay ? -

Eliz. Cyrtis. He asked for Sir Edumndbury-
Goafrey, and when he came to him, he faid, Good
Morrow, Stir, in Englifh, and afterwards fpoke to
him in French, [ could not underftand him.

Mr. Recorder. 1 defive the may confider well,
look upon him.

Eliz, Curtis. That is the Man.

Green. Upon my Soul I never faw him in all
my Life.

Lliz. Curtis. He had a darker-coloured Peri-
wig when he was there, and was abouta Quar-
ter of an Hour talking with my Mafter.

M. Att. Gen. Are you fure this was the Man.

Eliz. Curtis. Yes, lam; and that other Man,
Hjll, was there that Saturdey Morning, and did
fpeak with him before he went out,

L. C. 7. That you wiil deny too?

Hill, Yes, I do.

L. C. J. Howdo you know he was there ?

Efiz, Curtis. I was in the Parlour at that Time,
making up the Fire,

L.C. }. Had you ever feen him before thae
Time ?

Eliz, Curtis. No, never before that Time. |
went into the Parlour to carry my Mafter’s Break-
faft, and Dbrought 2 Bunch of Keys with me in,
and there Hill was with him, And I went up
Stairs about fome Bufinefs, and came down again,
wanting the Keys, which I had left upon the
Table; and Al was all that Time wich my
Mafter.

M. Sol. Gen. How do you know he was there?

Eliz, Curtis. 1 was in the Parlour, and ftirred
up the Fire, and he was there a good while,

Ay, Juft. Jenes. How long atter did you fee
him agamn?

Eliz. Cursis. Notull T faw him in Newgate,

Mr. Fuft. Fones. How long wasthat afterwards?

Eliz. Curtis. A Month ago.  Burt it is not the
Man that brought the Note to my Mafter.

Mr, Att. Gen. What Note ¢

Eliz. Cartis. A Note that 2 Man brought to

my Mafter that Night before.
My, Art. Gen, What 1s become of that Note?

Eliz. Curtis. My Lord, I cannottell, my Ma-
fter had it.

Mr, Att. Gen. Pr'ythee tell us the Story of it

Lliz. Cartis. There was a Man came to my
Mafter’s Houle, and asked if Sir Edsisundbury
Godfrey were within.  He faid he had a Lerter
for him ; and thewed it me, 1t was tied up in a
Knot. I told him my Mafter was within, but
bufy ; but, faid I, 1t you pleafe I will carry it
in to him: He did fo, and [ gave it to my Maf-
ter; when I went out again, the Man {taid and
asked for an Anfwer: | went in again, and told
my Mafter, that the Man required an Anfver.
Pr’ythee, faid he, tell him I don’t know what to
make of 1t.

Mr. Fuft. Wild, When was that ?

Eliz, Curtis. On Friday Night.

Mr. Fufp. Wild. When? The Friday Night
before he was murdered ¢

Eliz. Curtis. Yes,
- Mpr. Ait. Gen, But you fwear that Hill was there

 the Saturday Morning ¢

Eliz, Curtis. Yes, he was. N
M,

s
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Mr. Sol. Gen, In what Clothes was he then?

Eliz. Curtis, The fame Clothes that he hath
now.,

Mr. Fuft. W3ld. Are you fure they are the fame
Clothes ?

Eliz. Curtis. Yes.

My, Sol, Gen. Here is a great Circumftance,
my Lord. Iasked her what Clothes he was 1n,
when he came to Sir Edmndbury Godfrey’s? and
fhe faith, the fame that he hath now.

L. C. ¥. Have you ever fhifted your Clothes?

Hill, No indeed, I have not,

FEliz. Curtis, But for the Man that brought the
Note, I cannot fwear it is he.

Hi/l. But fhe did fay, when fhe came to fee me
in Newgate, that the never faw me in my Life;
and, my Lord, 1 hope I have fufficient Witneffes
to prove where I was that Morning,

L.C.¥. She fays, fhe cannot {wear you were
the Man that brought the Note,

Hill. My Lord, I defire the will tell me about
what Thme it was I was there,

Eliz. Curtis. It was about nine or ten o’clock.

Mr. Att, Gen, That agrees with Mr, Praunce’s
exactly in point of Time. Now, if your Lordfhip
pleafe, we will proceed, and call Mr, Lancellos
Stringery, and Mr. Vincent,

Mr. Recorder. My Lord, we docall thefe Wit-
neffes to prove, that thefe Men had Meetngs
with Mr. Praunce at the Plw.

Thei was Lancellot Stringer fworn.

Mr. Recorder. Pray tell my Lord and the Jury,
whether you know Mr, Pramce.

L. Stringer. Yes, Sir, 1 do.

My, Recorder. Have you feen him at the Plow
at any Time?

L. Stringer. Yes, Sir, I have,

Mr. Recorder. 1n what Company there? 'Was
+ Mr. Green there?

L. Stringer. Yes, he was,

My Recorder. Which was he ? [ He poiuts 10 him,]
Mr. Recorder. And whoeller

L. Stringer. There was that i,

Mr. Ait. Gen, How often?

L. Stringer. Several Times,

L. C. ¥. Flow long before Sir Eduundbury God-
frey was murdered ?

L. Stringer. | cannot tel], my Lord.

L.C. ¥. Do you remember any other Com-
pany was with him ?

L. Stringer. Yes, there were leveral other Com-
pany.
Mr. Recorder. Name them.,

L. Stringer. ‘There was Mr, Fitz-Girald and
Mr, Hill,

Mr. Ait, Gen. And yet Hell faith he never faw
Girald,

L. Stringer. And there was Kelly, he was ano-
ther of them, and Praunce.

L.C.¥. Did you know Pernatt ?

L. Stringer. Yes, my Lord.

L.C.7. How now? What fay you to it,
Mr. Hill, and Mr. Green? Were you never at
the Plewe, drinking with Mr, Praunce ?

Hill, Yes, my Lord, feveral Times,

L. C. ¥. What fay you, Mr. Green ?

Green. | have drank with him there,

L. C. ¥. Do you know Girald 2

Hill. 1 know one Girald, ‘

Mr. Sol, Gen. Now, will your Lordfhip pleale
to let me prove, that at the Council he owned

he knew Girald and Kelly, and now ’tis proved
he hath been in Kelh’s Company, he fays, he doeg
not know Girald. |

Hil. My Lord, that was a Miftake, for I do
know Kelly by fight, that is, I knew two Mgn
that ufed the Chapel very much, and he was one
of them,

L.C. 7. But you, Witnefs, fay you have feen
Girald and them together ?

L. Stringer. Yes, I have.

L. C. ¥. How many Times?

L. Stringer. 1 cannot tell, how many, my Lord;
feveral times,

L. C. 7. Have you feen them twice together ?

L. Stringer. Yes, 1 have.

My, Recorder. Now to fettle it, I would ask

him, with your Lordthip’s Favour, when he came
to live with his Mafter. You, young Man, when

did you come to live with your Mafter at the
Plow ?

L. Stringer. Why, 1 have been with him two
Y ears.

My. Recorder. But when was it you came laft
to live at the Plow ?

L.Stringer. In Bartholomew-Tide latt.

M. Recorder. Tt was but fve Weeks before
Sir Edmundbury Godfrey was murdered,

L. C. }. Do you, Green, know Mr. Girald 2

Green, Yes, I do.

M. Recordir. Then pray fwear Mr. Vincent.
‘Which was done,

Mr. Recorder. Come, pray Sir, do you live at
the Plw?

Vincent. Yes, Sir, I do.

Mr. Recorder. Then pray, do you tell my Lord
and the Jury, if you know any of the Prioners
at the Bar, and which of them ?

Vincent, I know Mr. Green,

M. Recorder. Do you know any body elfe ?

Vincent, Yes, 1 know Hill, and I know Berry.

Mr. Recorder, Have you feen thefe Perfons ac
your Houfe?

Vincent. Yes, I have,

L. C. 7. With whom ?

Vincent. I can’c tell every body with whom they
were.

L. C. 7. Were they there with Prawsce ?

Vincent, Yes, Sir.

L. C. . Did you know one Girald?

Vincent, Yes, Sir.

L C.}. Hath he been at your Houfe ?

Vincent, Yes, Sir, he hath.

L.C. 7. Who was with him ?

Vincent. 1 can’t tell juitly.

L. C. 7. Did you know Kelly ?

Vincent. Yes, 1did.

L. C.¥. Hath he been there ?

Viscent, Yes, he hath,

L. C. ¥. In what Company ?

Vincent. With Praunce,

L.C.¥. Andwith any of the Prifoners ?

Vincent, Yes, but I can’t tell particularly with
whom. .

My, Ait. Gen. Now, my Lord, as thefe were
Mectings before the Faét was commutted, to
copfult how to do it fo we at the Beginning told
you of a Meeting after it was done, and that
was at Bow. We thall therefore call fome Wit-

nefles as to that ; and they are Richard Cary, and
William Evans., Firlt fwear Richard Cary.
[#Waich was done.

Mr.
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M. Recorder. Do you remember you wer€ fent

of a Meffige from the Queeids-Head at Bow; and
whither ? Pray tell my Lord and the Jury,

Cary. 1 remember it very well; there were
three Gentlemen that fent for me to the Queen’s-
Head , and I being fent for did come; and when
] came-up Stairs, they asked me 1f I knew Pop-
Jars I faid, T knew it very welll Then they
asled me, if 1 knew Mr. Dethick; 1 told them,
I thoughe Edid. Then faid i.fllf.‘y, you muft car-
ry this Letter to Gesrge Dethick, Elqs at Poplar,
and deliver it to his own Hands, and to no boedy
eife.  Accordinely, away I went, and carried the
Totter: I wene to the Door, and asked if he
were within 3 his Man faid he was above Sturs,
hut they would call him to me; and calling him
to me, Sir, faid I, there are fome Gentlemen at
the Queer’s-Head at Bow, that have fent me with
2 Letter to you. So he looked upon the Let-
ter, and, faith he, go and te)l them I will be
with them prefently.  So, may 1t pleale you, my
Lord, I came again, and when I came, the Gen-
tlemen were there {Hll.  Well, faid they, go and
drink 2 Glals of Claret, which ftood upon the
Table, and they gave me Six-pence, aind I went
vy,

M. Recorder. Pray look upon Mr. Praunce, can
vou remember wheiher that Man wasthere?

" Cary. There were three of them, and' he looks
Jike one.

My, Recorder. Mr. Praunce, do you remember
this was the Man you fent ?

Praunce. Yes, my Lord, thiswas the fame Man
that was fent.

L. C. . Well, cail the other.

Then. William LEvans, the Boy of tpe Houfe at the
Queen’s-Head, was frerin,

My, Recorder. Hark you, do you remember
any Company that was at your Mafler’s Houfe.
two or three Months agone 2

W, Evans, Yes,. 1 do,

My, Recorder, Do you remember that you
heard them ralk any thing there ?

W. Evans. They puld out a Paper and read
1L,

L.C.}. You Boy, do you know Mr, De-
thick,

V. Evans, Yes, 1 do.

jo. C. 7. Was he there?

V. Evans. He did come to them, my. Lord.

Mr. Recorder. Wehat had. they to Dinner there ?

7. Evans. They had Flounders.

M. Recorder. Who boughit them ?

IV, Evans. One of them, I can’t tel] who.

Mr. Recorder. What had they cffe ?

. Evans. A Barrel of Oylters,

AMr. Recorder. Pray give my Lord an Account
what you obferved and heard.

WW. Evans. Sir, 1 know nothing but that they
pull’d out a Paper, and read it, apd named Sir
Ednndbiiy Godfrey’s Name, And while T was at
tae Door, fome body came and threatned to kick
me down Stairs.

L.C. ¥ He faith juft as Mr. Prausce faid i

cvery Particular.

Mr. det. Gen. Now if 1t pleafe your Lordfhip,

we defire to call Sir Robert Southwoell, to prove
what Mr_. Praunce {ud betore the Council, and
how particular he was ; and did, to fome of the

Lords who were fent with him to Somerfet-Honfe,
point out the Places.,

Mr, §ol, Gen. We call him to thew, that when
Praunce was examined before the King; he was
fent with fome of the Lords, and Sir Rodert
Southwell, to Somerfet-Houfe, where he pointed
with his Finger, and fhewed the Places where
all was done; fo we fhall thew your Lord-
fnip and the Jury, how exat he was in every
Thing,

Then Sir Robert Southwell 2was fwors.

Mr. Recorder. Pray, Siv Robert, will you tcli
your Knowledge?

Sir Robert Seutlnwell, My Lord, 1 was upon
the 24th of December waiting upon his Majeity
1in Counctl, and Mr. Praunce was fent for, to
fpeak his Knowledge concerning this Murder,
and he then gave a peneral Account of Things,
which, becaufe it did relate to that Bench, and
this Corner, and that Room, and that Paflage,:
and that Gallery, it was not underltood by the
Board, and thereupon his Majefty thoughe fit to
appoint my Lord Duke of Afenmonth, and the
Ear} of Offory, and Mr, Vice-Chamberkin to the
Quecen, to go thither, and take the Examination
upon the Ptace, and repori it to the Board : And
I, being Clerk of the Council, tho® not in wait-
ing at that Time, and having taken notice of
what Mr. Pranirce had there depofed, I did wait
upon- thofe Lords, and took the Examination.
upon the Place. And what I did take upon-the
Place, This was done here, and that there, L
drew up into a Report, and the Report is figned:
by thole two Noble Lords, and was read that

?f;_ternoon at the Board ; and to that I refer my
elf,

Mr. Ait. Gen, Pray, Sir Robert, Did he fhew
the particular Places to thofe Lords ?

Sir Robert Southwell, Yes, he did,  Firft, the
Bench whereon they were fitting when Sir fid-
mundonry Godfrey was coming downsj then the
Corner into which they drew him when they
had ftrangled him; then the Place where one-
Berry went to fray, which. was at the Stairs that
lead to the upper Court, then a little Door ar
the End of the Stables, which lead up a Pair of
Stairs, and at the Head of the Stairs, a long
dark Entry, and at the Top of thofe Stairs, a.Door-
on the left Hand, which being opened, thew?d’
us eight Steps, which lead up to the Lodgings
that were Dr. Godwin’s - in which il was fad!
to be Inhabitant for feven Years before, And
affoon as we were gone two Steps, there was a
little Clofet or Cabinet on the night Fand,- in
which there was a Bed, and there he thewed my
Lords, This 1s the Place where we handed him
up firft, and here we left him, fuid he, in the
Care of Hill for two Nights,

Mr. Fuft. I¥ild. You were there, Sir Rébert
Southwell, upon the Place, when he fthew’d- them
thefe ‘Things.

Sir Robert Southwell, Yes, Sir, I was there,

My, Fuft. Wild, Wasitanlwerable to.what he
had declared to the King and Council ?

Str Robert Somthawell, Yes 1t was anfwerable to
all Things he had faid in the Morning,

Mr. Fuft, Fones. And fuitable to what he‘fays
NOW ?

Sir Robert Southwell; Yes, fuitable to what
he fays now, but only now he fays more than het
faid then. And as to what he fays about the

Chambers of Siv Fobu- diundel; they could” not
be:
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be Sir Fub's Lodgings, for they were not capable
of receiving a Perlon of that Quality.

Praynce. 1 faid, I did beleve they did belong
to Sir Fobn Arundel,

L. (.. They were Lodgings pzrhaps that be-
long’d to his Scrvants, tho’ not to him.

M At Gen. Sir Robert, T delire to know,
whether Mr. Prauice, when he fhew>d thele
Places, and made thefe Deleriptions, did he do
it with any Helitancy, or did he do it readily ?

Siy Rebert Somthwell, Hitherte, my Lord, he
went direftly and pofitively, asif any body thould
waltk to Weftminfler-ball Door.  Bar afterwards,
when the Lords did defire to know whither the
Body was carried, he fud, 1t W:.l’i_iﬂ[ﬂﬂﬁ‘:ll'ﬂf: Room
of the Houle by the Garden; for this s an outer
Part of the Houfe, which any body may do any
thing In, without their Knowledge that are with-
in. And he undertook to lead them to the lace
as well as he could ; and fo away we went thro’
the long dark Entry that leads into the outer
Court ot the great Foule; and crofiing the Q.1a-
dranale, he leads us to the Piazza, and down a
Puir of Staire, and fo far, faid he, I am fure 1
went; then, affoon as we were down  Stairs,
there is a great Square Court, then he began to
ftagger, as it he did not know his way, but
there was no way but to go on however, and on
we went, and coming crofs the Court, we came
into feveral Rooms, and going thro’ them, we
came up Stirs again, and fo into feveral other
Rooms again,  Sure, faid he, we were here, but
I can’t teil, and he was in a Diftraétion what
Room ke faw the Body iny bur, faid he, thus
far | am certain I am righe ; which was accord-
ing to the Paper, and I refer my felf to that.

M Fop WAld. But, you fay, that what he
had f2id to the Lords in the Council, was the fame
ehat he faid when you were by upon the Place ?

Sir Kebert Southoell. Yes,

L. C. ¥. His doubtfulnefs of the Room does
affert and give uredit to his Teflimony, and con-
Arms it to any honett Man in Faugland. Here,
faith Iie, T will not be politive, but having fworn
the oter Things which he well remembred, po-
fitivelv, he 15 made the more credible for his
Douttiulnes of a thing which he does not re-
member, which a Man that could fvear any thing
would not ftick at.

M, Fufi. Fones. Belides, he was not there but
by Night, and all the Light he had was a Dark-

Lanthorn. ‘

My, Sol. Gen. Now, Sir Robert, 1 would ask
you one Qucltion, 1t you pleate, Do you remem-
ber that Hi// was examined at the Councl about
this Mateer ?

Sir Rovert Soutbwell, My Lord, thefe are the
Notes that I ook upon thefe Mens Examinations,
if your Lord(hip pleafes they may be read.

Mr. Recorder. Sir Robert, We ask you but as
to one paruicular thing, therefore if you pleafe to
/ Yook upon it, and refreth your Memory, you may
read 1t to your felt, and tellus only the Subftance,
Which he did.

My, Sol. Gen, Now, Sir, if you pleafe, Do you
remember that M7/l was there ¢

Sir Robert Soutbwell. Yes, 1 find he was exa-

minced.

Mpr. Sol. Gen, Did not he deny there that he
knew Ke/ly, but that he knew Girald ?

Sir Robert Southawell, Yes, I do find it here fet
down that he did deny he knew Kelly, but that he
knew Gira/d,

Hiil. Tfud I knew one Girald, but not that.

M. Recorder, But before the Council he fiid
he knew Girald, not one Girald, .

L. C. F. This way of anfwering is like the Ex-
amination that was taken lately amongft fome of
them. A Perfon was asked when he faw fuch a
Prielt ? He denied that he had feen him in four-
teen Days.  Bat then comes one and proves to
his Face, that he was with him m Company all
Night, within 2 Weck and lels, Ay, fays he, that’s
true, but I faid I had not feen him wn fourteen
Days. And fo they may take Qaths to ferve the
King faithfully all the Days of their Lives, buc
in the Nights they may murder him, and keep
their QOaths for all that,

Mr. Fuft, Dslben. 1 would know, whether the
Girald you know be a Prieft or no?

Hifl, Fle 1s not.

M. Fuft, Dolben. Then you do not know Gi-
rald the Prieft?

Hiil. No, I do not,

M, Recorder, Call Mr, Thomas Stringer, And
he was fworn.

My, Recorder. Pray, Mr, Stringer, will you tell
my Lord and the Jury whatit was that M, Berry
faid about any Directions he had to keep all Per-
fons out of Semerfet-Houfe, about the twelfih or
tourteenth of OFsber laft 2

7. S:ringer. My Lord, upon his Examination
before the Lords of the Committee, Berry did
fay he had Orders frem the Qucen, or in the
Name of the Queen, That he thould fuffer no
Strangers nor any Perfons of Quality to come in-
to Somerfet-Houfe,

Myr. At Gen. When was 1t he was to keep
them out !

T. Stringer. ‘The twelfth, thirteenth and four-
teenth of OfFober,

My, A, Gen, What, three Days.

7. Styinger. Two or three Days, And he faid
that the Prince did come, and he did refufe him,
and fent him back agam,

Mr. Recorder. Did he fay heever had any fuch
Directions before ?

7. Stringer. No: He faid he never before had
any.
L.C.F Itwas a very unlucky thing that he
had 1t then.

Berry. The Prince might have gone in if he
would,

7. Stringer. You faid you did refufe him, you

had Order to let none come in.

L. C. ¥. Had youany fuch Order?

Berry, Yes, my Lord, I had fuch an Order
from the Queen’s Gentleman-Uther.

L. C. ¥. Had you never had fuch before 2

Beriy. Yes, I have had before, fince the Qucen
came to Soinerfel-Fonfe. :

L. C.}J. Mr. Stringer fwears you faid you had
not any before.

Berry, Yes, I had.

L.C. ¥. Why did youdeny it then?

Berry, 1did not deny it; befides, there were
feveral went in.

Myr. Recorder. We have proved indeed five or
fix did go in.

L.C.7¥. For how many Days had you that

, Order?

Beriy. Two Days.

L.C. %Y. Which two Days?

Berry. The eleventh and twelfth, T chink there-
abouts.

M.
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M. Recorder. Did you fay before the Lords,
that you never had fuch Orders betore?

Berry. No, I did not.

L.C. . Mr., Berry, When you were cxamined
before the Lords, did you not fay you never had
fuch Orders before ¢

Berry. No, 1 did not fay fo, my Lord, as I
know of; for they did not examine me about
toat.

L.C.¥. You faid you would prove it under his
own Hand. Prove that,

M. A, Gea, Mr. Strizger, Did he write his
Mame to nis Examipation?

T Stiinger. Yes, he did to one Examination,

e, it Gen, Pray look upon that : Is that his
Hand ?

7. Stringer. This was read to him before he
figned it, and then he did ign 1t.

M. Art. Ger. 1 would fan fhew it to him, to
foe whether he would own 1t or no.

Berry. Yes, that is my Hand.

Then the Clerk of ibe Crown read if,

CL. of the Cr. This is fubferibed by Heary Ber-
ry. The Tuformation of Henry Berry, Porter af
the Gate of Somerfet-Houfe s talen before the Right
Hesurable the Marquisof \Winchelter: This Depo-
neit [aith, That abont ibe twelfih, thiriecnth aid
fourtecath of Otober laff, ke had Oraer to 16 ol
Perfoirs of Suality, that the Quec was private, and
that they were not to come i : JAid tois Depenent
Jaithy The Qucen continued fo privaie for two Days,

L. C. 7. Where is that Part of the Examina-
rion wherein he {aid, he never had any fuch Order
before?

T. Stringer, He did fay fo, but it 1s not in that
that hath his Hand to 1t

M. Faft, F7ild, Prey, my Lord, obferve this
is a kind of reflecting Lvidence, and [ would have
no more made of it than the Toing wil] baar,

L.C. 7. They only bring ir, and make ufe of

it againit Besiy as a Precice of nis.

L. Fuff. B4, Batatis a very refleCting Evi-
dence. ' —

My, A4, Gen. Surely there 1s no body here that
ofters it as fucs: We ufe it only to this Purpofe,
to thew that Buiy, who was a Party to this Mvur-
der, did uie all the mears chiat he could to keep it
private; and endeavoured to prevent Strangers
coming 1n that Night to diicover 1t; and therctore
precended thele Orders,

If he had any fuch Orders, I fuppole he will
prove thert, we do not fay he had theni; but *tis
a great Iividence, when he pretended to fuch Pri-
vacy, that heand hus Feliows had fomething to do
that was rot fit to be knowa by every body.

M. Recorder. He may maice ufe of any body’s
Name, and pretend what he will; but 1 fuppofe
he will prove it from the Gentleman-Ulher, 1f ic
be true.

Mr., A1t Gen. We have one Witnels more to
eall, my Lovd, and thatiscne Farr, Call Stephen
Fari,  Which was done, and he {fworn.

Myr. A, Gen, He 15 a Neighbour to Beryy, and
will give your Lordthip an Account what Appli-
cations have been made o him, to tamper with
him for Money, to keep away, and not give Evyi-
dence in this Caufe. Pray, Sir, are you Mr, Ber-
73’s Neighbour ¢

Fary, Yes, Sir, 1 am, >

You, IL

Mr. Att. Gen, Pray then tell what you know.

Farr. T know him very well, his Wite hath been
with me lalt Week, and asked me if I knew what
time he was with me on Wednefiay, the 16:th of
Ocfober. | delired time to recollet my icli’s And
the calied four or five times after, and I did recol-
lect my Memory and told her, that I was not with
him all that Fediefday.

L. C. J. Why, this was reafonable, and fair
enough to do.

Mr. Ait, Gea. It was fo, my Lord; but pray
had you no Money offered you?

Farir, No. Sir, nose atall; and I told her I
could not remember that I was with him thac
Duy.

Berry. But you may remember it very well,
when I came from the Queen I came to you.

[arr, My Lord, I wasoutof Town that J7ed-
nefday, from Two o’clock in the Afternoon, rill
Nune at Nigat.

L.C.F. Well, well, this is nothing: The
Woman was willing, if fhe could, to hive coun-
terproved the Evidence, and whac fhe did was fair;
fhe offered no Money, nor did it in an indireét
way,

M. A't.Gen, My Lord, We have now done with
our Evidence for the King, and leave it ulf we
hear what they fay,

L. C. 7. Waatdo you fay fer your felves? You
thall hawve all the free Liberiy vou vili difire,

Hill. In the firfk Place, I take God to be my
Witnefs, that [ am wholly innocenty as to the
Marrer that is charged vpon me: Andas to what
15 faid that I dowe™d Su Ldneidbary Godfiev, 1
can prove that I went into my Lodging at Eight
o’ c.ock, a.d did not fiir out.

L.C. 7. Come, cali your Wirnefies.
il Zary Tillen, Cadarine Leey, Mrs. Broad-

frect, and Dawuel Gray.

L. C. 7. Let them come in there,
Then Mary Tilden was jiiff examined,

Mr. Az, Gen. This 1s Dottor Gedwin’s Neice,
and s Floufekeeper.

L C. F. Well, whatdo you ask her?

Hil I defire to know what you can fay
about my being in my Lodging, and not going
out.

Aary Telden. He hath lived in our Family Se-
ven or Eight Years,

L. C. % Your Family, what s your Fanuly ¢

Mary Tilden. With my Uncle,

L. C. ¥. Who 1s your Uncle?

Adary Tilden. Doctor Godezir: we left him in
the Houfe always, when we were abient from
it he was always a trutty Servant, never kept il
Hours, always came home by Eight o’ ciock at
N:ght. '

Mr. Jult, Dolben. Alway; For how long?

Mary Tilden. Ever {ince we came over Lalt into
England.

Mr. Jult. Delben. When was that?

Nary Tilden. In April latt, _

L. C. ¥ Were you there that Night Sir Zd4-
mundbury Godfrey was kill’d 2

Mary Tilien. 1 was,

L €. . What Night was that?

Mary Tilden. Idon’c know, my Lord, I heard
of it in the Town. ,

L.C.F. When did you firft hear of it?

Mery Tildes. The Thurfday that he was found.

5 G L.C 7.
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L. C. 7. Did you not hear of it on the /7 ]l’}':r‘. Reesider. Why, you did not watch him

?Itlﬁi’f‘{}'?

My Tud'ein, Yes, Tdil,

L.C. 77 Who could tell sou the 77o/mfuzy be-
fore?

Mary Tildes, W ¥, My Lord, in the Town it

was fad be wis mi iing drom Sermidn, and 2
Towrfizy ie wis foand.

L. C 7 "f".'n‘*t Can you iy concerning [Hill,

1

that he was not ouat after Hight O L:GJ{ that
1\ “'I'l ?

% ary Tillon, He was a very gnod Servant 1o
my U cle, and never kept il 1"1’)'1‘.., but alwuys

c“mn. i by E:fmtu clock, or before,
l"!fjl }-uil lljur La.-ff ."I‘IFLI }UU nC‘L OTJt }r

1
I.lluL.li ’H.P

ar felf

Ay $iky, No not I, never out afier that
Hour.
L.C. 7. Pray how can you give fuca an Ac-

count of Mr. Hif/, as 1f he was always m your
Company?

.-FI—“ T

.;L“- f R llLJ” I‘_J_n.- Couiilc In ID "Lvu.h. dt T;Lb'ﬁ', N nd
d.t{..l HU[ Ill O [L—#tLLl urnllLI"h

L. C. 7. Pray, what Religion are youof ? are
}UL# L 1 i J .P

A 2 77, T know not whether I came here
O Make o i’:-:uiu(il-...:n ci my Faith.

S AR

L. C. / Are you a Rewen Catholick s

_.I.Ti,,._fi”;”r 1 ‘FJ i , ‘T( E .'!I

L.C. 7. Lilve youa Difpenfation to eat 9.p-

pua SNy I: CA?
Ruf;.u [ hJPL you did rot keen him

Compww afrer Supoer, all Night.

Maiy T2 ’w I did net, Tut he cimic 1n 1o
wait at Tuble .-,H: Supper.

L.C. f chougar you had kept fafting on Se-
f:"njf‘ N L N,

i ary Y;.’:.hn.
1\1”[1[:: y
B, _]111“ Feires, Flow many Difthes of Meat had
yvOu to Sl 1‘“‘:* :

.J:f?.r) d il
not [uit.

L.C. 7. Can veu fpeak pofitively as to this
Nighr, the Sezzrlay that he was Kil’d ?

iy Tilio. He was at home that Night,

L. C. F. And where veas he the Supday ¢

No, my Lord, nct on Saluiddey

Ve had no Meat, though we did

Aey Tilzzin, e wa *t home.

L.C 7. "~ And you are fure he wasat home every
1\;-3'1[;

ﬂim_}’ TilZen, Yes, wiile we were in Town,

L. C. ¥ Where was you all that #e m.ﬂﬁy
Nizht you 11‘1~.d]~. of ?

.fim v Tiilon Twas athome 1n my Lodging.

Mr, juit. 7734, Flowr is it ]JO{l*h]L for you to
fay, that 12/, who was rot your conftant Compa-
nion, did not £o 0t aftervauds?

Maary 1, 72, 190, he was not my conftant Com-
panion.

Vi Jaft. 77750 Tow then con vou charge your
tho**} tlm he was at home?

L C.7. Ceme, youare to {peak truth, the’ you
are not u}JUn }?0 Quih.
Iviemory o ! "v a0 he came i confiantly at Eizht
o’ clock at m 2

Mary Till .w” 1:: I
CONIC it CONLL ft},r, ;Lr-
Wad "5 jent J 1-.:. ;lu L0 f;

] CUF T
at home at Nurhe?

Alery Tildon, T can fay he never was abroad af-
L L!un* at INizhi,

L”1 hecanfe T faw him
r'F] 11L LLUTIL IH I l.l.l"

!‘L Door.

Jaid, can you fay that he was always’

t:l hie went to Bed, did you?

Meaiy Tilecr We were always up tll Eleven
o’ ciock at Night,

Afr. Al Gei. Was he i your Company all that
while ?

Mery Tildsn, 1 beg your Pardon; if
Lordihip ﬂw the To1f‘rmﬁs you weuld fv

vere impoffible for any o go 1a or out, but tlnr
they muit know it within,  We were conftant
m cur Hours of going to Supper; our Doora
were never open’d aiter he came in to wait at
Svp

T.cC. }’ You may fay any tluﬂn' to a Heretick,

for a Papiit.

M. Juft. Dalben. This 1s a mighty improbable
Buafinels,

Mr. Jult. 77ild. Where was he a [Fednefdoy

in'hL

M v Tildeir. At home,

I.C. 7. They have a general Anfiver for al]

jefions,

M. Jult. Feres. Who kent the Key of your
LUH.UHL”*E

ﬂi/?,__, Tiden, The Magl,

Livs Julte Ferrso Fiuh JO77 never kept the
Ixc‘, r

ALy To1 0, No, my Lord, the Rind.

M, T 1. ;.-f Fow do oyou know but that
the [vinid mughe et him one?

Praunce. *Iﬂ' YTorg, Wir. Dreosfreer HQud at
firft there was vt ore Key, bur before the
ke of Afminsaeh the Gid there were fix o feven
Keys.

L.C. 7. Look you vt Tricks you put upon
us to birnd us: You come and zell us t 71'11“ he was
every Night ar home by Lhrout o' clock, and le
not thir out, for there was i us one Lack, and tae
Maid kept the Key ; and yet there were three or
four Keys to 1t

Maiy Tilden. There vas but one Key to that
which kept the Door faft,

L. C.f. Praunce, how many Keys veere there ?

Prainee. She contefled there were four or fve,

Mr. Juft. 777id. What time was it that j,fﬂu
cartied him out of Somerfer- Houfe on Fediejday
Night?

Prauice. Jt was about Ten or Eleven of the
Clock. Hil/ went to fetch the Horle.

Mary Tilden. We hiad never been out of our
Ledgings after Eight o’ clock, {ince we came to
‘Town.

Mr. Jult. Fones. When were you out of Town?

Mary Tilden, In Offober.

Mr, Jult. Dellen. Nay, now Miftrels, you
have fpoiled ally for in Oifeder this Bufinels was
dore.

Mr. Jult, Fares, You have undone the Iian,
mnftead ¢i faving him.

Mairy Tilden, Nhy, my Lord, I only mifteoi

the Monti,

L.C.Y

You Woman [fpeaking to Mrs. Bread-

Can you chmrc _your flreer] what Month was it you were out oi Town?

B; sacfireet. In § fm‘.,ﬁw.-

L.C.7 "Tis 2 apparent you confider not what
you fay, or you come hither to ity any thing will
ferve the wrn.

ALery Tilaen. No, I do not, for T was out of
Town in Septeinber, came Lo "Town the lavter end
of Sepzembir.

L.C. 7. You muft remember what vou faid,

that you came to Eoland in April laft, and from
that
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that time he was always within at Eight o’ clock
at Night. _

Mary Tilden. Excent tl}ﬂt time that we were
out of Town, which was in September, the Sum-
mer-time. And it is impoffible but if the Body
was in the Houfe, as Praunce faid 1t was, but [
muft fee him, or fome _of us mult, I ufﬂd_ to
go cvery Day into that little Room _for fomething
or other, and I muft needs fee him if he were
there.

L.C. %+ You told me JHt now you were not
upon Coneliion;; and I tell you now fo, you are
ot.  Then Mrs. Broadfireet was examned.

Mr. Juft. Fores. Well, Woman, what fay you?

Broadftreet. We came to Town upon a Afonday,
Michaelinas Day was the Swiday tollowing; and
from that time netther he nor the Maid ufed to
Le abroad after Eight o’ clock : we kept very good
Hours, and he always waited at Supper, and ne-
ver went abroad after he came 1n to watt at Sup.
per: and the Lodging was lo little, that nothing
could be brought 1, but they muft know that
were within.

L.C. ¥ Thisisa lower Room than the Cham-
ber, 15 it not? _

Prasace. > Tis even with the Dining-Room, my
Lord. ‘

L. C. ¥ What fay you, Sir Robert Seuthwell ?

Sir Rodert Southwell. My Lord, it 15 an exiraor-
dinary Jirtle Piace; as foon as you get up eigl}t
Seeps, there is a lietle fquare Entry, and there 1s
this Room on the one Hand, and the Dining-
Room on the other. I think there 1s a Pair of
Stairs to go down at one corner of the Intry, as
I think, but the Body was laid in 2 lietle fquare
Room at the Head of the Steps.

L.C. Y. And nmuft you go into the Room to
go to the Dining-Room

Breadftieet. No, *us a diftin¢t Room s but the
Key was always in the Door, and every Day
fome Body went into 1t for lomething or ano-
ther. ‘ _

L. C. 7. Will you undertake to fay it was zal-
ways in the Docer?

Broadftrect. Yes, 1t conflantly was.

Mr. Juft, 27id, For my own Part I will not
judge you: bur that his Body fhould be carried
there about Nine o’ clock at Night a Saerurdgy
Night, and reman there *ull Monday Nighe, *uis
very fufpicious, that if you were in the Houfe,
as you fay you were, and ufed to go Into that
Room every Day, yeu malt either hear 1t brought
In, or {ce it.

Brocdftreet. But we did neither, my Lord.

Mr. Juft, Dofbei. It 1s weil you are not In-
dicted.

Broadffyeet. Mr. Prawnce, you know all thefe
Things to be falle, Mr. Prevuce.

Fraunce, T lay nothing to your Charge; but
you faid Defore the Duke of Memmonth, that
Hill was gone from his Lodgings before that
Time,

L.C §¥. What fay you, Sir Robert Southwell?

Sir Robeit Sonzhwell, There aroie a little Quar-
rel between them, about the Time that Mr, i/
did Jeave thofe Lodgings. Piannce faid it was a
Fortpight after ;3 Ai// faid, when he was upon his
Examination, that the fame Sa/ardey Night that
Sir Edwmnndbary Gesfiey was miffing, he was treat-
ing with his Landiord, and from that time, to the
time he wene to his new Houle, 1t was about a
Week or a Formigpot,

Vo, II.

L.C.§, But he did pretend he was gone be-
fore ? ' | -

Broadftreet, No, my Lord, Idid not.

L. C. 7. Two Witneflts upon Oath fivare ir,
and you faid 1t your Elf, and gave it under your
Hand.

Breadftreet. My Lord? ‘_

L. C. 7. Nay, you will not hear, but you will
tall; you fay one thing now, and you fet another
under your Hand,

Mr. At Gen, Flave you not a Brother that is
in the Proclamation, one Broadffreet a Prielt?

Dreadftreet, 1 have a Brother, whofe Name is
Broadftreet. _

Mr, Ait, Gen, Is he not a Prieft, and in the
Proclamation ? |

Broadfirect, 1hope I muft not impeach my Bro-
ther here. Ifaid upon my Oath, he came to Town
on Monday, and Michaelinas Day was the Sunday
following, and Laewrence Hill vient away a Forr-
mght after,

S Robert Southwell, She fwere then, two or
three Days after Michaelmas Day.

L. €. 7 You mult know we can underftand
you through all your Arts. It was not convenient
for you at that time to fay, that Mr, Hil] went
away about a Fortnight after Michaelmas, for then
the thing that was charged to be done, patt of it
in your Houfe, would have been within the Fort-
night, for 1t was the 12th of Offeber, but then
yod faid only two or three Days.

Sit Robert Southwell. She did fay, my Lord,
that about Michaelszas two or three or four Days
after he went away,

Broadfireet, T beg your Pardon, I only faid, I
could not tell the Time exactly.

L. C. 7. Well, have you any more to fay ?

Mary Tilgen. There was never a Day but I went
into that Room for fomething or other, and if any
Body came to fee me, there was fo little Space that
the Footmen were always forced to be in that
Room.

Mr. Jult, Delben. Were you there upon Swir-
day ¢

Mary Tilden. Yes, my Lord, I was.

Mr, Jaft, Dolbzr, Well, 1 will fay no more;
call another Witnzfs,

Hill, Catharine Lee.

L. C. §. What can you fay, Maid?

Lee. Ny Lord, Idid never mufs lum out of
the Houfe at thoic Hours,

L. C, #. May be ycu did not look for him.

Lee. ] did go dewn every Night to the Door,
to fee if it were lock’d, and I went mto the Par-
lour to fee that things were fafe there, ,

L. C. % Youare a Rewan Catholick, are you
not?

Lee, Yes, 1am,

Mr. Juft. Dslben. Mighe not he go out of the
Houle, and you never the wiler ¢

Lez. Yes, for Idid not warch him continually,

Capt. Richardfon, All that the fays may be true
by the Place. The Servants keep down a Parr of
Stairs 1n the Kitchen, and any one may come in,
or go out, having {0 many Keys, and they not
know it that are below.

Lee, 1 weat into the Chamber every Morning,
as I went to Mrket.

Mr. Juft. /74, Have a care what you fay, and
mind the Queftion I ask you: Were you there on
the Swindav, in that Room where they fay Sir
Edmundbary Goafrey’s Body was lud ¢

5 G o2 Lee,
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Lee, I cannot fay, that T was i that Room,
but I called in at the Door every Day, and I was
the lait up every Night.

Mr. Jult. #id. Pl fay that for thee, thon halt
{poke with more care than any of them all.

Then Dantel Gray was Exanined,

L. C. ¥ Wnat can you fay?  'What Qucftions
do you ask num?

il 1 defire him to fpeak what he can fay,
where I was thofe five Days that Sir Edmundbury
Gedfirzy was mifling,

Giray. 1 kept my Brother Hi// Company, from
the Sth of QFsber, till he took his Houfe, which
was about the 22d or 23d.

L.C. ¥ What Time did you ufe to go to
Bad?

Gray. About Nine or Ten o’ clock at Night.

L. C. 7. What Time did he go?

Gray. When 1 did, but I did not fee him go
to Bed.

L.C. F. Where did you lie?

Gray. At my own Houlfe,

L.C ¥. Aud you went home about Eight or
Nine o clock at Night to go to Bed ?

Gray. Yes, 1did,

Mr.. Juft. Fenes. You fay he took his Houfe the
Sth of Ochzr, when did he go thither ¢

Gray. Yes, he took his Houfe the §th of OiZe-
ber, but he did not go thither tiil the one or two
and twentieth,

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Bat you cannot tell what he
did at N.ght. |

Gray. No, not [ |

Mr Juft. Dolden. Bat you were in his Company
til] T'ghe or Nine o’ clock at Night?

Gray. Yes, my Lord, 1 was,

L. C.¥. How far did you live off of him?

Gray. About a Bow’s thoot.

L. C. F. Look you, Mr. £i/l, he does you no
Service at all, for he fays he left you about
Eigat or Nine o’ clock at Night, and he does
not know what you did afterwards, Fave you any

more !

Hill. Robert How.

L. C. ¥. Come, what fay you?

Hsw. My Lord, 1 met with Mr, Hill the 5th
of Ofsber, he asked me whither I was going? |
teld him, Home., I wifh, faid he, you would go
a little back with me; I am about taking of an

Houle, and I would have you view the Repairs;
accordingly we did go, and treated in the Houfe
about an Agreement; for, faid he, I will not agree
with you (to the Landlord) till we know what
mult be repaired.  On Tueflay Morning we met
again, about Eight o’ clock.

L. C. F. What Day of the Month was that ?

How. The 8th. And a WWeduefday about Noon
we began to work for him, to repair his Houle,
and we wrought that Week every Day, and for
twelve Days and an I_mlf in all, and he was every
Day with us, looking after Coals, or Beer,
or fomething. On Saturday the 12th of Offo-
ber, we dined together, and parted with him
about One or Two o’ clock, and about Two
o’ clock I went back again to my Work,
and he faid he was going towards Covens-Gai-
den in St. Fames’s, but he came back again, and

I was gone firft; T asked my Man whether he-

was gone, or no; he faid, he was there, but did
not {tay.

L. C. J. What Time was that

Hyw. A little before Night,

L.C 7. What Hour did your Man fay that ;e
was there ¢

How. About an Hour before they left Wark,

L C. f. What Time was that?

How. About Four o’ clock, I think it was.

L.C. 7. Can you fay where he was that
Night?

How, No, I cannot.

L. G ¥, What Religion are you of, are you not
a Proteftant?

Hew, Yes, my Lord, I think fo.

Mr. Recorder. My Lord asks you, are you a
Proteftant ?

How. 1 was never bred up in the Proteftant Re-
ligion,

Praapce. He 1s a Catholick, my Lord, he ‘was
the Queen’s Carpenter.

+Mr. Jult. Dolben, Nay, now you fpoil all; you
mult do Penance for this; whar! deny your
Church ?

Hill. What Time was it on Saturday Morning I
was with you?

fHow, About Nine o’ clock,

L.C. j. How long did he ftay?

How. From Nine to Two,

L.C, 7. Are you {ure *twas Nine ?

Hew. No Man can fwear punttually to an
Hour

L. C. 7. What think you of Ten 2

fncy, It was thereabouts,

Ar. Recorder. 1F 1 am rightly informed by the
Clerks, I is Outlawed for Recufancy.

L. C. 7 Ishelo? Pray let us know that.

[arconrs. (One of the Clerks of the Grows-
Offce.) My Lord, I have made out feveral Writs
againft him, for feveral Years together, and could
never get any of them Returned.

Hill. Fle tells you, that I was with him from
Nine o’ clock on Satuiday Morning, till One.

Mr, Jult. Fowes, Bur that is but as true as
he is a Proteftant, and'how true that is, you
know.

Hill, Here 1s another Witnefs; Mr. Cutler.

Tho. Cutler, Upon the 12th of Ofober, Lan-
rence Hilf did come into my Houlfe, about Four
or Five o’ clock in the Evening, and he ftaid
there tll between Seven or Eight, and then his
Wife came for hun and faid fome Gentlewoman
was ready for her Supper, and fo he went home
and I faw him no more, til the Day after he
was taken,

L. C. }. Look you here, he {peaks only about
Seven or Kight o’ clock. Well, have you any
thing more to fay?

Hill. There is one Richard Lazindy.

Lazindy, My Lord, I was with him on Safuy-
day the 12th of Offvber, at the Door, about T'welve
o’ clock.

L.C.%. And you dined with him and How 2

Lazinby, Yes, Sir,

L. C. . But you did not fee him afterwards?

Lazinby. Yes, I did fee him on B eduefday Night,
From Five to Scven at Night,

L.C ¥ What Time was he carried out of
Soinerfet~-Houfe ?

My, Ast. Gen, About Eleven or Twelve o’ clock
at Night,

Lazinby, That 1s the laft Time I was with him,

L. C."¥. Well, have you any more ?

Hiil. Here is one Mr, Archbold, my Lord,

Arebbold.
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Aichbold, My Lord, I had occafion for a Tay-
lor, and I came to this Man’s Houle to feek for
one Mr. Gray, that had formerly wrought for

IT1E,
L C. ¥ When was that?

Archbold. That was on Mondoy Night, And
he having formerly wrought for me, I found
him ar this Man’s Houfe ; fo Mr. Gray asked me,
what News? T told him, Very good News; for
Praunce was taken for the Murder of Sir Ed-
mndbury Godfrey.  Says Hill Iam glad of that;
I willh they were all taken, I came the nexe
Day afier, and they told me he was taken out
of his Bed, for the Murder of Sir Edmundbury
Godfrey. . '

L.C. ¥ Was it that very Night that you came,
that he was taken?

Archheld Yes, 1t was,

L.C. } You fiid he fyoke of it before you at
Seven o’ clock, and you ieft him about Nine, and
he was taken that Night; what then?

Hiil, Why, then I had Time encugh to make
my Efcape, if Ihad thougut my felf Guilty,

L. C. ¥ As no doubt you would if you had
thought they would have been fo nimble with
Oll,

' rchbold, He knew it the Day before.

L.C. L. Well, have you any more to fay ?

Mis. Hill, Thereis Mr. Ravenferoft, my Lord.

L C . What, that Ravenferoft that was fent
away ?

Mrs. Hill. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. F. Then the Marfhal muft fend for
him, it he be a Wiwels for the Prifoner. In
the mean time, what can you fay for your felf,
Mr. Green ?

Green. My Lord, [ would call my Landlord and
his Wife,

L. C. 7. What are their Names?

Green. James Warrier, and his Wife,

L. C ¥ Callin Green’s Wife, and all her Wit
nefles. '

Toci Mrs. Ul the Prifoner's Wife, offered o
Paper to the Court, containing Obfervations up-
on the Indictment, which [be aefired then to
ready Jut it was refufed, aid fhe bid to give it
ber Hetsband,

Then James Warrter was Examined,

L. C. 7. What fay you to your Landlord »

Green. Yask him no Queftions at all, but defire
him to tell what he knows,

Werrier. 1 will fay, that the rath of OFober,
he was at my Houfe, half an Hour after Seven,
and he was not out of my Houfe till after Ten.

L C. 7 How can you remember that Da g2
What Day of the Week was it ?

Warrier. It was a Saturday.
L. C. 7. Howdo you remember it was fo ?

Warrier, I have recolleCted my Memory,
L. C. 7. By what?

Warrier. By my Work, and every thing ex-
actly.

L.C.
felf ?
Warrier. A pretty while ago.

L. C. 7.How long after Sir Edmundbury G odfrey
was murdered ?

Farrier. A Month after.

L. C. ¥ 'What made you recolle€t your fIf a
Montih afyer,

J« When did you begin to recolle@ your-

Warrier, Becanfe he was in Prifon In the GCate-
houfe. |

L.C. F. When was he taken up?

Warrier. He was taken up in Somerfet- Houfe,
and not in my Houfe.

L. C. §. But when did you recoilect your felf?

W arrier. When he was in Prifon,

L.C. 7. But I pray remember the Time when
you did recollect your felf, and the Occalion that
made you recollect your felf when he was taken u p.

Warrier. I remember it very well, for he had
been in my Houfe but fourteen Days, before he was
taken up.

St Thomas Stringer, He was ot taken up for
the Murder of SirEdmundbury Godfrey,till the 2.4¢h
of December,

Mr. Juff. Wild, Pray, did you never think of
this, ill he was in Prifon ?

Warrier. 1t was when he was taken up,

L. C. F. But, pray, when you came to recolledt
your felf, how did you come todo ic?

Warrier. 1 recolleéted it by my Work,

L. C. ¥ But what gave you occafion to recolle&t
your felt fince he was in Gaal ?

Sir The. Stringer, My Lord, he was put into
Goal for refufing to take the Oaths; but he was
not at all charged with the Death of Sir Edmuid-
bury Godfrey, at that Time,

L. C. 7. When was he put in for the Death of
Sir Edmundbury ?

Sir Tho, Stringer. The 24th of December,

L. C. 7. Then there is all the remaining part of
Oftober, all Novewbzr, and the former part of De-
cember, was paft, how could you recollect your felf
of the particular Day ?

Warrier, I call’d it to mind by my Work.

Capt. Rickardfon. My Lord, T will reify this
Miftake: Since their Arraignment, I went to them,
to know what Witneffes they had, and Green rold
me of his Landlord and Landiady; I then asked
them, if they could fay any thing as to this parti-

cular Day ? and they f2id they could not do him
any good at all.

Warrier, Idid not then call it to Memory.

L. C. 7. When did you call it to Memory ?

Warrier. 1did fay I could notdo it then prefent-
ly, as I have done fince, in five or fix Days.

L. C . How could you recolle it then ?

Warrier. By the Time he came into my Houfz,
which was 2 Week before, and by the Work thar
was done,

L. C. F. What could the Work do as to this?
Can you tell by that any Thing that is done at

any Time? Where were you the gth of November
laft ?

Warrier. Truly, Ican’t tell.

L. C.7. Why, how came you then to recolle
what you did the 12th of Offeber, when you did
Eor <‘ka}w where you were the gth of Nevem-

er

Warrier, Lean tell a grear many Tokens, he was
but fourteea or fifteen Days in our Houfe.

L.C.§. What did he do the tweltth of OFober,
that you remember {0 particalarly that Day 2

Warrter. Siry 1 remember other Days befides
that; buc I fay, I never knew the Man our after
Nme o’ clock, in my Life,

L. C. 7. Have you any body elfe? for this Man,
I can’t tell what to make on’r.

Green, Here 1s the Man’s Wife to give Evi-

dence.

L, G, 7. Firft confider what you fay,
M.
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Mrs. Warrier. To tell you the Truth, I thought
the Man was o clear of this Fact, that I never
troubled my Head with it; but when Captain
Richardfon came to my Houfe, 1 told him, that
“he was never in our houfc by Day-time, except
being Cufhion-layer in the Chapel, he ufed to
come at half an Hour after Eleven, and many
times he did defire me, becaufe we were Protes
ftants, to pur in a little Flefh Meat with ourss
{fometimes he would fit down and eat his Meat
in the Kitchen, and his Wife with him 3 and his
Wite would fay to him, ’us a troublelome Time,
pray fee that you come homie beumes. I did
not at all remember the Day of the Month at
the firft, nor the Actiony but my Husband and
I have fince remembred. We were delired by
them once to eat 2 Fowl with them; and my
Flusband did command me the Suwdey after to 1n-
vite them to Dinner with us, and I went in the
Morning very early, I think, and bought a do-
zen of Pigeons, and put them in a Pye, and
we had a Loin of Pork rofted ; and when he
was gone to the Chapel on Safniday in the after-
noon, his Wife came to me, and fad, my
Husband 15 not well, and when he comes home
will ask for fomething of Broth; and away ihe
went to Market, to buy foraething to muake
Broth of. While fhe was at Marker, her Hus-
band came home, and asked where his Wife was 2
Why, Mr. Green, faid I, fhe 15 gone to Mar-
ket: What an old Fool, faid he, is this, to go,
out fo late, fuch a Night as this 152 But, faid he,
again, 1 wiil go to the Cofice-hioul, and drink
a D.th of Coffee, and pray tell my Wife fo, In
the mean time fhe rewrned, and by that time
fhe had been above a little while, he came in a-
gam.  And Mr. Green being there, my Fusband
came in, and called to me, Prlythee, Swectheaort,
what haft thou got for my Supper? Prlythee,
fud 1, Sweetheart, thou art always calling for
thy Victuals when thou comeft in. Then Mr.
Green goes to the Stairs, and calls to  his Wife,
and bids her bring him down fome Victuals, and
fhe brings down the Bread and Cheefe, and he
ftayed there all it was Nine ¢’ clock ; and then
faith Mr. Green to his Wife, let us go up, for
there 1s a Fire,

L. C.7. What Day was this, all this while?

Mis. Warrier. Why it was the Saturday Fort-
night after Michaclnas Day.

L. C. 7. Why might it not be that Day three
Wecks?

Mys. Warrier. 1t was that Day he was miffing.

Mr. At. Gen. Why there was no Alarum taken
of it a Suuday.

L. C. ¥, When did you begin to recollect what
Day it was, that they faid he was miffing ?

Mys. Warrier. On Friday Morning our Milk-
man came and told us that one Mr. Godfiey was
found murdered ; now I knew one of the Lxchange
of that Name, and thought it might be he. And
when we went up with him to his Chamber, we
fat there till the Tattoo beat,

L. C.’}. All the Thing is, how doyou know it
was this Saturday ¢

Myrs. Warrier. Tt was the Satarday Fortnight
after Adichaelmas Day.

Mr. Juff. Dolben. Are you fure 1t was the Sasur-
day Forwight after Michaelmas Day?

Mrs. Warrier. Yes, we did look upon the Al
manack, and reckon 1t fo

My, fuft, Dofben, ‘Then that was the 1gth of
Ocifcher,

L. C. 7. Why you told him, you could do him
no Good, and indeed you do not.

Mr. Fult. Fones. You and your Wife fpeak of
the fame Time, don’t you ?

Varrier. Yes,

L. C. j. Have you any more, Green ?

Capt. Richardfon. There 15 the Maid, let hey
come .

L.C. 7. What fay you, Maid?

Maid. 1 can fay, that he came in the Satuiday
Fortnight after Quarter-Duay, pretty betimes,

L. C. #. Can you {peak of any other Time be-
fides that §afurday Fortmight.

Maid. 1 can tell he came in every Night before
Nine ¢’ clock. |

Green. 1 can take my Qath, I was never out of
my Lodging after nine o’ clock.

Hill. My Lord, here is Mr. Ravenfcroft now.

L.C.J. Mr. Ravenforoft, what can you
fay?

Mr. Ravenferoft, What T can fay, my Lord,
1s this 3 This Lawsence Hill, 1 have known him
Thirteen or Fourteen Years, and he ferved my
elder Brother fo long, very faithfully. Afterwards
he hived with Dr, Godwin, towards the latter end
of the two lalt Years, and he married my Mother’s
Mad.

L. C. J. What Religion are you of ?

M. Ravenferoft. My Father and Mother were
Proteftants,

L. C. 7. Bat you arc a Papift, are you not ?

Mr. Raveaferoft. 1 have not faid I am a Papift,

CL,
! My, Juft. Dolben, In the mean time, I fay you
are one.

M. Ravenferoft. Do you fo? then pray eo to
Southwark, and lee,

My, A, Gen. My Lord, I think he hath taken
the Oaths of Alleglance and Supremacy.

L.C. ¥ Well, pray, Sir, go on with your-
Story,

Mr, Ravenferoft. If 1t pleafe you, upon a Se-
turday, a little before Chriftimas, there was fome-
body taken, I think 1t was one Mr. Praunce, tor
I never faw the Man, neither do I know him at
all : And 1t was reported that he was taken up
on the Death of Sir Edmundbury Godfrey, and I
was glad to hear it. My Houle was in the Sa-
voy, and my Father’s Houfe 1s in Holbenr 5 and
I ufed often to go and {fee my Father, and com-
ing home agam, I went to fee the Maid at her
new Houle, fhe had not been long there, and
fhe was {tanding at the Door of the Houfe. I
asked her what News? Says fhe, Here hath
been a Man here that tells us, that Praunce
hath difcovered feveral of the Murderers of
Siv Edmundbury Godfrey; and they tauk up
and down ftrangely of it, and ask me whether
my Husband be acquainted with him? Then
fud 1 to her, Is he? She anfwered me, Very
well, they have been often together; and fo fhe
told me the People did mutter, and talk of her
Husband., But, faid I, what fays your Husband
toit? Says fhe, He defies Prarnce and all lis
Works., Said I, Where is your Husband ?  Said
fhe, He iswithin, [ was very glad to hear it ;
for, faid I, he living in Sowcrfet-Houfe, and be-
ing acquatnted with Prannce, I am glad to hear
that your Husband can be fo couragious; fo I
went away, and came agamn thither the next
Morning, and found he was raken the Night be-

fore, All that I fay then, 15, that 1t was a good
Lvidenc:
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Evidence of his Innocency, that when he had
Novice of it, hedid not {ly.

L. C ¥ So then, your Dilcourfe was after
Archaoid had been there,

A, Reveifiraft  Arcbbold was there before me,
and had fpolcen this in their Company.  { fpake
with her that Night, and the next Morning to0
and ail that 1 fay is, if Flight bea Sign of Guilt,
.5 no doubt it 1s, Adem wbi es? and Courageoul-
nefs s 2 Sien of Innocency, then this Man s
innocent.

I, C.F. But you fy, fhe told you they were
acqu.datedd ¢ |

Vir. Ravenferaft. My Lord, T have one thing
mose to fy.  Upon the Occalion of the.e Things,
chis Woiman hath been ofien win me, and hath
defired to know o me whatdefence the fhould
make, for I faw 77202s Wite and Berry’s Wikt were
all fimple People, without Delence lor themfelves,
and they did defire thar I would examine and fee
fome of the Witacfes, and fe how it was, and
fhe had gotten me cme Papers, and § cen cired
them togethior, taere are VWitnedes that witl atielt
the Covy. _ _

M. it Gea. What1s all this to the Purpolfe ?
Only this Gentleman hath a mind to hew that he
can ipeak Zefin,

My, Ravesfiroft. 1 thanik God T can fpeck Le-
tin as well as any Man in the Court,

L. C F Well, wll tlus s netairg.

By, Ravenfereft, 1 declare 10omy fIf) 1f this
Man were guilty, rager Lun I would fpeak for
him, if chere wanwed a Fiaagmar, Iwould do 1t
my felf.

L. C. % Well, Berry, waat have you to fay ?

L
L]

| T

Berry. 1 dehire Nichoics Ticller, ond Nicoelas
Wiight, and Galricl Heslety and Ebzbeth [Wiles,
and Corporal Colles may be cailed.

Corporal Wilham Collet Jift Examined.

Berry. Did not you placea Centinel on 7 ednef-
day Night

Coller. What I7ednefdy do you fpeak of, Sir?

Berry. That Night the Qucen went from §o-
merfei-Houfe to Wit &,

Collet. Yes, this Niclkelzs Troliop I placed there
ﬁrﬁ:, the 101 of Ol

L. C. 7. How do youremember that ?

Coilzt. Bucaude I have been called to an Account
befure, and have given gooa Realons for 1t Qur
Comapany vas v Sty Henfe when the Kisg
came from AN - Aarket, and the Qeen went 1o
Iieelall Afierwards we wer: bid to ferch our
Centine's of. abcur three or four of the Clock in
the Alzrpoon,

L. C. 7. Dilyou leave any Soldiers there?

Coller. o, we did not, ali our Company went
to JViieoall

Mr. Jult. Delcn, Are you fure there were no
Soldicrs thar Nigat there?

Caflet. Yes, we were commanded with a Party
to go thither agatn that N.gal.

L.C. 5. What did you do then?

Coller. T placed the Centinels by the Porter’s
Order.

L. C. ¥. Who was that, Bery?

Csllet. No, it was one that ufed to go about, and
cive Orders where we fhould fet them,

L. C. 7. How did you place them ?

Collet, ‘This Man 1 placed from Seven to Ten,
then Nicholas Irigh! relieved him at Ten, and
{tay’d till One.

L. C. 7. Atwhat Place?

Call:t. To the Strand-ward,

Ldir, foft. T7ild. That was the Gate they carried
him our at.

L.C. ¥. Do you hear ; whereabouis did you fet
the Centinels? wichin the Gare ? *

Colfes. Yes, within the Wicker

L. C. J. Thar way he was carried out,

- Nicholas IVvi b, There was o Sedan came out
n my Time,

Tieidep, "There was one came in, in my Time,
wiude I ficod thers,

L.C. 7. Was it an empty Sedan ?

Troliop. 1 fuppoic 1t was, but we had no Order
to keep any out.-

M. Jeff. B4 But you might know whether
it was an empiy Sedan or no, by the going of it
through the Wicket.

Coller. T'ncre isanempty Sedan that ftands there
every Night.

Troflop. 1t was fet down within the Gate,

My, Foft. Jores. If any Sedan had gone our,
you would not have itaid them, would you ?

Collet. Mo, my Lord, we had no Order to ftop
any.

Ny, Juft. Dfleir, Fow can you thien be pofitive,
that ro one did go out?

Trol:gp. Nosc did go out again I my Time.

Ay, i Dslbcr. Could not the Porier open the
Gate, asveilas you ? X

Celiet. Yes, my Lord,” he could, but T fhould
have feen him teen:  He did rot open 1t in my
Time,

My, fufe. Piid, Let me ask you but one Que-
fion; Did nor you go to arink nor tipple all
that time?

Trollop, WNo, nor walk a Pike’s Length off the
Place of Centry.

My, Frg. T7ild. Fas not Berry an Houfe there
hard by ?

Trollop. Yes, but T did not drink one Drop.

Mr Fuf. Dstbeir, How can you remember fo par-
ticularly, fo long ago?

Grolop. Why, 1 was twice before the Com-
miitee.

My, Tuf2. Dolien. But how long was it ago that
vou were queitioned about this thing, after this
Night °

Tieifop. A matter of a Month or fix Weeks.

Collet. Forwe were examined before Pranice
was taken up.

L.C.F. You, Trollsp, can you foy whether 1t
was the sedan that uled ©be within?

Trellop. No, I cannos, bat it was brought In,
in my Time, and did not go oot agam,

Thest Gabriel Hasket ceas examniined.

Berry. You ftood there, Sir, {rom One to
Four.
Hasket. Yes, after the Clock ftruck One, Iwas

put Centinel, and ftood till +our.

L.C.7f. What Night?

Hasket. That Night the King came from Nezo-
Market, and the Queen went from Somcrfet-
Houfe,

L. C. ¥. What Day of the Month was that ?

Ha:ket. The Sixteenth.

L. C. ¥. What Day of the Week?

Hastet. W ednefdny.

L. C. 7. Did you not drink at Berry’s then?

Hasket. No, I did not.

L. C. 7. Did you fee Berry then?

Hasket.
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Hasker, No, 1Tdid not.

L.C. ¥. He was gone before you came.

Berry. 1 was faft enough a-bed at that Tune,

L. C. 7. Well, whatiay you more?

Berry, Here is my Maxd, Elizabeth Minflaw,
to give her Lvidence where 1 was that Night the
Queen went from Somerfel-Houfz.

Mr. Fuf. Fones. What can you fay ?

Minfoow, May 1t pleale youmy Lord, my Mal-
ter was within Doors and about the Gate, when the
Queen went away. ‘

L.C. 7. Who is your Muafter.

Minfharo, Mr. Berry.  He was about the Gates
all the Forenoon.

L.C.#. When was that¢

Minhaw. The 16th of OFober, Vednefday.
And as foon as the Queen was gone, My Malfter
went out to Bowls; and when he came home again,
he faid he had been at Bowls.

L C.%¥. What time did he come home?

Minfbawy, Tt was dusky, and he was rot ablent
all Night an Hour, till he went to Bed.

M., Fuft, Wild, When did he 2o to Bed ?

Minfkazo, My Lord, I{uppofe he veent to Bud
about T'welve o’clock.

M. Fuft. Wild. They do ot charge him

with any thing, but what was done about the

Gate.

M. Fuft. Dolben. What time did you go to Bea
tiat Night?

AMiiflawe, Why, T went to Bed about Twelve
o’clock,

Mr. fuff, Deigen, And yoa aw him no more
that Night ?

Minfbaze. No, my Lord, but he muft go thro
my Room to go to Bud at Night, and therefore I
fuppofe he was a-bed.

Mrs, L] 1 defiee Mr,-Praeice may {wear why
he did deny alf this?

L.C 7 Stnd up Mr. Praunce 5 that Gentle-
woman does defire to know, what induced you to
deny what you Lad faid,

Prauwnce. 1t was becaufe of my Trade, my
Tord; and for {car of lofing my Employment
from the Queen, and the Catholicks, which was
the moit of my Bufinefs, and becaufe 1 had not
my Pardon.

Mirs, Hill. 1 defire he may fwear whether he
were not tortured ?

AMr, Fuft Dolber, Anfwer her; were you tor-
tured to make this Confeffion #

Fraunce. No, my Lord, Captain Richardfon
hath ufed me as civilly as any Man m £uglend 5
all that Time that I have been there, 1 have want-
ed for nothing,

L. C. 7. See what he fays; that he did not make
this Confeflion by any Torture, but he made
his Recantation thro’ Fear, and the Thoughts
of Death, becaufe he had no Pardon; and Fear

that he might live in Want, by the Lofs of the

Trade, prevailed with him to deny what he had

confefled.
Mrs. Hill. It was reported about Town, that

he was toriured.

My, Fuft. Fones, No, it was no fuch Thing ; it
was only the Torturesof his Conltience, for being
an Actor in fo great a Sin.

Mrs. Hifl. There are feveral about the Court,
that heard him cry out: And he knows all thefe
‘Things to beas falle, as God Is true; and you
}.vill {ce 1t declared herealter, wiaen ’tis too

die,

L.C. 7. Do you think he would fwear three

Men out of their Lives for nothing?

Mrs. Hill. 1 defire he may be fworn to that par-
ticular Thing,

M. Fuft. Fones. He is upon his Outh already,
and {wears all this upon his Oath.

Mrs, il Well, T am diffavsfied 5 my Wit
neffes were not rightly exanuned, they were mo.
deft, and the Court langh’d at them.

Berry. The Centinels thac were at the Gate all
Night, let nothing out,

L. C. 7. Why, you could open the Gate your
felt, h

Berry. He fays, he could have feen if the Gate
had been open; and that, as he faw, the Gates
were never open’d.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Welly the Jury have heard all,
and will confider of it.

Mys, Hill. Fere 1s another Witnefs, my Lord,
Mr. Chevins.

L.C. 7. Well, Sir, What fay you?

Clhevins. I have nothing to fay, but that T heard
Mr. Praunce deny all.

L. C. 7. Why he does not deny that now. Well,
have you any more ?

Chevins, We have no more.

M, At.Gen. My Lord, I muft crave leave
to fpeak a Word or two 3 and the Evidence hav-
ing been fo very long, 1 ihall be exceeding fhorr.
l intended (when I began to open the Evidence)
to have made fome Oblervations after the Evi-
dence ended 5 to fhew how each part of it did
agree, and how the main was ftrengthencd by
concurrent Circumitrenzes,  But, m truth, the
King's Evidence did fali ont much better than I
could expect, and the D-fence of the Prioners
much weaker than I could forefee, So that, I
think, the Prooi againft the Prifoners is fo
firong, and {o little hach been aliedged by them
in their Detence, that it would be but lofs of
Time, to do what I at firft intended. Ouly I
will obferve, That Mr. Bedlow doth agrce with
Mr, Praunce as far forth as is poffible ; that is,
in thofe parts of the Fult, of which he pretends
to have any Knowledge. Yet had they never a-
ny -Communication one with another, as both
have fworn. And your Lordthip will obferve
in how many Particulars they do agree ; namely,
as to the Dark-Lanthorn, as to the covering of
the Body in the Room; how they intended ro
carry the Body out in a Sedan, and the reft. So
that 1f they had Jard their Heads together to
contrive a Story, they could hardly have agreed
in fo many Circumitances ; and yet this they do,
without difcourfing with each other before-
hand.

My Lord, T muft likewife obferve to you, that
the Servants of the Plw-Alehoufe concur as to
Meetings there:  The Maid agrees as to the Pri-
foners coming to Sir Edmundbury Godfrey’s
Heule, and to the Time, @iz, that Seturdey
Morning s nay, to the very Hours of Nine or
Ten o’ clock 3 That the Conftable’s Relation of
the Pofture in which the Body was found in the
Field, doth perfettly agree with the Account thae
the Murderers gave thereof to Mr. Prawnce the
next Morning, The Chirargeons do agree with
Mz, Praunce, as to the manner of Sir Edmunt-
buiy Gedfrey’s being killed, the Strangling, the
bruifing of his Stomach, the twilting of his
Neck, And the Witnefles from Bow make it
out. that Dethick was fent for; that they had a

Dinner
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Dinner there. The Boy proves that he over-
heard them reading fomething about Sir Editind-
bury Godfrey, and that they were very merry ;
and that for his liftning, he was threatned to be
kick’d down Stairs,

So that, I think, there never was an Evidence
that was better fortified with Circumf{tances than
this: My Lord, I fhall be bold to fay, here s
certainly as much Evidence as the Matter is ca-
pable of. It is not to be expected, that they
jhould call Witnefles to be by, when they do
fuch foul Faéls; fo that none can fwear directly
the very Fat, but fuch a one as was an Attor
init. All Circumftances relating to the Fad,
both before, and after, are made out by concur-
rent Teftimony. And, my Lord, I muft ob-
ferve, that this was a Murder committed thro’
Zeal to a falfe Religion, and that Religion wasa
Bond of Secrecy. We all know, his Majefty
hath been gracioufly pleafed, by his Proclama-
tion, to propofe a Pardon, and a Reward to the
Difcoverers. And yet almoft without Effect:
Their Zeal to their falfe Religion was a greater
Obflacle, than the Proclamation was an Incite-
ment to the Difcovery. And I do believe, if
Mr. Praunce had not had fome Inclination to
change his Religion, you had fuill been without
fo clear a Difcovery of this Work of Darknefs,
as now you have. I fhall fay no more, but con-
clude to the Jury with that Saying, that [ re-
member in the Book of Fudges, (in the Cale of
a Murder too, tho® of another Nature) Frdges
Xix. 30. The People faid tocre was no fuch Deed

done, wor [een, from the Day that the Children of

Ifracl came ont of Egyps : And 1 may fay there
was never fuch a barbarous Murder committed
in England, fince the People of England were
freed from the Yoke of the Pope’s Tyranny ;
and, as °tis faid there, {o fay I now, Confider of
ity take Advice, and [peak your Minds.

Mer. 80l. Gen. My Lord, I would only make
one Obfervation to your Lordfhip, which 1s this;
I do not find they do in the lealt pretend to tax
Mr. Praunce, that any Perfon hath bribed him
to give this Evidence; nor, that there was the
leaft Reward ever propoled to him to bear Wit-
nefs againit them, not fo much as the Hopes of
that Reward contained in the King’s Proclama-
tion; yet Mr. Praunce, if he had had 2 mind to
bear falle Witnefs, might have laid hold of that
Opportunity ; but {o far was he from pretending
to difcover any thing, that he denied all when
he was firft apprehended. But after he was in
Hold, and likely to be brought to Juftice,
and lying under the Convition of a guilty
Confcience, then, and not till then, does he dil-
cover it.

There is no Objection in the World to be
made, but that fince this Difcovery, Mr. Praunce
hath retraed what he faid before, but he gives
you a very good Account of it; the Terrors of
Confcience he then lay under, the Fears that he
thould not be pardoned, and the Apprehenfions
he had from the Threats on their Side, and the
Danger of his utter Ruin, put him upon that
Denial,

But, my Lord, he tells you Lkewife, That as
foon as ever he was brought back to the Prifon,
he owned all he had faid at firft, and defired he
might be carried back again to teltify the Truth
of what he had firft fworn to. This, my Lord,
he gives you an Account of, and the fame Ac-

Voti, lL

count does the Keeper of tne Prifon give too.
I have nothing to fay more, but only juit to ob-
ferve the many Circamftances whereby Mr.
Praunce’s Teftimony is forrified. Mr. Bedlow
docs agree with him in every Circumftance, as
far as his Knowledge went: The Maid of thé
Houfe agrees with his Teftimony ; that fays, fhe
faw Green at Sir Edmundbury Godfrey’s feveral
Times, tho® here he denies he knew him. That
{he faw Hifl there that very Morning her Mafter
was miffed ; That he talked with her Mafter a
Quarter of an Hour; That fhe knew him by a
very good Token ; not only by his Face, but al-
fo that he had the fame Clothes on then he hath
now. ,

Mr. Prammce hath likewife told you of ano-
ther Circumftance, the meeting at the Plhw-Ale-
houfe, where they laid the whole Defign of In-
trapping Sir Edmundbury Godfreys and herein
he 1s Fortified by the concurrent Teftimony of
the Mafter of the Houfe, and the Servant too,
tho' they now deny that ever they had been in
his Company there; or that they fo much as
knew Gireld; tho® when they were Examined at
the Council-Board, they faid they knew Girals,
but not Kelly; and now they are preft with i
here, Hill retreats to this, That he knows one Gi-
rald, but not Girald the Prieft,

My Lord, I think the Matter is fo fully, and
fo plainly proved beyond Exception, that there
needs no Repetition in the Cafe: Itis impof-
fible that Mr, Prannce, a Man of that mean Ca-
pacity, fhould invent a Story with fo many Cir-
cumitances, all fo confiftent, if there were not
Truth at the Bottom of it. He fhews you the
particular Places, from Place to Place, where
they decoy’d him in, and how they diipofed of
him, to the Time they carried him out, And
in cach of thefe Circumftances there 1s not the
feaft Improbability or Caule to disbelieve him.
It hath been already fo fully repeated, and the
Plainnefs of the Evidence is fo convincing, that
I need not make meore Obfervations upon 1t;
but fubmit it to your Lordfhip and the Jury.

Their the Lord Chief Fuftice direfied the Fury

111 this manner :

Look you, Gentlemen of the Jury, Thisis an
Inquifition for Innocent Blood that hath been
fhed, and your Bufinefs is to fce if you can find
out the Murderers.

We would not add Innocent Blood to Innocent
Blood : But, on the other Side, if you have re-
ceived Satisfaction fo much as the Nature of the
Thing can bear, then the Land is defiled, unlets
this be fatisfhed.

Now for that I will urge the Witnefs and Te-
flimony no further than it does appear; for you
and We are all upon our Oaths to do uprightly,
neither to Spare Murderers, nor Condemn the
Innocent.

In the firlt Place, We began with Mr. Oates,
and he told you, that he had fome Converle with
Sir Edmundbury Godfiey, and that he was threat-
en’d by fome, and had no good Will for his
Pains, in taking thofe Examinations he had ta-
ken, and he was afraid his Life was i Danger.
This he tells you was the Difcourfe before-hand,
and this is produced to lead you to confider

what fort of Perfons they were, of whom he
5 H Was
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was likely to have thefe Fears; for his Fears did
" arife from his having done his part, asa Juftice
" of Peace, in taking the Examinations upon Oath.
- For the Teftimony of the Falt they produce

firft Mt. Praunce, wherein you will do well to
" obferve " all the Degrees that he goes by, before
" the Faét, and all the Circumftances in the Trani-
* aftion of that Affair, and the Parties by whom
it was to be Acted : Firft he tells you, how long it

was before they could entice him to confent to .

“fuch a Villany as this was, To Murder 2 Man ; he
tells you by whom he was thus enticed, which
" makes the Story more probable ; that is, by Girald
“and Kelly (two Pricfts) and he tells it you fhll
" more probably by their Doctrine, that 1t was no
Sin; but it was rather an A¢t of Charity to kill a
- Man that had done, and was like to do them

" miichief :* So that if you confider the Perfons
“that Preached to him, and the Do trine they
taught, 1t carrles a great fhew and prefumption
of Truth in itfelf. When they had met toge-

ther at the Plow feveral times, (which was deny’d
by fome of them, but is moft manifeftly proved
by the Mafter of the Houfe and the Boy) and
the wifh’d-for time was come; for they were to
watch the Opportunity, and Mr. Prauince was to
be at home, and they would call him to give his

helping Hand ; he tells you, That Mr. A7/ did
go that Morning ; for tho’ he talks of an Errand
before, yet to keep to that which is moft pref-
fing in the Evidence, he went to Sir Edumund-
Fury’s Houfe.  This he feems to deny s but the
Maid does Swear it exprefly upon him; and fays,
She came firlt to him, and went up Stairs, and
then came back again, and ftill he was there.
And fhe {wears pofitively the knows him by his
I'ace, and by the Clothes he then had on, which
are the fame Clothes he hath on now, and that
that 15 the Man that was with her Mafter; and
this, which they cannot difprove, half proves the
Marter.

What had he to do at Sir Edmundbury God-
Jrey's Houfe? Bat that would be an hard puzzling
Queftion to be put to him ; What did you there ?
And therefore he is to deny it; but the Maid
proves It upon him, as well as Pramnce. So that I
would have you confider how many Witnefes
you have to onc thing or another, all conducing
to this Pont,

You have firft Mr, Oases, that tells you the
Dilcourfe that paffed between Sir Edmundbary
Godfrey and him 3 the Maid tells you, that both
thefe Men were there, one at one time, and the
other at another ; and you have Mr. Praunce that
knew the whole Affair, who tells you fo like-
wile, and that they were refolved to do the
Work that Day, in fo much that if they could
not do 1t, as they had before contrived it (and
Siv Ldmndbury Godfrey was fenfible that he was
Dogg’d up“and down) Girald did refolve to dogg
him to his own Door, and kill him in the Lane
that leads to his Houfe, he would have run him
thro’ himfelf, and this Gire/d is one of thofe
Priefts, whofe Church counts it no Sin, but an
At of Charity, to murder a Chriftian, to pro-
pagate Chriftianity.

- When they bad way-laid him and watch’d
his coming, from what Place Mr. Prasice can-
not tell; for he knows nothing but what they
told him, and they only named in general, that
he was Lodg’d in St. Clement’s; and thereupon
OlE comes to acquaint him, that they would ins

tice him in at the Water-gate by Soimerfer-Houf,

. and they would do 1t with Art enough, for they

never want a contrivance for {0 charitable g
Adts and 1t was upon this pretence that there
were two Men a wrangling and fighting, ang
then he being a Juftice of the Peace, was a Per.
fon that would part the Fray eafily.

And 1t was a probable Invention : for Sir E4.
mupdbnry Godfrey was a Man that was as willing
to do all Acts of Juftice as any one, and as fitrle
afraid to do 1t; for the Witnefs tells you before,
that he faid, 1f they did do him a mifchief, they
muft do it bafely, for he did not fear the beft of
them upon farr Play., Then when he was defired

to get humfelf a Man to follow him, he flighted
the Advice: And we all know, that he was,

Man of fingular Courage, and therefore it wag
the cafier to lay a trap for him., Then, fitl
Praunce, when he was got in, Berry and I were
to have feveral Pofts, which we were to go to,
I to one Place, and Berry to another; and I ftaid,
faith he, till Green threw the Cravar about his
Neck, and was aflifted by Girald and the reft
that were there,  And then, as foon as we could
imagine the thing to be done, Berry comes in,
and Preunce comes back from his ftanding, and
by fome Motions finds that he was alive, and
that till Green twilted his Neck round ; which
the Chirurgeors fay was plainly a Broken Neck,
and nothing of the Wounds which were in his
Body were given him while he was alive.

When they had done this, he tells you, they
carried him to Mr. Hill's Chamber : Berry, Girald,
Kelly and the reft, all help’d him in, and there
they leave him.  Then Praunce goes away. This
was on Safurdey Night, Then Praunce comes
again on Monday Night, and finds him removed
to another Chamber hard by, where he faw him
by the light of a Dark-Lanthorn, with fomething
thrown over s Iace; and afterwards on Tuef-
day Night following they did remove him bacls
to HilPs Lodgings, and there he lay tll /Pednef-
day Night, when they carried him out.

Saith Praunce, 1 faw him that Night 3 I was
the Man that help’d to carry him our, for 1t was
Praunce and Girald that carried him firft, and it
was Gicen and Kelly who went before, and took
him up afterward, He tells you, they fet him
upon an Horfeback, and &1/ behind him. They
carried him out in a Chair, which was a thing
that ufed to come in and go out there, and o
the lefs Notice would be taken of it. I will ob-
ferve to you afterwards, on the Prifoners behalf,

what 1s faid for them to all this.

But as to Piannce, you fee he hath given you
an Account from the top to the bottom, fron:
the firft Tranfaétion between them, from the
‘Time of his being called by them to help in the
Murder, and from his feeing the Handkerchicef
twifted about his Neck, his Neck twifted round
how they difpofed of his Body at firft, what re-
moves they made, and when they carried him
out, who were in Company, who relieved them,
and what became of him at Jafl.

He fays, he faw him fet up before Hil/ on
Horfeback, and they told him, they had thrown
him tn a Ditch, and Giéra/d had run him through
with his.own Sword; and in that Pofture, and

.1n that Place the Conftable found him: The

Chirurgeons tell you, that it was by the twifting
of his Neck, and the Strangling, that he was
kilPd, and not by the Wounds; and the very

Bruifings
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Broifings which Fratice fpeaks of, were found
upon the view of l:hf:_Body. So that here 1s not
any one Thing, that is not back’d either in fome
particular Circumftance or other; bcﬁde§ Mr,
Praunce’s Teftimony, who (alone) could give the
Narrative of the Fadt,

And it is no Argument againft Mr. Praunce in
the World, that he fhould not be believed, be-
canfe he was a Party, or becaufe he after denied
what he firft faid : Firft, Becaule you can have
no Body to difcover fuch a Fuct, but only one
that was privy toit: S0 that we can have no
Evidence, bat what arifes from a Party to the
Crime. And, in the next place, his Denial after
he had confeffed it, to me, does not at all found
asan A& of Falfhood, but Fear. Itis not a good
Argument to fay, that he is not to be believed,
hecauie he denied what he once faid 5 for he tells
you he had not his Pardon, he was In great
Confternation ; the Horror of the Fact ifelf,
and the Lofs of his Trade and Livelihood was
cnough to do 1. But how fhoyt was his Den'fa],
and how quick was his Recantation! for he denied
it before te King, not upon Oath: Hz fwore it
upon Oath, but he denies 1t upon his Word
only 3 but by that time he got home to Newgate,
with Captain Richardfon, he fell down on his
Knees, and begg’d him tor God’s fake to carry
him back to the King, for what I did fay at firft,
faid he, is true, and this Denial 15 falfe.  And
here could be no Tampering, no Contrivance
made ufe of ; no, ’tis plain there could be no
Art ufed to meke lim retract from his firlt Te-
ftimony. And thefe are the Paruculars, as to
Piraunce’s Evidence.

Then comes Mr, Bedleze, and tells you, that
he was commanded by Le feire, and the Prictts
he was acquainted with, to inlinuatc himfelf in-
to the Acquaintance of Sir Edmundbury Godfrey
they did not tell him why; they themfeives
knew privately whercfore, and they did intend
him as an Inftrument to do it, as appears after-
ward, He tells you, he got mnto his Acquain-
tance, by pretending to go for Warrants for the
oood Behiviour and the Peace, as he knew Sir
Edmundbury Godfrey was willing to have the
Peace kept ; and he was with him every Day
almoft, for a Week or more. |

Then the Priefts come a lictle nearer, and tam-
per’d with him to kill a Man, an il Man for
their turn, and that Mr, Bedlso fhould be very
well rewarded, he fhould have Four Thoufand
Pounds to kill that Gentleman; but full they
kept the Name fecret. He promufed them fair,
but broke his Word. Afterwards he meets this
Companion that he had moft Confidence in, and
being tax’d with his Breach of Promife, faid he,
I had Bufinels, I could not come, Well, faid his
Companion, you fhould have been as good as
your Word ; but the Thing is done, the Perfon
is killed, and I would have you help to carry
him away. He promifes to do 1r, and to meet
him at Somerfet-Houfe 3 accordingly he comes up

on Monday 1n the Evening, and about Nine or
Ten of the Clock at Night My, Bedlow {wears,
that in this Chamber that Preunce fays he was
laid in, he did fee the Body by the Help of a
Dark-Lanthorn; and his Face was covered with
a Cloke or Mantle, or fome fuch thing thrown
over him,

And thefe two Men, vz, Mr. Praunce and
Nir, Bedlewo, as the Council have obferved, had

Vo, II

not any Confederacy together, <for they both
fwear, that they never hud any Converfe at all;
and If it be fo, then it is impoffible for two Men
fo to agree in a Tale, with all Circumftances, if
they never converfed together, but it muft be
true.

It is hardly poffible for any Man to invent
fuch a Story ; for Praunceitis, 1 believe, I find
it 1s no hard thing for the Pricits to contrive
luch an Action; but for two Witneffes to agree
in {fo many material Circumf{tances with one ano-
ther, that had never converfed together, is im-
pofiible,

If all this had been a Chimera, and not really
fo, then Prawnce mult be one of the notableft In-
ventors 1n the World : And there mult have been
the mightieft Chance in the World, that Mr.
Bedlowy and he thould agree fo in all Things; and
that the Mud fhould {wear, that Hi// was there
that Nlorning; and that the Conftable fhould

find the Body, juft as they told Prayuce they had
left him,

So that upon the Matter, you have two Wit-
nefles almoft in every Thing ; for Mr. Bedlsee,
feetng him in the Place murdered, isa plain Evi-
dence that the Thing was done; and all the o-
ther Witnefles, {peaking to Circumftances both
before and after, make the Evidence plain, that
thele were the Perfons who did it. And I fee no-
thing inconerent 1n all Mr, Praance’s Teftimony,

I would not urge this fo, 1f I was not fatisfied
in my own Confcience that the Relation 1s true.
In the Frifoners Defence, there 1s but one Thing,
that hath any forc of Weight; for the young
Gentlewoman talking of his being conftantly ac
home at Eight of the Clock, 1s nothing; for fhe
fays they always go to Bed about Nine o’Clock,
and they give no Anfwer to this, but that it
could not be done in their Houfe but they muft
know of ity but do not tThew how that muf
needs be; {o that all their Evidence is flight, and
anfwers 1tfelf, or clie not poflible to be true.
All the Teflimony that is confiderable in this
Matter, 1s that which Berry produces; and that
is concerning the Centinels who kept the Guard
that Wednefday Night the Body was carried out s
and he fays, there was no Sedan carried out.
And altho® this Evidence be produced but by,
one of them, yet 'us to tihe Benefic of them dlf;
threey for if 1t were certun and infallibly “true,
that the Centinels did fo watch at the .Gate, that
no Mortal could go out of the Place, and if the
Darknefs of the Night might not hinder him
from feeing what might go out, or that Mr.
Berry’s Voice being known to him, he mighe
not call to him, and {fo Mr. Beisy might open
the Gate without any great Caution, or more
particular Oblervation by the Centinel, fo thac
this might efcape his Oblervation or Remem-
brance, and yet that the Centinel be an honeft
Man, and ipcak true, as he thinks, to his beft
Remembrance, which [ leave to your Confidera-
tion. But there is one Thing the other Centi-
nel tells you, that about Eight or Nine o’clock
(for he went off at Ten) there was a Sedan
brought in, and he did not fee it go out; and
fo fays he that watched from Ten to One; and
this is the only thing which hath any Colour in
it, in Behalf of the Prifoners.  But he that fays
there was no Body went out, fays alfo, that he
never faw the Sedan 3 but the Centinel that was
relieved, fays, that he faw 1t go in. Now how

5H 2 far
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far that fingle Teftimony of Nichelas I¥iight the
Centinel will weigh, who fays that none went
out, | leave with you, which may be milizken,
either by reafon of the Darknels of the Night,
or thofe other Particulars I have obferved to you.

But this is all that can overthrow the whole
Series of the Evidence that hath been given by
Mr. Prauuce, upon whom I find not the Jeaft
Refiection, except you will cail that one, which
to me, as it is circurnftanced, 15 rather an Arau-
ment for him, than againft him, wiz, his going
off from what he faid. And what Sir Rebeit
Soutbaoell fays is regardable, that when he fhewed
them the Place where he was ftrangled, the
Houfe to which he was firflt carried, he did 1t
very readily and confidently, but was puzzled 1o
find out the Room where he was removed, when
he faw him by the Dark-Lanthorn, and would
not pefitively affert where it was; which fhews
the Integrity of the Man, who would elle have
cone thro’ withour boggling; for 1t all were a
Lye, why fhould he ftick at one Thing more
than arother, but have fhewn fome Room or
other ¢ but when he was confident he appeared
fo, and when he was doubtful he appeared o,
and fo thewed himielt an honell Man,

Thefe arc the particular Matters, and, as near
as 1 can remember, all thae hath been materially
offered for the Prifoners, againft the King’s Evi-
dence. Tor the Teltimony of the Landlord,
IiZarricr, and his Wife, it 1s plainly {poken of
another Time, for it was the Saetzwrday afier the
Thirfecy he was found, the 19tn of Ofeler. So
that they fpeak nothing but what is true, and
yet nothing to the Purpole; for the Queluon
15, of that which was done the r2th, but they
{peak of a Time when the Tragedy was paficd, fo
that there 1s only the firgle Evidence of onc
Witnels, the Centinel, which muft be oppofed
to all the concurring Evidence given aguinit
them.

Berry, There was Centinels placed ot every
one of the Gate,,

L. C.°f. That 1s nothing, for we fpeak only
of this Gare, the great Gates but I will tell you
what there is that does not arife from thefe Wit-
nefles, but from the Nature of the Thing they
were about, and the Perfons that tranfaéted ir,
that gives Credit to the Teltimonies of the Wit-
nefles, {0 as to incline any one to believe them,
as Things ftand at this Day, 1n reference to the
known Delign of the Priefls to fubvert our Re-
ligion, for they muft juitify one Il by another,
and the Mifchiefs they have done will not be fufe,
unlefs they do more.

And for the Pricfts being the Preachers of
Murder, and your Sin, that ’tis Charity to kill
any Man that {tands in cheir Way 5 their Doc-
aine will make you eafily believe their Pradiice,
and their Fractice proves their Dodtrine,  Such
Courfes as thefe we have not kinown in Lngleud,
all it was broughe out of their Catholick Coun-
trivs; what belongs to feerer Stranglings and
Poilonings, are tirange to us, tho’ common 1n
Liely.  Bat now your Prielts are come hither to
be the Pope’s Bravo’s, and to murder Men for the
Honour ot his Holinels: And as they are Inhu-
mane, fo they are Unmunly too; for Sir Ed-
ssundl iy Gadfrey had not been afraid of two or
three of your Priclls, 1t they would have dealt
fairly with him.

Berry. 11e was a Gentleman that I never fpoke
witi in all my Life,

L.C. ¥ You muit fay and belicve, as your
Prieft will have you, and tn fuch Actionsas thefe,
as your Prieflts fugoeft to you, fo does the Deyi
to your Prietts; if you are upon the Matter ne-
ceflitated to what they will have you think; for
tho” your Priells preach up Ireedom of Wij),
yet they allow none to the Underftanding, They
hold you may do Good or Evil, but will rot
futler you to underfland Rignr and Wrong, for
you cannot be perfeCtly theirs, 1f you have any
thing of your own to guide yourfelves by.

I know that every Body of that Party is apt o
fay theiwr Priclts own no fuch thing, but it is no-
torioufly known to all the World, that they
both Print 1t, and practile it.  Flat, focll any of
you difpute the Power of ¢ Pope ?~faith a Jeluit
Cr, of a Pope and Conncil? fay the moft mode-
rate Priefts.  Have you Power to fay how far
you will be a Papift, and how far not? You may
as well bound the Sea, and bid it go thus far,
and no farther, as limit the Pope’s Authority. [
wonder any Man fhould be ot that Perfuafion,
and vet keep his Reafon s much lefs turn from our
Religion to theirs, it he confiders how they
nnpoie, and what Mifcniefs and Blood yeu are
involved 1n by your Priefls, that have afarmed
the Nution.  For I will affirm, the greateft
Midchief the Papifts have received, come trom
their Priefts, wuo have fuch unworthy and un-

wnly Ways of feiting up therr Religion: What!
do they think it an A& of Charity to kill Men;
or is the Chriftian Rcligion, or yours, to be pro-
moted by fuch Means as theie? No, Gentle-
men, ’tis the Fault of your Doctrine, and ’tis 2
monfirous Miflake 1n you, if you think that
you have any Power of your own whillt you
continue in ther Perfuafion,

[ know fome will aferibe all to Confeience that
ouides them, and thar cven thele Mifchiefs are
but the Effects of their Religions Obedience
but they are indeed the Confcquences of the
Blindnels of thetr Obedience. I wonder how
any Man can have the Face, thus to diforder a
wiole Nation, and yet pretend Confcience for it.
Let no Man tell me, O, Sir, we defire none of
thefe Miichiefs you talk of: What, not if Re-
ligion requires 1t, or if the Pope fays it does ?
Hath not the Council of Lateran decreed, That
every Yopilh Prince ought to root out Herely
uwon Pain of Damnation? You muft: Can you
¢o and tell the Pope how far you will believe,
or what you ought to do? You may as well tell
me, that if he were once with us, and had the
Power he once had, he would leave us to our-
felves, and that it he had the fame Ability, he
would not have the fame Tyranny.

And therefore all the Roeinan Catholick Gentle-
men in Eugland would do very well to confider,
how nmuch it concerns Chriftianity not to give
Ofence 3 and :f they cannot at tlus Time live
1 a Protefiant Kingdem with Security to thew
Neighbours, but caule fuch Fears and Dangers,
and toat for Confcivnce fake, ler them keep their
Coniciences, but leave the Kingdom, It they
fay, why fhould nct we ftay here, while we do
no Milchiet? alas, that’s not in your Power,
You cannot be quier in your own Religion, un-
lefs you difturh ours; and therzfore, it to fhew
your Confciences you acquit the Country, and
let the Inconveniencies light on youriclves only,
1 fhould then think you had Zeal, though not
accerding to Knowledge; and not aferibe 1t

to
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to any Plot, but to the Simplicities of Under-
tanding. _ _

But, in fhort, there is a monfirous Evidence
of the whole Plot itlelf by tlus Falt; for we
can aferibe It to none, but fuch Ends as thefe,
that fuch a Man muft be kill'd; for 1t muft be
cither becaufe he knew fomething the Priefts
would not have him tell; or they muft do 1t in
Dehiance of Juftice, and in Terror toall them that
dare execute it upon them; which carries a great
Evidence in itfelf, and which I leave to your
Conlideration 3 having remembred, as well as 1
could, the Proofs againlt them, and all that is
conliderable for them,  Add to this, the Condi-
tion that we are in at this Time, and the Eager-
nefs of the Purfuic that thefe Priefts make, to
aain the Kingdom, that, for my own Part, I
muft put it into my Lutaiy, That God wonld de-
liver me from the Dilufon of Popivy, aid the Ty-
raniy of the Pope : For it is a Yoke, wihich we,
who have known Freedom, cannot endure, and
a Burden, which none bur that Bealt who was
made for Burden, will bear, So T leave it to

our Confideration upon the whole Matter, whe-
ther the Lvidence of the IMadt does not fatisfy
your Confciences, that thefe Men are guilty.  And
honelt Men on both

I-w.;

I know you will do lnice
Sides.

Then the Fery withdresyy lo confider of their
Verdifl, and cficic e fherr Space vetzined
agaiils

Cl. of the Cr. Gentlemen, anfwer to your
Names, Sir 7illiaiz Relcits,

Sir IHl. Reoeiris, Herve,  sdad fo the veff.

Cl. of the Cr. Gentlemen, are you all agreed of
your Verdict ?

Ouniies, Yes.

Cl. of the Cr. Who fhali fay for you?

Oiizes. Our Foreman.

Cl of the Ci. Rebeit Greery hold up thy Hand,
(which he did.) Look upon the Prifoner; how
fay you, is Rodeit Greerr guiity of the Felony and
Murder whereof he {tands 1ndicted, or not guil-
ty

Forenan, Guiity.

Cl. of the Cr. What Goods or Chattels, Lands
or Tenements?

Foreman. None, to our Knowledge.

Cl of the Cr. Hewy Berip, hold up thy Hand,

(which he did.)  Look upon the Priforer, How

fay you, s fenry Berry guilty of the Felony and
Murder whereot he tands indicted, or not guil-
ty ?

Loreman. Guity,

Cl of the Cr. What Goods or Chattels, Lands
or Tenements ¢

Foreiman. None, to our Knowledge,

Cl of the Cr. Lewience Hill, hold up thy Hand,
(which he did.) How fay you, is Lawience Hill
gutlty of the Felony and Murder whercof he
ftands indifled, or not guilty?

Foreman. Guilty.

Gl of the Cr. What Goods or Chattels, Lands
or Tenements ? :

Foraman, None, to our Knowldge.

Cl. of the Cr. Hearken to your Verdilt, as the
Court hath recorded it. You fay that Robers
Green is guilty of the Felony and Murder where-
of he ftands indicted. You fuy that Hewry Bei-
7y is guilty of the Felonv and Murder where-
of he fltands indicted. You fay tiiat Lawrcuce
H:ll is guiley of the Felony and Murder whereof

he ftands indiCted ;5 and that neither they, nor
any of them, had any Goods or Chartels, Lands
or Tenements, at thc Tnne of the Felony com-
mitted, or at any Time fince, to your Know-
ledge. And fo you fay all,

Quines, Yes. _

L. C.J. Gentlemen, You have found the fime
Verdidt, that I would have found if T had been
onc with you; and if it were the Jaft Word I
were to fpeak in this World, I fhould have pro-
nounced them guilty, .

At whbich Words the whsle Affembly gave a
great Soout of  Applauf,

M. At Gerr, Will your Lordlhip pleafe to
give Judgment this Evening? I know it is not
ufual the fame Day.

M, Juft. IWild, My Lord, I am ready.

L. C. 7. No, Brother, 1 am to lit at [Vif p#i-
#s this Afternoon, and s time we broke up the

Court.,

Cl. of the Cr. Captun Rickerdfen, you fhall
have a2 Rule to bring them ro-morrow. And
then the Court broke up.
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On Tuelday tle eleventh of February, the
Prifoners wwere brought again to the Bar,
i order to recerve their Sentence; and
the Court proceedes- this :

Nr, Recorder, P’\‘ y Y Lord, asI was diretted by

vy & Mr. Attorney, thefe Prifo-
ners being convifted of Murder, I do, for the
King, pray Judgment upon them; bur I muft
firft acquamnt your Lordfhip, that immediately
after ther Convidtion, one of the Officers, a Tip-
ftaff, pretending it was his I'ee, took their Clothes
off' their Backs,

L. C. }. Who 1s that Officer ¢

Mr. Recordeir, One Afldy,

L.C.F. Call him. Why do you offer to med-
dle with thefe Mens Clothes !

Afbby. It hath been an ancient Cuftom this
forty Years, fome of us have known 1t, that the
Marfhal hath the upper Garment of all Prifoners
Tried at this Bar. |

L.C F. Is there any fuch  Specting 12 a Cirrs
Cuftom, Nir., Hat Ei‘ziﬂfgr} ¢ ¢f the Crown-Office,

Watcrbenfe, No, my Lord, not that I know of.

L. C. % Here is Mr., #aterbenfe, that hath
known the Practice of the Court this threefcore
Years, fays there 1s no fuch thing, FEither re-
ftore them their Clothes, or we will take fome
other Courfe with you, Are they in your Cufto-
dy, pray ?

M, ‘Fuff, Dolben. 1 do not know that, my
Lord, I think they always plead in Cuftody of
the Marfhal.

My, Fufe. Fild. But this feems a very barbarous
Thing, to take their Clothes off” their Backs.

M. Fuf. Dolben. 1t doth fo, Brother, and they
muft be reftored.

L. C. ¥ Yes, yes, yoeu mult refeore them.

Ay, They fhall be, my ord.

Mr. Recorder. I pray your Judgment. ‘

L. C. . Ask them what they can fay to hins

der Judgment,
Cl. of the Cr. Robert Green, hold up thy Hand,
(which he did.) Thou haft been mcicted of Fe-

Jony and Murder, thou haft been thereupon ar-
raigned,
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raigned, thou haft pleaded thereunto Not guilty,
and for thy Trial thou haft put thy {clf upon
Godand thy Country, which Country hath foqnc}
thee uilty 5 what haft thou to fay for thy felf,
why the Court fhould not proceed to give Judg-
ment of Death upon thee, and award Execution
according to the Law ?

Capt. Richardfon. What have you to fay for
yourfelf ?

recsr. I declare to all the World, that 1 am
as innocent of the Thing charged upon me, as
the Child that is in the Mother’s Womb. 1 die
innocent, 1 do not care for Death, I go to my
Saviour, and 1 defire all that hear me to pray for
me. | never faw the Man to my Knowledge,
alive or dead.

Cl. of the Cr. enry Berry, hold up thy Hand,
(which hedid.) Thou haft been indicted of Ie-
lony and Murder, &, What canit thou fay?
e
Berry. 1 do declare, Tam not guiity of any
thing in the World of this,

L. C. 7. We do not expect much from you,
and it is no great matter 5 for your Conieliion
will do us little good, but only for your lelves.
We regard it not otherwife, becaufe the Lvi-
dence was fo plin, that all Mankind 15 fatisfed,
there is no Scruple in the Thing; and we know
you have cither downright Denals, or Evations,
or equivocating Terms for every Tning ; yet, In
plin-dealing, cvery one that heard your Tril
hath ereat Satisfaction ; and for my own port-
cular, I have great Satifaction that you arc every
one of you guilty.

Cl. of the Cr. Lawrence Hill, hold up thy Hand,
(which he did.) Thou haft been indicted of Fe-
lony and Murder, e, What canft thou fay ?
(. -

Hiil. T have nothing to fay for my {elf, but taat
God Almighty knows my Innocence.

Cl. of the Cr. Crier, make an O yes.

Crici. O Ye.! Our Sovereign Lord the King
doth ftraitly charee and command all manner
of Perfons to keep filence whilft Judgment is
giving upon the Prifoners convicted, upon pam
of Imprifonment ; Peace about the Court.

Then My, Fuftice Wild, who, as fecond Sfudoe in
that Court, proncunceth the Seutence in all cri-
minal Matters, (except High-Trcafoir) [poke to the
Prifoucrs thus :

Mr. Fuff. TVild, You that are the Prifoners at
the Bar, you have all three been indicted for a
deteftable Murder, and thereunto have pleaded
Not guilty, and put your felves, for your Trial,
upon your Country ; and your Country, upon a
clear and pregnant Evidence, I Dbelieve to the
Sausfaction of all good Men, that were indiffe-
rent, have found you Guilty, I have little Com-
fort to fay any thing to you, becaufe I obferve
vour Obftinacy at the Bar; bue 1t is fo generally
among you all, you will confels nothing to the
Dezath,

Green. God forbid, Sir.

Mr. Fuft. Wild, But tho” I am of another Per-
fuafion than you, and know you have no Chari-
ty for me, yet I have Charity for you. Andif
I {hall fay any thing, 1t 15 out of a zealous Af-
feCtion I have for your Souls; God knows, T
fpeak it upon no other Grounds; tho’ the O

fence be borrid, yet I commiferate your Per-
fous,

For the Nature of your Ofence, it is Mur
der : He that fheds Maw's Blood, by Men fhall bis
Blood be fbed s for in the Image of God created be
bim, Sofuth God to Noah, intimating and de-
claning thereby, That the Intention of God Al-
mighty, in the making of that Law, was the
Prefervation of Mankinds and that he will not
admir or fuffer his Image to be defaced or de-
{troyed, If it fhall be accounted Treafon againt
Earthly Princes to deface their Images, is 1t not
much more Treafon agamnft the great God of
Heaven and Earth, to deface his Image, who ig
the King of Kings, and Lord of Lords? The Great-
nefs of this Sin firuck fuch a Damp and Horror
upon the Soul of Cain, that it made him cry out,
His Punifmert was greater thau be conld bear 5 or,
as our Bibles have it in the Margin, His Inigusty
was greateir than could be forgiven s and it fholl
coine to pafs, ihat whofocver meeteth mz, fhall Slay
me: Being confcious to himfelf, that it was juft
and lawiul, that wiofoever did meet with him
fhould flay lum, And God himfelf doth fet forth
the Hemouinefs of this Oifence, when he rells
him, Iis Brother’s Blood ciy’d 1o bimr g that is,
cry’d unto God from the Earth for Vengeance.
Bloed, 1t 1s of a crying Nature, and will never
cexfe crying, till 1t iind out the Man-flayer,

It is an Oflence 1o heinous in the Eye of God,
that he will not endure 1t in a Bealt; God faith,
he will require 1t of a Baalt. And doth God re-
quire Blood of o Bealt, a brutifh Creature void
of all Reafon, and will he not require it much
more of Man, whom he hath endued with thofe
two great Faculties of Realon and Underftand-
ing? And certainly, if Murder in general be en-
quired after, I may well fay this of yours, there
hath not been committed 2 more impudent and
barbarous Murder 1a this civiliz’d Nation, by
one Subject upon another. And obferve how
you did effect this Murder, with Bafenefs enough.
See the Balenels of it; as the Devil was the Fa-
ther of Lies, fo he was a Murderer from the
Beoinning 3 and you firlt begun your Murder
with an hellifh, ftudied, and premeditated Liye,
Knowing that this Gentleman was a Perfon ve-
ry vigorous in the Execution of his Place, that
would omit o Opportunity of doing his Office ;
you pretend you have Occaiton for him, and by
this means draw him into your Snare; where
what you do, you do cowardly and bafely, firlt
difarm him, then fall upon him and murder him;
as the Prophet Lavid faith of the ungodly Man,
firft gets the righteors Man in bis Net, and then ra-
’U{ﬂ?fib hii,

Had fuch a Thing as this been alted by us
Proteftants in any Popith Country in the World,
I doubt there would fcarce have been one of us
lett alive. They would not have taken this
Courle that hath been taken with you, to admit
us to a fair Tral; no, they would have made
their own Flands their Avengers: But, God be
pratfed, weare of another Religion, and of ano-
ther Perfuafion. We leave Vengeance to God,
and, under lim, to the Magiitrate, who bearcth
wot the Sword in vain, as you now find.

If I could abftradt Folly from Wickednefs,
certainly 1t was one of the greateft Pieces of Fol-
ly and Sottithnefs in the World: For what could
be your End it ? Did you think that all the
Magtfirates 1n Huglaud were lodged in Sir L4
muidbary Gedfrey @ That, 1f he were taken out
of the way, there were not Men of Spirit and

Courage,



1678.B.R..for the Murder of Sir Edmﬁndbu'rir Gaodfrey. 791

Courage, as faithful and diligent as he was?
Trouble not your felves, nor let thofe of your
Perfuafion trouble themfelves, there are a nume-
rous Company of Magiftrates in this Kingdom,
that will do“the fame thing, and act in, and exe-
cate their Offices with the fame Courage.

And as to the Manner of the Murder: Whom

have you deftroyed? A Magiftrate : For what?
Tor the Execution of his Office.  One that was a
o Confervator of the Peace; and whofe Study it
was to preferve you in Peace, on him you have
violated the Peace, and nothing lefs would fa-
tisfy you than his precious Life: An Aﬁ:ront to
the Law, to the Magiftrate, to the King, to
the Nation ; yea, to God himfelf, upon whom an
higher Affront could hardly have been put. For
the Magjftrate 1s God’s Ordinance, 'Gog:l hath fet
him up to avenge himfelf upon the Wicked, and
1o réward the Good 3 and be doth not bear, as, 1t
‘s 2'Sign by you he hath not born, the Sword ir
Vaii. .
‘T might fay much more concerning the Hei-
noufnefs of this Offence ; but had I the Tongue
of Men and Angels, I could not fay enough to
fet out the Horror of it.  And now let me tell
vou, I do not fpeak this to infult and domineer
over you; [ praile God I am of another Spirit;
he knows I have another End in what I fay, and
my End is meerly this, to perfuade you from the
Foulnefs of your ¥adt, to make a good Ule of it;
that the Horridnefs of your Sin may make the
areater and deeper Impreffionis on your Spirits;
and fo make your Repentance more fevere and
efficacious. Hlad you as miany Yeéars to live as
you have Hours, it were little enough to bewail
this horrid Offence. But on the other Side,
as that will be little enough, yet let me give you
this Comfort, you have Time enough, if you
make a good Ule of it, to make your Peace with
God.

Pray let me dehort you from one Thing 5 and
that is this, Do not be of the Opinion of thole
wicked Mifcreants the Jefuits, that have put you
upon this Matter 3 for I have {o much Chariry
for you as to believe, they made it a Matter of
Religion to you, and juftifiable upon that Ac-
count. Do not think fo, for the Law of God 15
indifpenfible, and no Power under Heaven can
licenfe to murder. So that though che Offence
in them is abominable, yet in you ’tis an Of-
fence too, and an horrid one, And when you
have confider’d it as fuch, I then defire yon to
take a right Courfe to make your Peace with
God : For you muit pafsunder another judgment
than that of Man, and that fhortly you muft
ftand before the Judge of Heaven and Earth.
And therefore, if by this means you can prevent
that future Judgment, you will have juft Caufe
to thank God that you had your Punifhment
here on Earth. Thercfore ler me advife you to
{pend every Minute you have left, in a free Ac-

knowledgment of all your Offences: For. cer-
tainly fome Sin went before, or this had never
come after. One Sin doggs another, and makes
way for the Commiffion of another,

And what muft you rely upon? not upon any
Trath or Trumpery, not upon any Merit of yaur
own; there is but one Saviour and Mediator, the
Lord Jefus Chrift. And I would advife you, in
the Words of that great Cardinal, one that was
one of the greateft Men of your Religion, Bel
larmine 1 mean, who having made a Scrutiny,
which was the fafeft Way for fecuring Heaven,
made the Conclufion thus, To Truft only upon the
Lord fefus Chrift for Life and Salvation, Which I
advife you to do.

I have now done what I intended to fay to
yous; and what I have faid, I fpoke to deliver
my own Soul, and upon no other Account, I
now pronounce the Judgment which the Law
hath appointed to pafs upon fuch Malefaétors;
and thatisthis: - :

That you go from hence to the Place from whence
you came, and froin thence to the Place of Ewxecy-
¢ion, where you fhall be feverally hanged by the Neck,
4ill you are feverally dead 5 and the Lord have Mer-
cy upon your Souls.

Hifl. I humbly beg one Favour, that I may
have the Privilege to fee my Wife and Children,
and my Brother, before 1 die, fome times,

L. C. . God forbid elfe.

Hill, Any Day I hope, my Lord.

L.C. ¥} Captain Richardfon, let them have

the Liberty of feeng their Friends, but do it with

Care and Caution,

Mr. Juf. Wild. And I will fay this more to
you, if you will have any Religious Proteftant
Divines to come to you, they fhall be fent you ;
but none of your Priefts.

Hill. I defire only my Relations.

M. Tup. Wild. You fhall have them, and we

offer you the others. . | *
Green. 1 have no Relations that are Catholicks,

but two, and they are not Priefts. God blefs
the King : And I defire all good People to pray
for us.

L.C. 7. Mr. Ay, let the Rule be entred for
their Execution on Monday next.

Cl. of the Cr. Captain Richardfon, you fhall have
the Rule for their Execution on Monday next.

Then the Keeper carried away the Prifoncys to the
Goal, 20 be referved till their Lxecution,

On Friday the 21t of February the Priloners,
Robert Green, Henmry Besry, and Lawience Hill,
were executed, according to the Sentence pro-
nounced againft them; they all perfifted to the
Jaft in denying the Fact, for which they fuffer’d.
See the Account of Hill and Berry’s Behaviour,
State Trials, Vol. 8. p. 435, 436,

XXX. Tze
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LXXX. The Trialof Mr.SAMUEL ATRINS at the King’s-
Bench, for being acceflary to the Murder of Sir Ep-
MUNDBURY GODFREY, February 8, 10, and 11,

167:. 31 Car. 1L

@I N Saturday the eighth of February,
wsbes: 1678, Mr. Samuel Atkins was brought
} o5 from Newgate to the Bar of the Court
Gerzmicy, of King's-Beich at T, eftniinfler, to be
RUZARG arraigned, as acceffary to the Mur-
der of Sir Edmundbuiy Godfrey,

which was done 1n this Manner.

Cl. of the Cr. Samuel Atkins, hold up thy Hand
(which be did). Thou ftandeft indicted by the Name
of Samnuel Atkins, late of the Parifh of §2. Mary
le Strand in the County of Middlefex, Gent. for
that whereas on the Morrow of the Purification
of the the Blefled Virgin A4aiy, before our Sovereign
Lord the King at Weiflminfter, by the Qarth of
twelve Jurors, good and lawful Men of the faid
County, tried, fivorn, and charged to enquire for
our Sovercign Lord the King, and the Body of
the faid County, Rebert Gieen, late of the Parifh
aforefaid, 1 the County aforefaid, Labourer ;
Heniy Beriy, late of the fame Partfh and County,
Labourer 3 Lawsence Hiff, late of the fame Pa-
rith and County, Labourer 3 Girald, late
of the fame Parifh and County, Clerk 5 Dominick
Kelly, late of the fame Parith and County, Clerk ;
and Philibert Vernatt, late of the fame Parifh and
County, Labourer, are indicted, for that they
not having the Fear of God before their Eyes,
but being moved and feduced by the Inftigation
of the Devil, the twelftl Day of Offoder, 1n the
thirtieth Year of the Reign of our Sovereign
Lord Charles 11. by the Grace of God of Eng-
land, Scctland, Fraiee, and Ireland, King, Defen-
der of the Faith, &¢. at the Parith of §2. Maiy
e Strand atorelad, m the County of Aiddlefex
aforefard, 1w and upon Sir Edimundbury Godfiey,
Knt. in the Peace of God and of our faid Sove-
reign Lord the King, then and there being, fe-
lonioufly, voluntarily, and of their Malice afore-
thought, did make an Affault; and that he the
aforetard Robeit Green, a certain Linen Handker-
chicf, of the Value of Six-pence, about the Neck
of the fud Sw Edmzadbuiy Godfrey, then and
there felonlouily, voluntarily, and of his Ma-
Jice aforethought, did fold and faften, and rhat
he the faid Rofeit Green, with the Handkerchief
aforefard, by him the faid Robert Greein on and
about the Neck of the faid Sir Edwmundbury
Godfrey, 1n Mannier and Form aforefaid folded
and faflened, then and there him the faid Sir £d-
sndbury Godfrey did choke and ftrangle, of
which faid choking and fuangling of him, the
fud Sir Edsmndbuiy Godfrev, in Manner and
Form aforefaid, he the tud Sir Edmundbury God-
frey then and there inftantly. died; and that the
fud Henry Beriy, Lawrence Hill, Girald,
Dominick Kelly, and Ppifibert Vernatt, then and
there felonioully, voluntarily, and of their Ma-

lice atorethought, were prefent, aiding, abetting,
comforting and maintaining the aforefaid Robert
Gieen, the aforefuid Sir Edmundbury Godfrey,
in Manner and Form aforefaid, felonioully, vo-
luntartly, and of his Malice aforethought, to kill
and murder ; and f{o they the faid Robert Green,
Heniy Beriy, Lawirence Hill, —— Girald, Ds-
minick  Kelly, and  Philibert Perwatt, in Manner
and Form aforefaid, the aforefaid Sir Edmund-
ouiy Godfrey, felonioufly, wilfully, and of their
Malice aforethought, did kill and murder, againft
the Peace of our Sovereign Lord the King, his
Crown and Dignity. And that thou the faid
Sanmuel Atkins, at or upon the faid twelfii Day
of Offober, and divers Days and Times before
the fud Robert Gieen, Henry Beiiy, Lawrence
Hill, —— Girald, Doninick Keliy, and Phibort
Vernatt, the Felony and Murder aforefuid, at
the Parifh aforefaid, in the County uforefaid, to
commit felonioufly, wilfully, and of thy Mal.ce
aforethought, didft command, counfel and abet,
and knowing the faid Robert Green, Henry Berry,
Lawrence Hill, ———— Girald, Dominick Kelly,
and Philibert Vernatt, the Felony and Murder
aforefard, in Manner and Form aforefaid, felo-
moufly to have done and committed, at or up-
on the fad twelfth Day of Offoder, and divers
Days and Times after, at the Parith aforefaid in
the County aforefaid, felonioufly the faid Robert
Green, Henry Berry, Lazcrence Hifl, —— Girald,
Domnick Kelly, and Philibert Vernatt, did{t har-
bour, comfort and maintain, againft the Peace
of our Sovercign Lerd the King, his Crown and
Dignity. How faylt thou, Samnel Atkins, art thou
amlty as Accefary to the faid Felony and Mur-
der, whereof thou flandelt indi&ted, and haft been
now arraigned, or not guilty ?

Samn. Atkins, Not guilty.

Cl. of the Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be tried ?

Sam. Atkins. By God and my Country,

Cl. of the Cr. God lend thee a good Delive-
rance.

Sain, Atkins. My Lord, I do humbly defire,
that the feveral Examinations taken concerning

this Bufinefs, may at my Trial be brought into
the Court,

L. C. 7. This 1s to be left to
Mr. Attorney to do in it as he

plealecth 3 for he 15 to take care of the King’s
Evidence.
Sam. Atkins. 1 only defire, my Lord, that they

may be brought m. Mr, Recorder had fome of
them taken before him.

Mr. Recorder. To fatisfy this
Gentleman, my Lord, whatever

Eximinations were taken before me fhall be
brought.

Sir William Scrogg:.

Sir George Jefteries.

LG
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L. C. %. Why, Mr. Atkins, do you know no-
thing of this Bufinefs, that you are _fo willing to
have all the Evidence brought in againft you?

Sam. Arkins. My Lord, 1 know nothing of it
at all.

L. C.F. Areyou a Papift, Mr. Atkins ?

Sam. Atkins. No, my Lord, I am not.

L. C. 7. Were you never one ¢

Sam. Atkins. No. I never was one, nor I hope
never fhall be,  'When is it, that your Lordlhip
pleafeth to have me tricd, for I have lain thele
fixtcen Weeks in Prifon, and do earneftly defire
my Trial, _

L. C. % You fhall be tried as foon as we can,
when Mr. Attorney thinketh fit. We muft try
the others on Monday, and it there be Tune afeer-
wards, you may be tried then: However, Captain
Richardfon fhall have a Rule to bring you up
then.

Sam, Atkins. T humbly thank your Lordfhip.
Then he was carried dack by the Keeper, and
accordimgly on Monday following be was
brought up 5 and after the Trials of Green,
Berry and Hill wwere over, be was fent for to
the Bar.

Lune 10 Februarii, 106775,

L. C.F. Mr, dtkins, have you any Bail rea-
dy?

YSHHI. Atkins. No, my Lord, I am prepared for
my Trial, if your Lord(hip pleafeth, Lut not with
Bail.

L.C ¥. Ay, but Mr, Atkins, ’us the latter
End of the Term, and many Peoples Livelihoods
lie at Stake. We can’t lay alide all Bufinefs for
yours,

Sem, Atkins. My Lord, my Life lies at Stake,
and I have been under {evere ImprH{onment a long
Time. 1 humbly pray I may be tried 5 befides I
have many Witnefies, who have remained in Town
on purpole to give Evidence for me ever fince the
laft Term. Ihopemy Trial will not take up much
Time.

Mr. Fuft. Dolben, If you have fo many Wit-
neffes 1t cannot be foon over.

Sam, Atkins. 1 have many ready, but hope I
fhall have Occafion to ufe only a few.

L. C. J. Mr. dtkins, we cannot do it, you muft
be content; you fhall be tried at the Seffions. Pray
how long is it to it ?

My, Recorder. It is about three Weeks, my
Lord.

L. C. 7. That indeed will be too long, but in
the mean ume you fhall be builed.

Sam. Atkins, 1T muft fubmit, my Lord; I think
I have Buil here.  [Mr. Atkins was bere calling
bis Bail.]

L. C. J. Come then, name then.

Capt. Lloyd. My Lord, Iama Witnefs on Be-
half of this Gentleman, and cannot pofiibly be in
Lngland a Fortnight hence,

oam. Atkins. My Lord, thisis a Captain of one
of the King’s Ships, and his Occafions will indif:
penfibly call him away, and this is the Cafe of fe-
veral others of my Witnefles.

L. C.F. Well, I don’t know ; if it be fo, you
fhall be tried to-morrow ; and fo bring him up very
carly. [ Speaking to Captain Richardion.]

And fo Mr. Atkins wen? from 1the Bar, and
was rought up thither again on the Morrew,
being ‘Tuelday, when bis Trial procecded
thuts,

Vour. Il

Martis 11 Felrnarif, 1658,

CL. of the Cr. Crier, make Proclamation.

Crier. O yes ! If any one can inform our Sove-
reign Lord the King, the King’s Serjeant at Law,
the King’s Attorney General, or this Inqueft; now -
to be taken of Sammnel Atkins the Prifoner at the
Bar, his being Acceffary to the Felony and Maur-
der whercof Robert Green, Henry Berry, Lawreince
Hill, and others, ftand indicted, and as Acceflary
of which faid Felony and Murder the faid Samuel
Atkins flands indicted, and hath been arraigned,
let them come forth, and they fhall be heard, for
now the Prifoner flands at the Bar upon his De-
liverance,

Mr, dit. Gew. My Lord, T
muft inform vour Lordfhip, Sir William Jones.
that there is another Indi@ment againft Mr. 4iins
as Princtpal, which was preferred heretofore, but
we have fince thought fit to prefer another as
Acceflary. Now to difcharge him of the firft,
I defire he may be arraigned on that before his
Trial.

Cl of the Cr. 1did fo intend to do, Mr. Attor-
ney. Samuel Aikins, hold up thy Hand, (wbhich
be aid) thou ftandeft indifted by the Name of
Samuel Atkins, late of the Parith of St. Clenents
Danes, n the County of Middlefex, Gentleman,
for that thou, together with Welch, and
~ Le Faire, of the faid Parifth and County,
Gentlemen, not having the Fear of God before
your Eyes, but being moved and feduced by the
Initigation of the Devil, the twelfth Day of
Odfober, n the thirtieth Year of the Reign of
our Sovereign Lord Charles T1. by the Grace of
God of Euglaind, Scotlond, Frawce and Ireland
King, Defender of the Faith, &, with Force
and Arms at the Parifh aforefaid, in the County
aforfard, in and upon Sir Edmupdbuiy Godfrey,
Knight, m the Peace of God and of out faid So-
vereign Lord the King, then and there being, fe-
lonioufly, wilfully, and of your Malice afore-
thought, did make an Affaul, and that thou the
faxd Samuel dthins, a certain Linen Cravat, of
the Value of one Penny, about the Neck of the
faid Siv Edmuendbriy Godfrey, then and there fe-
lontoufly, wilfully, and of thy Malice afore-
thought, did fold and faften, and that thou the
faid Samuel dtkins, viith the faid Cravat, fo by
thee the fad Sammnel Atkins, about the Neck of
the faid Sir Edmnndbury Godfiey faltened and
folded as aforcfaid, then and there the faid Sir
Edmundbury Godfrey, felonioufly, wilfully, and
of thy Maulice aforethought, didft choke and
ftrangle, of which faid choking and firangling
of the fad Siv Edumudbury Godfrey by thee the
faid Sanmel Atkins, in Mannetr and Form afore-
faid done and commutted, the faid Sir Edummund-
bury Godfiey, in the Parifh aforefaid, 1n the County
aforefaid, inftandy died, and that the aforefard—
Ielch, Le Faire, fclonioufly, wilfully, of their
Malice aforethought, were then and there prefent,
aiding, affifting, abetting, comforting and mzin-
taining thee the faid Saimnel Atkins, the Felony and
Murder aforefaid, 1 Manner and Form aforefaid,
to do and commit, And that fo thou the fad
Samuel Athins, with the aforefud IVeleh and
——1L¢ Faire, the faid twelith Day of Ofober, at
the Farifh aforcfaid, in the County aforefaid,
the faid Sir Edwundbary Goefiey, fclonioufly,
wilfully, and of your Malice aforethought, did
kill and murder, againft the Peace of our Sove-
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reign Lord the King, his Crown and Dignity.
How fay*ft thon Samuel Atkins, art thou guilty of
the Felony and Murder whereof thou ftandeft
indicted, and haft been now arraigned, or not
Guiley ?

Sans. Atkins, Not guilty.

Cl. of the Cr. Culprit, how wilt thou be tried ?

Sam. Atkins. By God and my Country.

Cl. of the Cr. God fend thee a good Delive-
eance.  Samuel Atkins, hold vp thy Hand (wiich
be did) thofe Men that you fhall hear called and
fhall perfonally appear are to pafs between our
Sovereign Lord the King, and you, upon the Trial
of your Life and your Death. If therefore you
will challenge them, or any of them, your time is
to fpeak unto them as they come to the Book to
be fworn, and, before they be fworn. Call the
Jury, Crier, and make an O yes,

Cricr. O yes! you good Men thatare impannel-
led to enquire between our Sovereign Lord the
King, and Samuel Atkins the Prifoner at the Bar,
anfwer to your INames.

C!. of the Cr. Sir Jobir Cutler.

Crier. Vous avez. Sir Fobn Cutler, look upon
the Prifoner.  You fhall well and truly try, and
trne Deliverance make between our Sovereign
Lord the King, and the Prifoner at the Bar,whom
you fhall have in your Charge, and a truc Verdict
give according to your Evidence. So help you

God. And fo the reft were fivorn. The Names
of the twelve were thefe,

Sir Fobir Cutler, Ambrofe Ariold,

Michacel Arnold, Rainsford IVatcrbonfe,

Fames Partiidge, Fobu Searle,

Thomas Caffee, Richard Pageit,

Thomas Goffwick, Filliam IWaite,

Fohn Wells, Arthur Blyih.

Cl. of the C. Crier, count thefe. Sir jobi Cutler.

Ciicr. One, &

Cl. of the G, Arthur Biyth.

Crier. Twelve cood Men and true, {tand to-
gether and hear your Lvidence 5 you that are fworn
hearken to the Record, you that are not fvorn
{tand down.

Cl. of the Cr. Samuel Aikins, hold up thy
hand (chich be did.) You that are fworn, look
upon the Prifoner and hearken to his Caufe. You
fhall underftand that he ftards indicted by tie
Name of Samuc! A:iins, Ilate of the Parith of
St. Clement Dane i the County of Adidalfex,
Gentleman ; for that ke, together with
IVelfk, Le Faire, &c. (prout in the Second
Indi€tment mutatis mutandis) agamit the Peace
of our Sovereign Lord the King, his Crown
and Dignity. Upon this Indictment he hath been
arraigned, and thereunto  hath pleaded  not
Guilty, and for his Trial hath put himfeit upon
God and the Country, which Country you are.
Your Charge is to enquire whcther he be guilty
of this Felony and Murder whereof he {tands
mndicted, or not guilty. If yeu find him guilty,
you arc to enquire what Goods and Chattels
Lands or Tenements he had at the time of the
Felony and Murder committed, or at any time
fince. If you find hum not guilty, you are to
enquire whether he did fly for the fame; and 1f
you find that he fled for it, you are to enquire
of his Goods and Chattels, as it you had found
him guilty 5 if you find him not guilty, nor that
he did Ay for it, fay fo and no more, and hear
your Bvidence.

Q0. The Trial of Samuel Atkins,

Hil.q1 Car 1L,

My, Ait. Gen, My Lord, T am informed by
Mr. Ward of the Crowon Office, the Profecutor’s
Clerk, that they have not fued forth a weyirs

facies upon this Indiétment as Principal 5 and there.

fore the Jury cannot enquire of that at all, by
muft be difcharged of it. Our Writ is only for
the Inditment for being Acceflary.

Cl. of the Cr. Xf you muke the Writ de quibufiay,

feloniis & acceffariis, and Seal it a-new (which may

be done prefently, the Seal being in the Hall) i
will do for both.

L. C.¥. Do o then, Mr. Ward, that both
may be difpatched. [Which was downe  accor-
ingly. |

Cl. of the Cr. Samuel Atkins, hold up thy Hand
again (which be did.) Youof the Jury, look upon
the Prifoner and hearken to his Caufe. You
thall further under{tand, that he ftands indifted by
the Name of Samuel Atkins, late of the Parifh of
St, Mary le Strand, &c. (prout 1n the firlt Indic
ment mutatis mutandis) againit the Peace of ow
Sovereign Lord the King, his Crown and Dignity.
Upon this Indiétment he hath been arraigned,
and thereupon pleaded Not guilty, and for his
Trial hath put himfelf upon God and his Country,
which Country you are. Your Charge is to en-
quire whether he be guilty of this Felony as Ac-
ceflary to the faid Robert Green, &c. or not guilty.
If you find him guilty, &e. (fieut antea) Crier,
make Proclamation,

Cricr. O yes! if any Man will give Evidence
on the behalf of our Sovereign Lord the King a-
gainft Samuel Atkins, the Pritoner at the Bar, let
them come forth, and they fhall be heard, for the
Prifoner ftands at the Barupon his Deliverance ; and
all others that are bound by Recognizance to give
Evidence againft the Prifoner at the Bar, let them
come forth and give their Evidence, or elfe they
forfeit their Recognizance,

Mr. Serj. Stringer. May 1t pleafe your Lord-
fhip, and you Gentlemen of the Jury, Sainzel
Atkins the Prifoner at the Bar ftands indicted here
of two Falts by two Inditments 5 the one as Prin-
cipal in this Murder, the otheras Acceflary. The
firlt of which we fhall lay afide, and ot his being
the Murderer give no Evidence; and fo, Gentle-
men, you muit find him not guilty of that.
But as to the Indi€tment as Acceflary, that fets
forth, that whereas Robert Giecn, Henry Berry,
Lawrence Hifl, and others, on the 12th of Os-
ber laft, ac the Parith of St. Mary le Strand, in
your County, did make an Aflault on the Per-
fon of Sir Edmmnndbuiy Godfrev, and that Rebert
Green did throw about the Neck of Sir Edunid-
bury a Linen Handkerchief, and twifted and
folded it about his Neck, by which twifting
and folding the faid Green did firangle the faid
Sir Edmundbary, of which ftrangling he inftant-
Iy died: and we fay, Gentemen, that the Pri-
foner at the Bar is indited as one that was privy,
knowing, confulting, and abetting to the Com-
miflion of this Murder, and that after the Mur-
der committed (for the Adlts are connected) hedid
receive, harbour, comfort, and maintain the Mus-
derers.  To this he hath pleaded Not guilty, if
we prove him Guilty, we doubt not you will find
him fo.

Mr. Att. Gen, May wt pleale your Lordfhips,
and you Gentlemen of this Jury, Mr. Ailins the
Prifoner is indifted upon two Indictments, the
one is for being a Principal in this Murder, bu
upon that we can give no Evidence, for that was

prefeired
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ferred before we had that fall and plain Evidence,
1E§ich now we have of this Fact by the Teft-

of Mr. Praunce. And I muft fay thus much
Emﬁn Atkins, that he hath caufe to blefs God,

that ever Mr. Praunce made this Difcovery; for
I affure you, without that, there are t_hofe Circums-
ftances, Probabilities, and Prefum tions, that he
might have gone in great danger of being account-
ed a Principal in the Murder. But now, my Lord,
that Matter being fully and plainly difcovered by
Mr. Praunce’s Teftimony, that ne Man may bear
a greater Burden than he deferves, we acquit him
as to that Indi€tment, and now charge him only
as Acceffary. And in that you will find the Evi-
dence to be fuch, as might give us juft Caufe to
prefer the firft Indiétment, '

For, my Lord, we fhall make it out, that
Mr. Sammel Atkins did come to a Gentleman of
his own Sirname, one Mr, Charles Atkins (whol
think was of kin to him, but whether he was, or
not, is not material) and to him he did complain
of the Proceedings of Sir Edmundbury Godfrey,
that he was 2 Man too active, and that he was in
no fort to be permitted to live 3 for if he were, he
would be very prejudicial to fome he was concern-
ed for. And ac the fame time he did enquire after

fome bold Man, I think one Child particularly,
who had Leen with that Charles Atkins aboard the

Fleer, whether he had behaved himfelf ftoutly
therey and Anding him to be a refolute Perfon, he
defired Mr. Charles Atkins to {end for him, and
ferd him to him, and he would employ him; and
afterwards Child owned to Mr. Atkins, that he had
been there,

L.C. 7. To which Mr. Atkins? to the Pri-
forer ?

Mr. Att, Gen. To Mr. Charles Atkins, who s
the Witnelfs, Sammne! Atkins 1s the Prifoner. It was
Saniel that compiained to Charles of Sir Ednund-
bury Gedfreyy enquired after the Courage and Re-
folution of Child, and ordered Charles to fend him
thither, and atterwards Child; as he faid, went
thither; and when he came back he did difcourfe
with Charles Atkins, deliring him to join with him
in the killing of a Man, and did propofe a great
Reward to him o to do,

This, my Lord, was the Difcourfe precedent
to the Fact. But now to fhew to your Lordfhip
and the Jury, that as the Prifoner Samuel Aikins
and he did defign, the thing fhould be done, fo
he did purfue that Defign, and bear a Part in it
and was privy to 1t, and knew of it; we fhall
prove, that Mr. Bedlsw, when he faw the Body
atter 1t was murdered, which happened, as was
proved to you Yefterday, on the 12th of OFsher
laft, found it removed from the Place, where by
the Teftimony of Mr. Praunce he was firlt car-
iied, 1nto another Room, and there by the help
of a Dark-Lanthorn feveral People then in the
Room faw him: Amongft whom, I fay, Mr.
Bedlowy was one, and Mr. Praunce fpeaks to the
lame Matter, and this was on the Mondzy Night
following.  And I think we have a fufficient
Proof, that Mr. Samuel Athins was one in the
Room, that did fee the Body, and was confult-
ing with them, how to difpole of 1t: For we
have this Proof againft him. Bedlbw finding a
young Man there, whom he did not know, he
went up to him, defiring to know his Name;
he tells him who he was, one Atkins, and de-
fcribes himfelf by a particular Circumftance to

whom he had relation, and Mr. Bedlow will tel]
Vor, II

you fo much, that though the Licht was rtot very
great, yet 1t was enough to let him fee the Faces
of thofe he took notice of, and that this Prifoner
was there. And if this be true, it will have the
effet of proving him guilty as Acceffary, cither
before or after the Fact.

This will be the courle of our Evidence, our -
Witneffes are not many, and therefore our Proct
will not be long. We fhall now call them, and
when they have done, fubmit it to your Lord-
{hip and the Jury; and firft we call Mr. Charles
Arkins,

Crier. Mr. Charles Atkins, lay your Hand upon
the Book. The Evidence which you fhall give
for our Sovereign Lord the King agamnft Samme!
Atkins, the Prifoner at the Bar, fhall be the Truth,
the whole Truth, and nothing but the Truth; fo
help you God.

Mr. Recorder., My Lord, this is Charles Ar-
kins, whom we defire to begin withal, It was
he that had the Dilcourfe firlt wich Samwel A:-
kins about Child, and afterwards with Child a-
bout the Murder, Pray, Sir, tell the Difcourfe
you had with the Prifoner at the Bar, and what
Difcourfe you had with Child, and the Time
when,

Cha, Atkins, My Lord, 1t was much about the
time that his Majelty went to Newsmarket,

L. C. 7. That was in September, I think,

Cha, Atkins, No, my Lord, 1t was in the be-
ginning of Offeber. 1 cannot fpeak to a Day, I
cannot very well tell that, bur it was much
about that Time, I had been with Sir Fobn 27il-
liams.about the fame Bufinefs that I came to fpeak
with Mr. A%ins about (this Gentleman whom [ am
forced to be Witnefs againft on the King’s Ac-
count; but otherwife I have a great Regard for
him) and coming there [ asked the Porter below

Stairs whether Mr, Arkins were 1n the Houle,

L. C. F. At what Houle was it ?

Cha. Atlins. At Derdy Houle in Channel-Row.
He faid, Yes. So I went up Stairs, and found
him there all alone in the Study, where he ge-
nerally writes near another Study, where was
the Clerk, that ufually wrote with him, but he
was alone; it was in the Afternoon: And after I
had {poken to him, I deflired him that he wouid
walk out into the other Room. And ar the
Window, which 1s next the Door that Is te
the Office, he and I flood talking together.
After we had difcourfed 2 little about the Plot,
he told me, that Sir Edmundbury Gosfrey had
very much injured his Mafter; and it he lived
would be the Ruin of him. And thereupon I
having heard that his Malfter was queftioned in
the Houfe of Commons, asked him whether he
were 2 Parliament Man, thinking that mmighe be
the Occafion of their queftioning him 3 Ao, faid
he. But then he went off from what we wers
then difcourfling, and he defired me to be fe-
cret, and went on upon that Account in feveral
Particulars, that I cannot now exactly remem-
ber. And as we were talking he broke off his
Difcourfe fhort, and asked me if I knew Mr.
Childs what Child? {aid 1. He that 1 uled to
meet at the three Tobacco- Pipes ¢ Said he, Itisthae
Child that you recommended to me: for I had re-
commended fuch a one to him to be Purfer of a
Ship, by the means of one Owen.  Said he, is he
a Man that 1s ftout, or to be trufted with a Secret?
Said I, As to his Valour I know nothing of it, but
he has a very good Character; then faid he, when
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you fee him, fend him to my Mafter; but as for my
felf, I defire not to have him ask for me when he
comes thither. I could not meet"Child that Night,
but I did ¢the next Night; and fo he faid he would
go thither. And afterwards I met him again, and
he faid he had been there, and falling 1mto Dil-
courfe, he would have engaged me to join in the
Murder of 2 Man. .

L. C. ¥. What did Child fay to you? Whatis
Mr. Atkins’s Mafter’s Name ?

Cha, Atkins. Mr. Pepys.

L.C.¥. What, Mr. Pepys of the Navy?

Cha. Atkins. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Had Child been with him ?

Cha. Atkins. My Lord, he told me fo.

L. C. ¥. Whar did he fay when he came from
Mr. Pepys¢

Cha, Arkins, He told me nothing of Mr. Pe-
pys, but he would have engaged me to join in

the Murder of a Man. I was then juft coming
from walking, and met him in Holbowrn Fields

near the threc Tobacco-Pipes, and he defired e
ro walk with him, which I was unwilling to do.
He told me he had fomething private to fay to
me: I told him there was a Shed in the back
part of the Houfe that was private enough ; and
thither we went, and 1 fate with my Back to
the Hloufe, and he with his to the Garden,  And
as foon as the Mafter of the Houfe had brought
a Pot of Ale, he fell into Difcourfe, and told me
he believed, that by reafon of the Neceflity of
my Fortune, and the Troubles I lay under, and
my want of Money, I would undertake a Bufi-
nels that might relieve my Wants. I replied, any
thing that was honourable 1 would undertake,
or that became a Gentleman, but to rob on the
Highway, or any thing of that Nature, that
was bafe, I would not doir, He anfwered me, that
it was a ching of greater moment than that, he
told me it was the killing of a Man. I imme-
diately utterly denied to join with him in 1t5 he
save me cight or nine Days to confider of it
and I fhould have a great Reward, if I would
jotn with them. I heard of him no more for a
confliderable while, and then I met him at the
thice Cans or the fix Cans in Holbourn, and renew-
ing his Difcourfe, he told me, if I would not agree
with them to help to murder him, yet if I would
conceal it, I fhould have 100/, brought to my
Chamber ; but if Idid reveal it, I thould not out-
lve 1t

L. C. 7. This Child faid?

Cha. Atkins, Yes, my Lord.

L.C.¥. Who were zhem were to be with you,
Captain Akins, do you know ?

. Cha. A:kins. 1do not know, my Lord, he did
not tell me who they were.

L. C. 7. Pray tell us again: What was the firlt
Difcourfe you had with Mr. Sainuel Atkins.

Cha. Aikins, 1 came to borrow a little Money of
him, and it was at the great Window in the great
Room above Stairs, the very Window next the
Office where the Prifoner writes, and there he be-
aan his Difcourfe. We were talking of this Plot
that was difcovered, and fomething about Cole-
man, but the Particulars I cannot remember, and
then he fell into Difcourfe about Sir Edmundbury
Goafiey.

L. C. #. What Difcourfe was it ? :

Cha, Aikins, That he had.injured his Mafter,
and if he lived, he would ruin him. I asked him
whether he was a Member of the Houfe of
Commons, becaufe I knew his Malter had been
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there queftioned for his Reéligion. No, faid }e.
but then he went off from that, which fe wa;
then talking of, which was concerning the Plg
and Sir Edinundbury Gedfiey, and asked, if I kneyw
where there was a ftout Man, and particularly en.
quired about Chi/d, and bid me fend him to ki
Matfter.

L.C. 7. Did he fear Siv Edmvindbury Godfyey
would ruin his Mafter by difcovering fomething
about the Plot? 7

Cha. Atkins. T underfiood {o.

L.C.F. Why, he did not fay that his Mafte;
knew of it, did he?

Cha. Atkins. No, not to me.

L. C 7. And what did he talk of killing any
body ?

Cha. Aikins. No, he did not mention it g
me.

L. C. 7. Then all that he faid to you was, that
Sir Edmandbury Gedfrcy had very much iﬁjm*ed his
Mafter, and if he Iived would ruin him, and then
asked, 1f you knewa Man that would be ftout and
fecret, and bid you fend him to his Mafter, but
not ask for him.

Sam. ctkins. Pray, Mr. Athins, will you tell
what ame that Difcourfe was?

Cha. Atkins. 1 cannot tell that exaltly. It was
two Days before Sir Fobir [Villiains went into the
Country. It was about the time of the Dutchefs
her going beyond Sea,

Sam. Atkins, Was there no body by when we
had that Difcourfe?

Cha. Atkins. There was another in a Study hard
by, Icannot tell exactly who.

Sam. Atkins. Do you know his Name, when
you hear it? Was it Mr, Lewss?

Cha. Atkins. 1 think 1t was {o, I cannot exactly
tell.

L.C. 7. What Day was it, as ncar as you
can f

Cha, Arkins. 1 cannot fay what Day it was, it
was about {even or eight Days in Offsber, as I can
remember,

L.C. ¥. You fay it was about the time of the
Duchefs her going over into Hollaid,

Cha. Atkins, 1 think {o. I cannot pofitively re-
member.,

Mr. 8ol. Gen. Had you any Reward offer’d to
you for killing of 2 Man?

Cha. dtkins. Yes, 1 had by Child.

Sam, Atkins. By whom was that Reward to be
paid?

Cha. Atkins. He did not tell me,

Mr., A, Gen. Now, my Lord, becaufe it
feems a ftrange thing, that Mr. Atkins, who fays
he is a Proteftant, fhould be engaged in this Bu-
(inefs, we have a Witnefs here to prove, that he
hath been often feen at Somerfzi-Houfe at Mafs, and
fo he is a Party concerned ; for thofe that are of
that Party, it was their Intereft to cut him off,
And that is this Boy. [Pointing to a Boy that was
then brought in.]

L. C. ¥. How old are you, Child 2

Boy. About Seventeen,

Mr. Jult. #ild. Do you know what, if you
fwear falle, will become of you?

Boy. 1 will not {wear falfe.

Mr. Juft, 7ild. What, if you do fwear falfe,
will become of you ?

Boy, 1 fhall be damned,

My, At Gen. He s as like to fpeak Truth, as
another.

Sam, Atkins, What Religion are you of, B?*?

£
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Bsy. A Protefiant.
Sam. Atkins. Do you know me?

. No. | _
| fg . I¥ild, Sir, you arc too bold with the

Witnefles. _
L.C ¥ Swear him. o
My Ast.Gen. Pray hold. My Lord, this 1sa

Witnefs that Mr, #ard brings from below, I
have him not in my Brief. I defire, before they
fwear him, that he would give an Account whe-
cher he knows the Prifoner or no.

Boy. No, I donot. [ And fo the Boy was carried
off, with foine Exprefions of Myr. Auorney’s Dif-
plzafire to Mr. Ward for bringing bim 1. ]

Mr. Recorder, My Lord, I perceive 1t was a
Miftake 5 it was fome body elfe. We will proeeed
to other Evidence.

% My, Sol, Gen, We have hitherto
* Sir Francis gone upon the Evidence to prove,
Winnington. thar Mr. Atkins fought out for a ftout
Man, and when he had found one, he thought
was for his purpofe, he bid him fend him to his
Mafter. This ftout Man, Child, would have en-
aaced the other Witnefs in a Murder ; and it is
very probable what that Murder was, to wir, the
Murder of Sir Edmundbury Godfrey, tor we fhall
prove that the Prifoner was aiding and aflifting
to carry off the Body. And for this we call Mr.
Bedlso,

'Then Mr. Bediew was [worn.

Mr. Recorder. Pray, Sir, will you tell my Lord,
and the Jury, whether you were in the Room
where the Body lay, and in what Company you
faw 17

Bedlew, Your Lordfhip had an account Yefter-
day, how Le Faire came to acquaint me, that fuch
an one was murdered, and that they intended fo
and fo to difpofe of the Body. When I came to
meet him at Somerfet-Heufe, I asked him who were
to be concern’d in carrying him off. He told
me it was a Gentleman, onc Mr. Atkiis, 1
thought, it mught have been this Gentleman,
[pointing to Captain Atkins] whom I had known
feveral Years fince, and fo I enquired no further,
but remember’d he told me fo; and when I came
into the Room, there wasa great many there,
and fome of them their Faces I did fee. T asked
a young Gentleman whether his-Name was not
Atins, and he faid yes 3 then I asked him, if he
were Mr. Pepys’s Clerk. He anfwer’d yes, and
added I bave fecn you often at my Mafter’s Houfe.
There was a very little Light, and the Man was one
I was not acquainted with, thongh I had been
often at the Houfe, but could never meet with
b, and yet the Man faid, be bad feen me often
there @ fo that’ts hard for me to {wear that this
1s he. And now I am upon one Gentleman’s Life,
I would not be guilty of a Falthoed to-take away
another’s, I do not remember that ~he was fuch
a Perfon as the Prifoner is, as far as I can remem-
ber he had a more manly Iace than he hath, and a
Beard.

L.C 7. You do well be cautious, Mr. Bed-
/2] n

Mr. J. Wild, Pray, what ftore of People were
there ?. |

Bedloy. T believe there were feven or eight.
Some there were that I knew.

L. C. 7. Who were thofe ?
Bedlow, Le Faire and Praunce. I remember very

well, T asked Mr., Atkins this Q;e&fan, Are you
Mr. Pepys’s Clerk ¢ He faid Yes: Ihave feen you

often at my Mafter’s Houfe.

L. C. 7. And that was all the Difcourfe you
had with him?

bedlw. Yes, for | was but a very little while
there,

L. C. ¥, But you cannot charge the Prifoner to
be him ?

Bedlow. T do think he had a more manly Face,

than the Prifoner has, and 2 Beard.

L. C. F. So you think it rather was not he, than
1t was he ?

Bedlpw, T can’tfay it was he, nor I could not at
firft,  1did not know, but it might be fome ont
that did affime his Perfon to put me off.

Mr. 7. Wild. Mr. Bedlowo, pray let me ask you
one Queftion, Did you never know of any Delign
to murder Sir Ednundbury Godfrey, till Le Foiye
fpoke to you to carry him off.

Bedlow, 1knew not, till I faw him murder’d.
They told me [ thould help to carry off the Body
of one that was murder’d, but I could not imagine
whom. |

L. C. 7. But you knew that they were to murder
a Man?

Bedlows, Yes, my Lord, but I knew not
whom, |

Mr. J. Wild, But you were appointed to infi-
nuate your {elf mnto Sir Edmundoury Godfrey’s Ac-
quaintance ? '

Bedlow. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. F. Wild, And upon what Errands were you
fent?

Bedlow. To take out Warrants for the Peace.

Mr. F. Wild. And did you take out any ¢

Bedlow. Yes, againft fome Perfons, and there
were none fuch.

Mp. Recorder, Now if your Lordfhip pleafes, I
defire Mr. Bedlow to let us know whether he did
ask the Perfon, thar faid he was Mr, ks, any
other Queftions ?

Bedlers. No, I did not. |

My Record. Flow came you to ask him no other
Queftions, but only whether he were Mr. Pepys's
Clerk ?

Bedlow. Becaufe T never heard of any of thar
Name, but he and this Gentleman [peiating 4o
Captain Atkins] whom I know very well, and I
could not tell but 1t might be he.

L. C. . Hereis the thing. Le Faire told him
one Atkins fhould help him to carry the Body
off; and when he came into the Room, that
Perfon told him his Name was Mr, Atkins; and
then he asked, if he were Mr. Pepys’s Clerk,
for he could not tell but that it was Charles -
kins. o

Mr. Recorder. . We have another Reafon, my
Lord, for the asking that Queftion. Pray, what
Difcourfe had you about any Commiffion ¢

Bedlows. 1 had often been with Caprain Ford at
Mr. Pepys's about his Commiflion, and I had often
defired to fpeak with Mr. Pepys or Mr. Atkins his
Clerk, but I could never find either of them ar
home; and therefore when J met that young Gen-
tleman there, I asked him whether he were Pepys’s
Man, and he faid Yes. I asked him if he knew
me, and he told me Yes, I.had been often at his
Mafter’s Houfe with Captain Ferd, buc I had ne-
ver feen Mr, Atkins, ) _

Mr. Record, What did he tell yon befides ?

Bedlow, "That was all thie Difcourfé we had,
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